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1EUAR 317, 463, 197. 66 42.18 5,940, 472. 62 375,511, 176. 47 51.56 9,101, 392. 48
1Z24 117, 612, 440. 28 15. 63 8, 355, 285. 20 56, 812, 799. 77 7.80 7,678, 666. 98
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LEBESNEBEIREERAR FEXFIR B g Z e 4l 91,725.50 | 0.01
EEERNE GRAE FEXF IR B g R BT 4l 65,114.00 | 0. 01
LEmAwPT X B ZR T 4l 57,711.00 | 0. 01
it 223,999, 800.93 | 29.76
5. HAbRUTRK
(1) B Ath R UL R IR 245 2 -
ARMT
ERE EHH
Hh IKESH FAEE KA A | TS
o4 51 ) o4 51 0 24 o &% e
ig%ﬁg;k#ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁ?ﬁ%ﬂﬂ 20, 191, 050. 14 16.52 16, 378, 627. 74 81.12 14,511,916.79 11.24 10, 699, 494. 39 73.73
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ARMT
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EANET (B FEARKEN
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=. BipRs 399, 286, 890. 00 - - - - —|399, 286, 890. 00

31, BELNR

95 T 3 138 U




g S AR A A R 28 2010 SRR S 4
ARMT
= | F#ao% | wEEm | Ax&ERD FRE
2010 &£/ -
AT i) 73,598, 677. 70 - - 73,598, 677. 70
Hep: BEBBRANER 74,447, 223.12 - - 74,447, 223.12
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HipEANR 150, 990, 828. 12 - -| 150, 990, 828. 12
Hep: Al AlRFIRS HREERS - - - -
N EEER BN ANETEA R NE - - - -
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32, BRAMN
ARMIT
\ 3
ot AT T I ok I S
2010 £ /&
EEERNTR 12, 040, 259. 03 - 12, 040, 259. 03
EEEEAR 10, 727, 267. 34 - 10, 727, 267. 34
SRl 22,767, 526. 37 - 22,767, 526. 37
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Hibl U 22,057, 866. 30 18, 000, 802. 81
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ARMTT
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FEXH 29, 369, 353. 33 | 30, 075, 436. 64
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39, HEEREHRK
ARMTT
B AE R FEFERITH
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B RELEEH FELREH
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BEXSMHEMEFHEBENRERE - -
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ARMT
o
WA 5 Bt AR regity | FEELERR
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it 3,017,949.30 | 1,462, 347.97 3,017, 949. 30
43, FiEHER
ARMIT
Y= AEEITH FEZHE
&R ERBRRE T ER S EFRSH 117, 681. 10 1, 543, 033. 92
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SHAERAEMEFFEZRE, BAREFREHEFARRPEMRINZEMEFZKEEH. BXF
UAMETEZEMIAMS, WENMERMRTERKERO, EFIESAXEHO, HizKXXEH
MFREE R RN RMEZTHTHRE.

HRRIRERRE, AARARSFARABERIINHIARBECEATE. #ITE
HoAth M52 P AR AR SE L B Z e BSOS BRI AR . kS, AERF BN EF~ Rk
Bz B ER, UBERMITERRZHIUTHRFE D IAMOES . Ait, AERAEERRINAKRES
Fr&iBE ARG B2 K A 1R,

AERARRNEEFREFRITRRSHRIT, WRHIEFSHEAXKERIK.

AEAZREHONHEZSNIERAMEIER, BLAEARGHMERHEREPRE.

13 FEhME

BERRANER, RERAFRFEERAATSZMERNESNYFHHFTEE, UBEAE

ZEFE, FRENERERIZEN. AEFAEEBRMNRITERZERHERHAITER.
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LT ARAR sk 12, 937, 203. 00 31, 354, 158. 51 1,529, 236. 65 32, 883, 395. 16 40. 00 40. 00 % - - 2,523, 430. 88
LB ERIUATRERAR WEEE 400, 000. 00 - - - 40.00 40.00 x - - -
LEMENRTESRFRAR W% 320, 000. 00 152, 658. 29 -152, 658. 29 - 40. 00 40. 00 % - - -
LEEBNUAMNKERAR K 1, 000, 000. 00 3,433,172, 98 206, 961. 46 3,640, 134, 44 40. 32 40. 32 x - - 200, 000. 00
LB R RENFRBIGRAR S 680, 000. 00 - - - 40. 00 40. 00 x - - -
LEREESHIENTHEERAAE WaEE 5, 395, 394. 00 23,927, 538. 08 537, 937. 56 24, 465, 475. 64 40. 00 40. 00 x - - -
LERZEBEEFIEHFRAR WEE 6, 952, 680. 00 12, 879, 994. 02 2,180, 732. 47 15, 060, 726. 49 40. 00 40. 00 x - - -
FEHMIZRE (BUL) FRAR WL 2, 648, 640. 00 3,511, 284. 20 770, 390. 75 4,281, 674. 95 20. 00 20. 00 x - - 334, 937. 74
BESW/NT - 81, 790, 758. 39 26, 560, 673. 45 108, 351, 431. 84 - - - - 3,058, 368. 62
HFAR/E

LRI L FRAR AL 4,768, 927. 00 4,768, 927. 00 - 4,768, 927. 00 75. 00 75. 00 x - - -
LEERHEFERAR RASE 40, 626, 952. 00 40, 626, 952. 00 - 40, 626, 952. 00 75. 00 75. 00 x -40, 626, 952. 00 - -
LERRBEREEERAR RAE 3, 278, 165. 00 3,278, 165. 00 - 3,278, 165. 00 100. 00 100. 00 x - - -
LEEAEEERAT RASE 420, 000. 00 420, 000. 00 -420, 000. 00 - 75. 00 75. 00 x - - -
FARMT - 49, 094, 044. 00 -420, 000. 00 48, 674, 044. 00 - - -40, 626, 952. 00 - -
Hitg 5

LETNAENFIWEHERAR BAE 2, 398, 080. 00 2, 398, 080. 00 - 2,398, 080. 00 10. 00 10. 00 x - - 3, 306, 678. 00
BRI T ERERAR ARAR 6, 860, 961. 99 6, 860, 961. 99 - 6, 860, 961. 99 12.22 12.22 x - - 3,229, 025. 11
Hitb MASE 7, 624, 970. 00 7,624, 970. 00 - 7,624, 970. 00 - - - -7, 474, 970. 00 - -
Hitg it - 16, 884, 011. 99 - 16, 884, 011. 99 - - -7, 474, 970. 00 - 6, 535, 703. 11
&it 156, 857, 292. 29 26, 441, 122. 64 183, 298, 414. 93 - - - -48, 101, 922. 00 - 9, 783, 096. 25
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s BN, B
() EALg N, B A
ARMT
Y= AEEZEE EEREE
FE SN 902, 802, 021. 24 1,052, 438, 116. 17
H il Z s\ 21,612, 865. 64 16, 163, 944. 13
%N 757, 521, 707. 88 859, 146, 449. 50
2) £EWFE
ARMT
=g AE R ‘ FERITH ‘
RN El A RN =R %N
UEREHITERVWAN 290, 994, 834. 27| 205, 104, 985. 09| 364, 553, 761. 59| 254, 346, 028. 10
BFITH R FWAN 213,441,929. 94| 170,586, 367. 43| 254, 688, 142. 76| 198, 344, 648. 84
REBEBERAN 398, 365, 257. 03| 372, 152, 200. 54| 433,196, 211. 82| 398, 888, 316. 18

&it

902, 802, 021. 24

747, 843, 553. 06

1,052, 438, 116. 17

851,578, 993. 12

@) 2ABTEBREFIEWRANER

ARMT
ER AR =25 @N & A B £ EE I N\ RY B A5
(%)
FEBRSERARBERAR 36, 298, 843. 49 3.93
LiEHARNIREERAR 27, 330, 512. 81 2.96
WHRERERAGRARMENS A 25, 920, 047. 01 2.80
EBNREREFRERAR 18,817, 279. 54 2.03
EEEMEAI L TR ERAR 17,270, 917. 08 1.87
&it 125, 637, 599. 93 13.59
. BERERK
ARMT
Y= AERITH FERITH
—. Mk K 6,915, 741. 70 8, 340, 804. 58
Z. BEEREERMmE -327,077.89 | -1, 633, 010. 41
=. AEHESRETBERXK - -
M. #8222/ BFERK - -
F. KEARRBUS RRER K ~ -
7N RN EEERERE - -
t. BEEEFRERK - 82,571. 47
I\, TEMFRERK - -
. EEIERERK - -
+. EEEEYESRBERK - -
+—. HSEFRER K - -
+Z. ERESBERK - -
+=. BERERK - -
+m. Hits - -
&it 6, 588, 663. 81 6, 790, 365. 64
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8. H ¥
(1) 2 B PRLR TR
ARTT
I B RELZER T EREEF
RBAEZE KB B AR B 5= 6, 535, 703. 11 6, 208, 125. 05
R EZE R BA B AU R 28 -4, 038, 825. 93 1,224, 009. 94
A B KEA R BUR B E B I R s 3, 753, 305. 86 4,284, 493. 62
BEX S AT SN ERE - -
B8 23R EBERR A S B B EUS R R R S - -
BA At HE MRS B ESHR E RS - -
WEXZ ZEERMETISHR SR - -
BEZ2 R ERENRRRER - -
Al HE SR A ISR RIS 30, 042. 00 30, 042. 00
Hit - -
&it 6, 280, 225. 04 11, 746, 670. 61
(2) $2 A EAZ B B HA BRAIR B Y 2%
ARTT
WAL E AL KELEEE TERER ARE L EFIER
THBY R E
EiEmAFILEsLERAR 3, 306, 678. 00 5,866, 378. 00 | Z4EBgF) 4 B
LR T EE AR A E 3,229, 025. 11 257, 747.05 | AREREH| 9 ECLE AN
BB AEREERAH - 84,000.00 | PBRFIHBECENZTEH
it 6, 535, 703. 11 6, 208, 125. 05
(3) 42N EALZ E B HA B AR B U 25 -
ARMT
WAL E AL KELZEE TERET | KELL EFER
TR R
LieE BN ERA T 4,052, 667.53 | 3,186, 286. 71 FIE 1 0
LiERXEEHIEHFARAF 2,180, 732. 47 632, 453. 52 FE 0
FEHMNEZE (R GRAF 1, 105, 328. 49 460, 678. 69 FEE 0
FEBNANKRERAT 406, 961. 46 364, 119. 35 FE N
LR E-THURERELTF 489, 473. 71 118, 546. 49 F3iE 1 A0
LiEREEMS M THERAE 537, 937. 56 19, 466. 66 FIE 1 0
LiEMENRTESRARAE - -98, 331. 65 KELAE
E#ZBINEFZEIIEGRAT -12, 811, 927. 15 | -3, 459, 209. 83 SN
it -4,038, 825.93 | 1,224,009.94

ARATIRFEWEICEI TEKRRE .

%127 w4t 138 W




ity A S AR I A R4 ]

2010 “FJEHR 5S4

9. WEREBRIFEEN

ARMT
s AERITHE FERIHH
1. BRFEATAGEEHHUERE:
i 5, 258, 667. 71 10, 390, 821. 50
mn: EFERERK 6, 588, 663. 81 6, 790, 365. 64
[E E B =4 |H 12,874, 633.12 12, 425, 623. 34
TR E =it 1,013,191.55 999, 503. 64
KEAFF 2R AR 775, 454. 51 2,194, 395. 83
WEEEEF. TREFMEMKRAS"H
ey -10, 874, 889. 73 -361,971. 19
EEE PR EHR K Wzl “-” S1EF) - -
NRMETEIREK WzEd “-” SEF) - -
WS ER WgE <=7 SHEF) 19,842,564.24 | 22, 243, 353. 67
BEMK Wl “-7 SHEF) -6, 280, 225. 04 | -11, 746, 670. 61
BIEFRSRE SR (8L “-7 S1EF) 4,016,438.75 | -3, 646, 728. 56
BB P {S A SR80 CRID L “-7 SHEFI) - -
FEHNR D GEmMLL “-7 SH7) 18,120, 664. 37 | -15, 838, 704. 52
ZE MY B BE D (8L ‘-7 S1E5) -11, 881, 900. 26 10, 255, 885. 45
ZE MM B a9Ehn (RO L “-7 SEHF) -36, 023, 408. 87 | -36, 478, 354. 03
Hity - -
SEENTENUERE R 3,429,854.16 | -2, 772, 479. 84
2. RHRASWZHEARHRMERFD:
REFARE - =
—EREIEAR AT EEIR N AR S - -
RRFANEBEEEFE - -
3. NERINEZMWEEINFER:
MEBMERRE 154, 455,318.48 | 145,598, 105. 95
B AEFEVIRE 145,598,105.95 | 131, 888, 325. 65
m: AEFENYHERKE - -
B MEENMYENRE - -
NeRMEZENYREM CRL) & 8, 857, 212. 53 13, 709, 780. 30
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10. XBEARXEKRZS

(D KA MEKRFREEXEESIME GO
@ XBEARSIFR
(2a) MatHmIMm. REFIZEZFHSE

KB R/ FFRRE

ARMIT
g REREER ”+ EEREE
BT LBEBNE |[MARER S et
e ] ZEME £ 5 e
EEA51 (%) EEA51 (%)
LERAEREEERAF AP &R 8,183,745.69 |[1.09 5,429, 350. 41 0.64
FEFBUATHRERAR AP &R 973, 299. 15 0.13 572, 331. 20 0.07
FERE-THMURBRAF T 52 78 & &R 619, 519. 65 0.08 250, 333. 33 0.03
EERSEHARBERLF AP AR 586, 324. 79 0.08 - -
FEMENREERBRAF ML E ERM 461, 962. 21 0.06 26, 227. 35 0. 01
TEESEREFTREERAF M%7 @ AR 303, 657. 33 0. 04 - -
LigEmENERAR ML E &R 75, 213. 68 0. 01 109, 433. 33 0. 01
FEANANRERAR AP aREM 28,102. 57 0. 01 - -
EiZBNAREIREFRAR AP aREM - - 16,311,877.09  |[1.93
e FEEERERRNEBENEGRAR (WXEH AR - - 210, 436. 75 0.02
LFEBS (&R 2 AT PN AR M - - 172,100. 53 0. 02
EBEBURNMEIEGRAR |(WXEMm aRM - - 7, 400. 35 0. 01
it 11,231, 825.07 [1.50 23,089,490.34 [2.74
KEXZZ 52t BA
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(2a) Mot . REFEZFF- &

HEMm/ARE S FIERR

ARMIT
o RERER FEREE
KEFH KRR EAE |[MARRR ks AR
— £ 5 €W &5 S &
EEA51 (%) EE451 (%)
LBRSEHARBERAF HEBM ERM 36,298, 843.49 [3.93 80, 481,617.91 |7.53
EBEEFT LM HEBM ERM 13,921,611.11 |[1.51 18, 870,847.86 [1.77
EBHERBEEARARAF iziﬁiﬂ SR 7,389, 624.81 |0.80 - -
E AT T
EiERIPT BIRAF HERMm &R 5,932,735.05 |0. 64 5,205,584.38  |0.49
EiERSEHEEERAR HEMM ERM 5,522,127.59  |0. 60 13,447,001.35 |[1.26
EZBMNRFEIERFRAF HEBM ERM 1,929,230.77 0. 21 - -
EBRS (&R BRSSO HER M ERM 1,546, 256.41 [0.17 - -
EBRERIERERRAF HEBMm aREM 1,235,042.74 |0.13 13,377,999.15 |1.25
£ ENRIH S PR B HEBMm aREM 880, 717. 95 0.10 - -
EBBRSKEEERRAR HEBMm aREM 783, 978. 63 0.08 63, 669. 66 0. 01
LERABEREEFRAF HEBMm aREM 400, 000. 00 0. 04 1,305,858.54 [0.12
EiERSERKLEGRAR HEBMm aREM 153, 846. 15 0.02 - -
BRI (GR 22 HEBMm aREM 139, 316. 24 0. 01
EBBSIMRAR (M8 FRAE  |(HERR aREM 35, 641. 03 - - -
LERSRBRESHERLE HEBMm aREM 33,100. 85 - - -
FigBREUAHH A R A HEHM &R 10, 299. 15 - - -
EBETBEHERAR :fiﬁiﬂ AR - - 3,620,632.03 |0.34
EXTFT T
EBERYRET GRAAE HERMm &R - - 335, 185. 48 0.03
EBEANRERAF :‘fiﬁzﬂ AR - - 306, 924. 00 0. 03
E 177
EBRSEGR KIAR HEBHM ‘R - - 205, 800. 00 0.02
EB ERIERRMNEENBRAR :‘fiﬁzﬂ aREM - - 95, 053. 83 0. 01
E 177
EEREBEEMNERAA HEHMm aRM - - 40, 527. 77 -
EamAEwmPT HEHMm &R - - 11,089. 76 -
EBEBBUATRERAR HEHMm aRM - - 8,499. 99 -
&SR FRAR HEHMm aRM - - 7,145.38 -
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EEXE—TFTHMURERLT HER® ERM - - 6, 752. 14 -
LiEBRAYE (EH) A7 HER® ERM - - 1, 900. 00 -
LigEEFRAT HER® ERM - - 1, 500. 00 -
EEBESEHIRILERAF HER® ERM - - 900. 00 -
LEMmHHFELZMRAERAF [HEETR ERM - - 400. 00 -
&it 76,212,371.97 |8.24 137,394, 889. 23 |12. 86
KELZZ Zii A
(2b) KEXAFE UM IR 1FR
HAFERE:
ARMT
A ZFR A B FHERINE | FAERH HELRILH | HEWE | EEMRANESE
H RERIE | R A Rl &
JHER
B {15 LEETEN AR I 2010.1.1 [2010.12.31| &R#H 1, 724, 160. 00
BB LEENAEERAR I B 2010. 1.1 [2010.12.31| &R % 573, 720. 00
BB E#ZBNARSETIIEEGRAR Ir'EB 2010.1.1 [2010.12.31| &R#%H 1, 230, 580. 00
B {4 LT ERAEREEERAT B 2010.1.1 [2010.12.31| &R%H 815, 616. 00
BB LiEEREESHMERTE I 2010. 1.1 [2010.12.31| &RH 102, 016. 50
BIRAF
&it 4,446, 092. 50
EMEFERE:
ARMT
HFEH TR & lyay HEARSE SRR FHELZIER HER FEEMIA
AR ik EMKRIE RIFAE 2
L@yl R A BIES |TE. BB 2009. 7. 1 2014. 3. 31 &EM | 3,917, 400. 00
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KEX 77 Rz U Rz 4+ FX I
(3a) Rz K EBX 77 kIR
ARMT
I B &R KEFH ERET FEVEE
MKE SR ER WA R E R ER WA E
ISz 45 e =k EERSEHARRBERAF 70, 817, 155. 21 69, 853, 511. 70
ISz 45 e =k AT LM 17,199, 822. 60 11, 593, 892. 00
ISz 45 e =k TETRRIENERRAA 9, 166, 500. 00 8,371, 927. 40
ISz 45 e =k LTEESHENEEERAR 3,054, 189. 95 3, 422, 287. 95
ISz 45 e =k LiEwmir T BIRAF 1,925,512.02 734, 966. 04
52 T T 5 EZBEMRFEIREGRAR 1,894, 100. 00 -
ISz 45 e =k EBBEMAKKRBRAR 867, 840. 18 867, 840. 18
ISz 45 e =k LB EEEN RN A PR B 780, 440. 00 -
52 Y M=K FEHERBRELARERAF 608, 860. 02 -
52 Y M=K BB SA)BBEBIMRIEFRAR 474, 000. 00 474, 000. 00
ISz 45 e =k LEas (£H) BikRESHL 449, 040. 00 -
ISz 45 e =k LEES &R B rF 422, 200. 00 259, 200. 00
ISz 45 e =k RS (&R KINAE 240, 750. 00 240, 750. 00
52 Y M=K BB SEBKLEERAR 126, 000. 00 -
ISz 45 e =k FEBERBEEFRAF 91, 725. 50 -
ISz 45 e =k LBERYRT FRAAF 65, 114. 00 345, 055. 00
ISz 45 e =k LB ARIPT 57,711. 00 57, 711. 00
52 14T Tk 5 EBREEGLANMAERERRAF - 44, 243. 55
ISz 45 e =k EBXENFERAR - 8, 253. 60
ISz 45 e =k EEBERMMTHRARBRAR - 3, 460. 00
ISz 45 e =k @AM (RE) A7 - 2, 250. 00
ISz YT K 55K KFEFNE (RE) BRAF - 1, 709. 91
ISz 45 e =k BTN ERARE - 1, 284. 00
Bz 45 ek LEBSERNRULBRAF - 324. 80
ISz 45 ek LTSI ZMRAERAE - 100. 00
Sz YT K 55 ait 108, 240, 960. 48 96, 282, 767. 13
T sk LERSEREFRASERAF 335, 250. 00 -
T sk LBAENANRERAA - 68, 610. 60
T sk LB EBBUATRERAR - 176, 622. 80
T sk BB ERAR - 58, 243. 50
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TS FRIR &it 335, 250. 00 -| 303, 476.90 -
H{th Uk LEERTHRBEFERAT 88, 369, 399. 71| 88, 369, 399. 71| 88, 409, 399. 71| 88, 409, 399. 71
H{th Uk iR EEEEEHRAA 6, 946, 562. 23 -| 1,283, 428. 05 -
H{th Uk L EBEERERRMERBENERAE 5,011,916. 79| 1,199, 494.39| 5,011,916.79| 1,199, 494. 39
HMb UL Tk LB ERAT 587, 622. 05 - 587, 622. 05 -
HMb UL Tk TR FILEsEERAR 275, 855. 88 - 275, 855. 88 -
H{th S Uk EEBNALERERAT 59, 738. 30 - 59, 738. 30 -
H{th S Uk BAEEERAF - - 22.758. 92 -
H{th S Uk LiEMEMNRTERERAA - - 419, 689.77 -
HAub UL Tk &it 101, 251, 094. 96| 89, 568, 894. 10| 96, 070, 409. 47| 89, 608, 894. 10
Rz Y B F) LB IBLERAT 379, 460. 31 - 379, 460. 31 -
Rz Y B F) &it 379, 460. 31 -| 379, 460. 31 -

KBk T R U R A+ SRR
(3b) Nz fFREXF FIn
ARMIT
Il B & #R KEEFH ERER FEVEEN

87 155 e =X LR EEEEEFRAT 3,334, 454. 83| 3,266, 967. 22

VAR EZBINRFEIIEERAT 2,900, 644. 00| 8, 067, 239. 80

N4 e X FEXRE-—FHNRERAT 656, 741. 60 31, 020. 00
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VAR &1t 6,991, 558. 48| 13,037, 326. 82
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Hith A+ 5k LEMENRTEREGRLF - 151, 023. 52
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HMMN TR LB ARA - 125, 878. 72
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1. EREMHREAMER

ARMT

= AE R TERITE
ERNEFFAER 13, 602, 598. 23 1,039, 163. 47
AL B HE ek To IE R HE SO IR ISR IE . B R - -
NSRBI BAFNEN (5 S ZHE*, IRBERGE—IREE 40,101, 756. 32 3. 240. 000. 00

FEE B F FZ RIBUF MRS

AR EIEEMENV KRN EE SRS - -
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A EHER, MRERTIMIH. EaHAS - -

RHGMBERARIX HEREBE R RMMERRS HHRE - -

El—Z=FI TR EH~ENFARBNESTH B S HSRE - -

S52RIERZEN S LXMEE T~ EHRE - -

REXAREFEENVSHEIMNALERAREL SN, FEX FEEMSE
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= ZettEmAGRMT HHESMES ISR ERE
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bz p-AL)

TREENSHIEERKRA - -
fR ARz SMRE A E Al SN FISZ 1,862, 661. 89 1, 896, 662. 64
HiFEIELEMREEXMRER B G) - -147, 248. 37
FRr #5755t 52 M &5 - -1, 253, 308. 77
DEBEFRR R E (B E) - 29, 748. 46
it 55,567, 016. 44 3,911, 430. 30

e AR R B M TIRE s B R W SR BRI (U B A ] B9 K E e MR 4 R RO LML ISR BIE SR R R

% 135 T J 138



AR ARAT 2010 SRR A0

2, BHEH R SRS

FeErPERMERUETERR LEENNNERNDBRARZRBIEIESEEEEERAINM
B A AFRITIES 2 RERIEERBANE 09 S - #HE-WHFNERWEAITERIKE) (2010

FAIT) BB K HE T 4w 1 B -

TR
RS HAF) A8 B i a3 3R (%) HARSRIE HREERKE
JFE F A 5 B R B R RS T E 3.6 0.015 0.015
HBEZEEREREAR T A _30. 42 0. 194 0,124

18 AR AR ZR Y% F)

136 T J 138 U




Ll ASBERIRM AR AT 2010 FFERTE 4230

F+—T HFEXHBAR

—. BAZERRA. FERHATA. SHHHEARAZZHAEENWSIRS;
= BASHINESHAEE. MR EENEITRERY:

=, EHNEREIESSEERT LAABEINRE AR HNERR LS
B RETS;

m. EigasIERBRBERABDERE;

. EREFEXHEREIERS. 5 FAERRENMBRRKREZAILE

BEREKEAN, ARKFREE.

EEK: HFH

(FE)

LR RRBARAR
2011 £33 31 H

%137 ;L 138 W



Ll ASBERIRM AR AT 2010 FFERTE 4230

TiEB IR ERARAESEHNEREEAR
XAE 2010 FEEREH P EABIAER

RIE GEFIE) 3 68 FHIMEM (AFEITIEFH AR EEHEASTSH
ENE 2 5 (FERSMASERN) ) (2007 FEIT) BWEXREXR, £2E
THRMEZ AT 2010 FEERERF, HAVIAA: 27 2010 FEEFHRER R RR
TAREREENMFSKRMEERR, HHik 2010 FEEREMBERLFEETM
EficE. REUFAREEXNER, FRNEASHEMS. EREMTEMERE
AR FIET RIE.

RFIR A 2= Wl RILTE
BXBH < 8 RULREE TR
FHE HER T &
IR AER fa] A%

AR H  #
ELE B B

138 T J: 138 U



Shanghai Automation Instrumentation Co., Ltd
600848 900928

Annual Report 2010

Company Name: SHANGHAI AUTOMATION INSTRUMENTATION CO., LTD
Report Date : March 31, 2011
(A limited company incorporated in P. R. China)



IMPORTANT NOTICE

(I) Hereunder, the Board of Directors, the supervisory board, directors, supervisors and senior
executives of this company guarantee that the Annual Report contains no major omission, false
record or serious misleading statement and they will be responsible for the authenticity, accuracy
and integrity of it, both individually and jointly.

(1) All directors were present at the board meeting.

(Ill) There exists with the Company no fund occupancy for non-operational purpose by controlling
shareholder and its related parties.

(IV) There exist with the Company no external guaranties violating specified decision-making
procedures.

(V) An auditing report containing an unqualified opinion but with an emphasized paragraph of
matters was provided by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu CPA Ltd. Detailed explanation on the relevant
matters has also been provided by the Company’s board of directors and the supervisory boar.
Investors please be kindly reminded for careful reading if necessary.

(VI) Ms. Xu Ziying, the Company’s responsible person and the board chairman, Mr.Zhu Yutao,
general manager who is responsible for finance, and Ms. Zhao Jie, responsible person of
accounting organization (accounting chief) and CFO hereunder declare that the Financial Report, as
part of the Annual Report, is true and complete.

The Board of Directors
Shanghai Automation Instrumentation Co., Ltd.
Mar. 31, 2011
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Chapter | Company Profiles

l. Statutory Chinese name of the Company: tiEBaETRBEIRAF
Statutory Chinese Abbreviation of the Company: H{XJE >
English name of the Company: Shanghai Automation Instrumentation Co., Ltd.
English Abbreviation of the Company: SAIC

Il. Legal Representative: Xu Ziying

lll. Board Secretary and Securities Affair Agent

Item Board Secretary Securities Agent
Name Miao Danhua Qian Xiaoli
Address No. 41 Hongcao Road, No. 41 Hongcao Road,
Shanghai Shanghai
Tel. 021-54260980 021-54260980
Fax 021-54262329 021-54262329
E-mail bod@saic.sh.cn bod@saic.sh.cn

IV. Registered address of the Company: No. 41 Hongcao Road, Shanghai

Office address of the Company: No. 41 Hongcao Road, Shanghai
Post code: 200233

Website: http://www.saic.sh.cn
E-mail: bod@saic.sh.cn

V. Designated media for info disclosure: Shanghai Securities News and Hong Kong Wen Wei Po

Website designated by China Security Regulatory Commission for disclosure of annual report:
http://www.sse.com.cn

Annual Report: kept at: No. 41 Hongcao Road, Shanghai

VI. A-share stock listed at: Shanghai Stock Exchange
A-share stock abbreviation: SAIC Share
Stock code of A-share stock: 600848

B-share stock listed at: Shanghai Stock Exchange

B-share stock abbreviation: SAIC B-share
Stock code of B-share stock: 900928

VII. Miscellaneous:

Original registration date: Dec. 20", 1993

Original registration with: Shanghai Industrial and Commercial Administration Bureau
Registration alteration date of the Company for latest: Aug. 26, 2008

Registration alteration place of the Company for latest: No. 41 Hongcao Road, Shanghai
Legal entity business license: 310000400099813 (Municipal bureau)

Taxpayer code: Guo (Di) Shui Hu Zi No. 310104132204689

Organizational code: 13220468-9

Domestic CPAs’ employed by the Company: Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu CPA Ltd.

Office address of CPAs’ employed: 30th F Bund Center No. 222 Yan’an Road E., Shanghai
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Breakdown of business registration alterations:

1. Sep. 11, 1995, business activities altered: former activities included: “automatic equipment units,
instrumentation control devices, instrumentation and parts, industrial control computers; import and
export of approved goods; simultaneously operated in instrumentation, unit technology service,
mechanic and electric products.” Activities then altered to: “automation control system and automation
instrumentation, machinery and electric products and parts thus related; instrumentation units;
instrumentation parts; crafts accessories; technological service and consultation and investment in
establishing companies.”

2. Sep. 4, 1998, registered address of the Company was altered: former address “No. 1421 W. Beijing
Road Shanghai China”; altered to “Floor 7, Yixiang Tower, No. 1599, W. Yan’an Road, Shanghai,
China”.

3. Jan. 20, 1999, office address of the Company was altered: formerly “No. 1421 W. Beijing Road,
Shanghai, China”, altered to “No. 563 Xinhua Road, Shanghai”.

4. Jul. 5, 2000, legal person replaced: formerly Zhou Yongqing; replaced by: Xiao Zongyi.

5. Sep. 8, 2004, registered address of the Company was altered: formerly “Floor 7, Yixiang Tower, No.

1599, W. Yan’an Road, Shanghai, China”; altered to: “No. 41, Hongcao Road, Shanghai China”.

Taxatiion registration code was altered from former “Guoshui HuZi 310042520102073” to “Guoshui

Huzi 310104132204689".

May 14, 2007, legal person replaced: formerly Xiao Zongyi; replaced by Mo Zimin.

Aug. 26, 2008, legal person replaced: formerly Mo Zimin; replaced by Xu Ziying.

No



Chapter Il Summary of Accounting Data and Operational Index

I. Major financial data

Unit: RMB yuan

Item Amount
Operating profit -44.,050,302.23
Total profit 8,789,005.71
Net profit attributable to shareholders of the listed company 5,883,576.06
Net profit after ing non-recurrin ins/l
Atributable to shareholgers of he fisted company. ~49,683.440.38
Net cash flow from operating activities -6,775,805.13

Il. tems and total amount of non-recurring gains/losses:

Unit: RMB yuan

Items of non-recurring gains/losses

Amount

assets

Gains and losses from disposal of non-current

13,602,598.23

Government subsidy into current profit and loss

statement (except for those closely related to the
Company’ s operation, enjoyed by certain state
standard or certain quota)

40,101,756.32

Non-operating income/expense apart from above

1,862,661.89

Total

55,567,016.44

lll. Major accounting data and financial indexes in the last three years

(1) Major accounting data

Unit: RMB yuan

Increase
2010 2009 over prior 2008

year (%)
Operating income 974,919,404.29 | 1,118,092,213.70 -12.81 | 1,093,098,117.29
Total profit 8,789,005.71 3,207,453.49 174.02 8,398,041.81
Net profit attributable to
shareholders of the 5,883,576.06 5,724,545.83 2.78 8,125,686.89
listed company
Net profit after
deducting non-recurring
gains/losses -49,683,440.38 1,813,115.53 | -2,840.22 6,900,438.71
attributable to
shareholders of the
listed company (Note)
Net cash flow from 677580513 |  -7,373,472.11 n a | -29901,036.01
operating activities

Growth

End of 2010 End of 2009 over prior End of 2008
year end
(%)

Total assets 1,304,745,373.92 | 1,251,875,371.06 4.22 | 1,088,944,027.29
Owner's equity (or 166,008,324.41 | 160,618,864.14 3.36 | 154,374,022.88
shareholder’s equity)

Note: net profit attributable to shareholders of listed company after deducting non-recurring gains/losses is

-49,683,440.38 yuan, mainly being government subsidy income after deduction of R & D projects and current

year land disposal income and equity income.

(I1) Major financial indexes



Growth over same period

2010 2009 . o 2008
prior year (%)
Basic EPS (yuan/share) 0.015 0.014 7.14 0.02
Diluted EPS (yuan/share) 0.015 0.014 7.14 0.02
Basic EPS after deducting
non-recurring gains/losses -0.124 0.005 -2,580.00 0.017
(yuan/share)
Weighted average net assets .
earning ratio (%) 3.60 3.63 Down 0.03 points 5.35
Weighted average net assets
earning ratio after deducting -30.42 1.15 Down 31.57 points 4.54
non-recurring gains/losses (%)
Net cash flow per share from
operating activities per share -0.03 -0.02 n. a. -0.07
(yuan/share)
End of End of Growth over prior year end
2010 2009 (%) End of 2008
Net assets per share attributable to
shareholders of the listed company 0.42 0.40 5.00 0.39
(yuan/share)
IV. Iltems calculated by fair value
Unit: RMB yuan
ltem Starting balance Closing Current period Impact on current profit
balance movement
Financial  assets 1,404,463.50 | 823,150.80 -581,312.70 0.00
available for sale
Total 1,404,463.50 | 823,150.80 -5681,312.70 0.00




Chapter Ill Equity Movement and Shareholder's Profile

I. Particulars about equity movement:

(I) Total number of capital stock did not change in report period.

Unit: share
Prior to the movement Increase/Decrease(+,-) After the movement
Stock
Transferr Reform
Proportio | New Scheme Proportio
Bonu | ed from . Subtot
Qty n Issue S surolus (condition al Qty n
(%) S P ed sales to (%)
reserve
no
limitation)

II. Shares without sale limitation
1. A | 292,141,3 292,141,3
share 90 73.17 90 73.17
2. B| 107,145,5 26.83 107,145,5 26.83
share nn nn
3.
Shares
4.0Others
Total of
shares
not 399,286,8 399,286,8
subject 90 100.00 90 100.00
to
condition
al sales
. Total 399,286,8 100.00 399,286,8 100.00
shares 90 90

(I) Particulars about stock issuance and listing of the Company:

1. In the three years before the report period, there was no stock issuance or listing activities in the Company
such as supplementary issuance, stock allotment, bonus shares, transfer to increase capital stock, non-public
issuance of stock, exercise of options or rights, transferable shares from liabilities and other derivative

securities.

2. To the end of this report period, there was no external internal share held by employees.

Il. Particulars about Shareholder and Effective Controller of the Company

(I) Number of shareholders and their shareholding profile:

Unit: share
Number of shareholders at period end 51,657 shareholders in total, including 31,880 A-share
shareholders and 19,777 B-share shareholders
Shareholding profile of top 10 shareholders
shares
, Shareholder’s Ratio Total shares Moyement held Shares
Shareholder's Name N o During the - pledged or
ature (%) held Y subject to
ear o frozen
conditional
sales
Shanghai Electric (Group) State-owned 26.39
Co., Ltd. shareholder 105,359,357 0 0 No
China Huarong Asset State-owned 9.22 36,827,147 0 0 No
Management Corp. shareholder
China Great Wall Asset State-owned 353 | 14.114,501 +66,800 0| Unknown
Management Corp. shareholder
China East Asset State-owned 3.41 13,635,574 0 0 [ Unknown
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Management Corp. shareholder

Shanghai International State legal 3.03

Trust & Investment person 12,086,800 | -6,471,422 0 | Unknown

Corporation shareholder

. Domestic
Shenyin & Wanguo non-state legal | 1.89 | 7,530,650 | -3,200,000 0| unknown
Securities Co. Ltd.
person

Shanghai Jiaotong Domestic 0.58

University Enterprise non-state legal 2,300,000 -39,805 0 | Unknown

Management Center person

China Xinda Asset State-owned 0.49 1,087,963 0 0| Unknown

Management Corp. shareholder

JIASHAN SHEN O"eri‘szozat“ra' 0271 1070607 | -581,208 0| Unknown

Shao Jinru Oversese ol | 0221 85500 | +885,500 0| Unknown

Particulars about shares not subject to conditional sales held by top 10 shareholders
Shareholder’ s Name Shares not subject tq conditional Type of shares
sales held at period end
Shanghai Electric (Group) Co., Ltd. 105,359,357 RMB common shares
China Huarong Asset Management Corp. 36,827,147 RMB common shares
China Great Wall Asset Management Corp. 14,114,501 RMB common shares
China East Asset Management Corp. 13,635,574 RMB common shares
Shanghall International Trust & Investment 12,086,800 RMB common shares
Corporation
Shenyin & Wanguo Securities Co. Ltd. 7,530,650 RMB common shares
gr;:ra]?é;rhal Jiaotong University Enterprise Management 2.300,000 RMB common shares
China Xinda Asset Management Corp. 1,987,963 RMB common shares
JIASHAN SHEN 1,070,607 Shz_ares with forelgn. investment
listed on domestic market

Shao Jinru 885,500 Shares with foreign investment

listed on domestic market

Shareholders holding over 5% (inclusive) shares of the Company do
not have related relationship among them or belongs to the consistent
actionist regulated by Management Regulation of Information

Disclosure on Changing of Shareholding for Listed Companies. This
Explanation on the above related relationship or

consistent action Company is not aware of whether the top 10 shareholders of

circulating shares and the top 10 shareholders of the Company have
related relationship among them, or belongs to the consistent
actionist regulated by Management Regulation of Information

Disclosure on Changing of Shareholding for Listed Companies.

During the report period, shareholders who hold above 5% shares (inclusive) are Shanghai Electric (Group)
Corp., China Huarong Asset Management Co. Ltd., state-owned shares of which are neither pledged nor
frozen.

In this report period, there’s no strategic investor or general legal person who entered the top 10 shareholders
of the Company through participation in the allotment of new issuance.

(I) Controlling shareholder and actual controller profile:
1. Controlling legal person shareholder:

Name of controller: Shanghai Electric (Group) Co., Ltd.
Legal representative: Xu Jianguo

Registered capital: RMB 4.73068 billion yuan

Date of incorporation: May 28", 1998

Principal business activities: general contracting, general supplying or sub-supplying of complete sets of
equipment or individual equipment of power engineering projects; overseas labor services, industrial
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investment; manufacture and sales of mechanical and electrical products as well as equipment for related
industries; technical consultation and training for domestic and export projects, operation and management of
state-owned properties within the scope authorized by the Shanghai Municipal State-Owned Assets
Management Commission, domestic trade, etc.

2. Actual legal person controller of the Company:
Shanghai Municipal State-Owned Assets Management Commission

3. Block Diagram Showing Property and Controlling Relationship between the Actual Controller and the
Company

Shanghai  Municipal  State-Owned
Assets Management Commission

100%

Shanghai Electric(Group) Co., Ltd.

26.39%

Shanghai Automation Instrumentation Co., Ltd.

(1) As of the end of the report period, there were no other legal person shareholders holding more than 10%
of the Company’s shares.



Chapter IV Directors, Supervisors, Senior Executives and Employees

I. Directors, supervisors and senior executives profile:

Unit: RMB yuan, share

Remuneration
received from
o Starting Terminal Shares Shares the Company
Nam Titl o A time of time of held at the | held at the Increase Fluctuation during the
ame © 3 g€ service service beginning end of /Decrease Rationale report period
= term term of year year (RMB10,000
yuan, before
tax)
. Chairman of
. - 0 0 0 0
Xu Ziying the Board F | 41 | 2008-06 | 2011-06 No
Hu Vice M | 59 | 2008-06 | 2011-06 0 0 ol No 0
Honggang | Chairman
director
general
Zhu Yutao | manager M | 39 | 2010-01 | 2011-06 0 0 0 No 27.75
Party
Secretary
Ouyang | independent | \, | &7 | 5008.06 | 2011-06 0 0 0| No 5.00
Lingnan director
Dai independent | \; | 51 | 2008-06 | 2011-06 0 0 0| No 5.00
Jixiong director
Fei Minrui | ndependent | 1 4o | 5008-06 | 2011-06 0 0 0 No 5.00
director
; 4.40 (Note
LiHefu | naehendent| v | g1 | 2010.01 | 2011-06 0 0 0| No
irector 1
Huang director M | 53 | 2010-06 | 2011-06 0 0 0 No 0
Jianmin
aﬁgg director M | 58 | 2008-06 | 2011-06 0 0 0 No 0
Zhang director M | 32 | 2010-01 | 2011-06 0 0 0| No 0
Jianxin
Zhu director M | 45 | 2008-06 | 2011-06 0 0 o] No 0
Huiliang
;_e director M | 59 | 2008-06 | 2011-06 0 0 0 No 0
iaoyong
Supervisory
Zhang board M | 60 | 2008-06 | 2011-06 0 0 0| No 0
Fubiao .
chairman
Zhu Qian | supervisor F | 46 | 2008-06 | 2011-06 0 0 0 No 0
ﬂl‘r‘]’g supervisor | M | 47 | 2008-06 | 2011-06 0 0 0| No 0
Hong Ting [ supervisor F | 43 | 2008-06 | 2011-06 | 4930(A) [ 4930(A) 0 No 0
Employee
Liu SUPETVISOT 1\ | 53 | 2008-06 | 2011-06 0 0 0 No 21.60
Weimin Trade union
chairman
ﬂ.‘ang Employee | £ | 37 | 5008-06 | 2011-06 0 0 o] No 17.75
in supervisor
Jiang Qun | EMPloyee 1 £ 149 1 5008.06 | 2011-06 0 0 0 No 16.59
supervisor
H Ji Deputyl M | 45 | 2008-06 | 2011-06 444 (A) 444(A) 0 N 21.60
uang Jie | genera - ° 1 36100(B) | 36100(B) ° '
manager
Deputy
XU general
. manager M | 46 | 2008-06 | 2011-06 | 1755 (A) | 1755(A) 0 No 21.60
Daging | cpief
engineer
Xiao Deputy
) general M | 38 | 2008-10 | 2010-11 0 0 0 No 27.75
Weihua
manager
Wu Deputy
Jianxi general M | 46 | 2008-06 | 2010-11 0 0 0 No 21.60
janxiao
manager
Mao Deputy M | 46 | 2010-12 | 2011-06 0 0 0 No 24.21
Youwei general
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manager
Deputy

Wang Qi general M | 46 | 2008-06 | 2011-06 0 0 0 No 21.60
manager

15.54 (Note

Zhao Jie CFO F | 36 | 2009-08 | 2011-06 0 0 0 No 2

Miao Board F | 55 | 2008-06 | 2011-06 0 0 0] No 16.91
Danhua Secretary

7642(A) | 7642(A)
Total / / / / / 36100(B) | 36100(B) 0 / 273.90

Note:

(1) Independent director Li Hefu's allowance is calculated from Feb. 2010 on.

(2) CFO Zhao Jie’s 2010 annual remuneration is calculated by the 12 months’ salary plus assessment bonus

for Sep. to Dec. 2009.

In report period, total options of the Company held by the Company’s directors, supervisors and senior

executives are 0; number of restricted shares bestowed is 0.

(I Resumes of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Executives during the latest 5 years:

(1) Xu Ziying, from 2005, was clerk, department chief and vice general economist with Shanghai
Development and Reform Commission; from April 2008 on, is vice president with Shanghai Electric
(Group) Co., Ltd.

(2) Hu Honggang, from 2005 on, is senior manager of China Huarong Assets Management Co., Ltd.
Shanghai Office.

(3) Zhu Yutao, in 2005, chief of Corporate Restructuring Office of Shanghai Electric Assets Management
Co., Ltd.; July 2008 to December 2009, director of economic operation in Shanghai Electric Group Co.,
Ltd., simultaneously director of Machine Tool Division, Shanghai Electric Group Co., Ltd.; August 2009
to December 2009 part-time party secretary of Shanghai Electric Environmental Group; December
2009 to December 2010, director and general manager of Shanghai Automation Instrumentation Co.,
Ltd.,; December 2010 on, has served as director, party secretary and general manager.

(4) Li Hefu, in 2005 was Party Group secretary, director with Shanghai Municipal Nuclear Power Office;
from Oct. 2009 till present, consultant with Shanghai Municipal Nuclear Power Office.

(5) Ouyang Lingnan, from 2005 on, is professor and doctorate tutor with Antai Economy School of Jiaotong
University.

(6) Fei Minrui, from 2005 on, vice dean, professor and doctorate tutor with School of Mechanic Electricity
Engineering and Automation of Shanghai University.

(7) Dai Jixiong, from Nov. 2005, was vice director in finance and auditing with Shanghai Fuxing Hi-tech
(Group) Co., Ltd.; from May 2006 on, is vice financial director with Shanghai Lansheng (Group) Co.,
Ltd.

(8) Huang Jianmin, from 2005 till Dec. 2010, was president of Central Research Institute of Shanghai
Electric Group Co., Ltd.

(9) Wang Ying, in 2005, was Manager of Business Department of Shanghai Shangtou Investment
Management Co., Ltd.; from Jan. 2009 on, is senior project manager with Shanghai International Group
Asset Management Co., Ltd.

(10) Zhang Junbiao, in June 2005, was assistant manager of Whole-sales & Credit Department of Shanghai
GM Financial Co., Ltd.; in Aug. 2008, was deputy manager of investment bank business department of
Shanghai Dongxing Investment Holdings Development Co., Ltd.; August 2009 secretary of the Board
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and office deputy manager with Shanghai Dongxing Investment Holdings Co., Ltd.; November 2010 on,
Board of Directors Secretary and head of Compliance Office of Shanghai Dongxing Investment
Holdings Co., Ltd.

(11) Zhu Huiliang, in 2005, was Deputy Chief of Assets Operation Dept. of China Great Wall Assets
Management Co., Ltd. Shanghai Office; from June 2007 to May 2008, was Chief and Senior Manager
of Assets Operation Dept. of China Great Wall Assets Management Co., Ltd. Shanghai Office; from
June 2008 till Oct. 2010, was senior manager of Business Expansion Division Shanghai Office of
China Great Wall Assets Management Co., Ltd.; from Oct 2010 on is senior manager of Business
Expansion Division Shanghai Office of China Great Wall Assets Management Co., Ltd.

(12) He Xiaoyong, from 2005, acted as Deputy Chief of Internal Audit Group of Shenyin & Wanguo
Securities Co., Ltd.; Aug. 2006, was Chief of Securities Issuance Internal Audit Group of Shenyin &
Wanguo Securities Co., Ltd.; from Jun. 2008 on, is Attach of Securities Issuance Internal Audit Group
of Shenyin & Wanguo Securities Co., Ltd.;

(13) Zhang Fubiao, from Apr. 2005 was GM of No.4 Management Department of Shanghai Electric Assets
Management Co., Ltd.; from Jan. 2007 till Nov. 2010, was chief of financial budget department of
Shanghai Electric (Group) Co., Ltd.; from Nov. 2009 till present, is general manager of Shanghai
Electric Industrial Co., Ltd.

(14) Zhu Qian, Apr. 2005 on was Chief of Assets & Financial Department of Shanghai Electric Assets
Management Co., Ltd.. From Jan. 2007 on, concurrently acts as Deputy Chief of Financial Budget
Department of Shanghai Electric (Group) Co., Ltd. and simultaneously Chief of Assets & Financial
Department of Shanghai Electric Assets Management Co., Ltd

(15) Zhou Ming, from 2005, manager of No.3 Team of No.2 Assets Operation Dept. of China Huarong Assets
Management Co., Ltd. Shanghai Office; Jun. 2009, was senior deputy manager of No.2 Assets
Operation Dept. of China Huarong Assets Management Co., Ltd. Shanghai Office;

(16) Hong Ting, May 2005, responsible person and Senior Deputy Manager of No.4 Project Department of
China Xingda Assets Management Co., Ltd. Shanghai Office; Jun. 2006, responsible person and Senior
Deputy Manager of No.2 Project Department of China Xingda Assets Management Co., Ltd. Shanghai
Office ; Apr. 2007, responsible person and Senior Deputy Manager of No.3 Project Department of China
Xingda Assets Management Co., Ltd. Shanghai Office; from Feb. 2009 on, responsible person and
Senior Manager of No.2 Project Department of China Xingda Assets Management Co., Ltd. Shanghai
Office.

(17) Liu Weimin, Trade Union Chairman of SAIC since 2005;

(18) Zhang Min, from 2005, deputy manager and vice secretary of Temperature Control Manufacturing
Division of Shanghai Automation Instrumentation Co., Ltd.; from Jun. 2006 till Oct. 2010, was deputy
general manager, vice secretary and trade union chairman of DCS of Shanghai Automation
Instrumentation Co., Ltd.; from Dec. 2010 till present, is deputy general manager, vice secretary and
trade union chairman of DCS of Shanghai Automation Instrumentation Co., Ltd.

(19) Jiang Qun, from 2005, was trade union chairman and CPC general branch member with Plant No. 7 of
SAIC; from Apr. 2008 till Aug. 2010, was vice secretary of CPC general branch and trade union chairman
with Plant No. 7 of SAIC; from Aug. 2010 till present, is vice director of Party and Masses Working Office
and director of Party Office of SAIC.

(20) Xu Dagqing, Chief Engineer of SAIC since 2005; is deputy general manager and Chief Engineer of SAIC
since Aug.2006.

(21) Huang Jie, Deputy GM of SAIC since 2005.

(22) Wang Qi, from 2005, was vice director with Shanghai Meters & Knives Plant; from Jun. 2006 to Nov. 2007,
was assistant to general manager with SAIC; from Nov. 2007 on, is deputy general manager with SAIC.

(23) Mao Youxiong, from 2005 was general manager of DCS of SAIC; from April 2010, was general manager

of DCS of SAIC and simultaneously general manager of Power Station Engineering Co., Ltd. of SAIC;
from Dec. 2010 till present, is deputy general manager with SAIC.
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(24) Zhao Jei, from 2005 was manager of Assets & Finance Department with Shanghai Electric (Group) Co.,
Ltd.; from Aug. 2009 till present, is CFO of SAIC.

(25) Miao Danhua, Board Secretary of SAIC since 2005.

(1N Particulars about office-holding with shareholding companies:

Starting | Terminal
Name of shareholding . date of time of Paid or
Name ) Title : ;
companies service service not
term term
o Shanghai Electric . . Till
Xu Ziying (Group) Co., Ltd. Vice president 2008-04 present Yes
Hu China Huarong Asset Senior Manager of Shanghai Office 2004-01 Till Yes
Honggang | Management Corp. present
Huang Shanghai Electric President of Central Research Institute
Jianmin | (Group) Co., Ltd. of Shanghai Electric Group Co., Ltd., | 2007-10 | 2010-12}  Yes
Wan Shanghai International | senior project manager with Shanghai Till
Yi 9 Trust & Investment International Group Asset Management | 2009-01 Yes
ing . present
Corporation Co., Ltd.
. . Board secretary and Compliance Office .
Zhar)g China Oriental Asset chief of Shanghai Dongxing Investment | 2010-01 Till Yes
Junbiao | Management Co., Ltd. : present
Holdings Development Co., Ltd.
China Great Wall . . .
Z.hu Asset Management qulqr manager of Assef[ Operational 2010-10 Till Yes
Huiliang Co. Ltd Division of Shanghai Office present
He Shenyin & Wanguo Commissioner of Internal Audit Group Till
. . " 2008-06 Yes
Xiaoyong | Securities Co., Ltd. of Securities Issuance present
Zhang Shanghai Electric General manager of Shanghai Electric 2009-11 Till Yes
Fubiao (Group) Co., Ltd. Industrial Co., Ltd. present
Chief of Assets & Financial Department
; Shanghai Electric and concurrently acted as Deputy Chief ) Till
Zhu Qian (Group) Co., Ltd. of financial budget department of 2005-04 present Yes
Shanghai Electric (Group) Co., Ltd.
Zhou China Huarong Asset | Senior deputy manager of No.2 Assets 2009-06 Till Yes
Ming Management Corp. Operation Dept. Shanghai Office present
. . Leading cadre and Senior manager of .
Hong Ting China Xinda Asset No.2 Assets Operation Dept. Shanghai | 2009-02 Tl Yes
Management Corp. . present
Office
(IV) Particulars about office-holding with other companies:
Name Name of companies Title Startir)g date of Termipal time of Paid or
service term service term not
Xu Ziying No
:gnggang gganﬁza' Wujing Chemical chief supervisor 2009-05 No
Shanghai Textile (Group) .
Co., Ltd, director 2006-12 No
Siemens Industrial .
Zhu Yutao Automation Ltd. Shanghai director 2010-02 No
Sﬁéigg Shanghai Beiling Co., Ltd. independent director 2007-12 2010-12 Yes
Shanghai Xietong Science . .
and Technology Co., Ltd. independent director 2010-04 Yes
Li Hefu no
Fei Mimrui China $ystema_|tlc vice council director 2006-08 No
Emulation Society
ghlr)a Instrumentation stand!ng council 2008-05 No
ociety director
Dai Jixiong Ningbo Shanshan Co., Ltd. independent director 2008-04 Yes
Huang o
Jianmin
WangYing | Srianghal Fluili Gonstructive supervisor 2008-12 2011-12 No
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Zhang o
Junbiao
Zhu Huikiang | Shanghai Shenhui
Automobile Steering Gear director 2003-06 No
Co., Ltd.
gE:?ﬂgi;ﬁ;;lpéooneﬂ d chief supervisor 2008-12 No
Shanghai Non-ferrous New .
Materials (Group) Co., Ltd. director 2003-06 No
CS)ganIﬂZal Texile (Group) supervisor 2003-06 No
He Xiaoyong | Shanghai Shenda Co., Ltd. director 2007-06 2010-05 No
%:gir;% Shanghai Erfangji Co., Ltd. director 2007-05 No
i:ﬁ;% gga”ﬂza' Highly (Group) vice board chairman 2008-05 2011-05 No
Zhu Qian Shanghai Electric Group
Henglian Enterprise Co., director 2003-07 No
Ltd.
gga”ﬁza' Jiyou Mechanic director 2008-10 No
gr;anﬂza Electric Industrial supervisor 2010-04
Shanghai Electric
International Fire-fighting supervisor 2010-04
Equipment Co., Ltd.
Zhou Ming CS)ganSZal Textile (Group) supervisor 2001-11 No
Shanghai Packaging & .
Pape?(Group) C%. ?_td. supervisor 2002-12 No
Shanghai Coking & .
Chemical Corporation supervisor 2002-06 No
Hong Ting z’éf:)hua;)Bg(')yaE?dE'eCt”c director 2007-11 2010-11 No
Huang Jie | Shanghai Kangmaosheng | yic poarg chairman 2002-12 No
Yokogawa Test Control
Equipment (Kun Shan) Co. vice board chairman 2003-02 No
Ltd.
Shanghai Dahua Chino .
Instrumentation Co., Ltd. director 2003-02 No
State Nuclear Power
Xu Daqing Automation System vice board chairman 2008-03 No
Engineering Co., Ltd.
Shanghai Shenyou Electric
Wang Qi Appliance Equipment Co., board chairman 2009-12 No
Ltd.
Shanghai Dahua Chino .
Instrumentation Co., Ltd. board chairman 2009-12
State Nuclear Power
Automation System chief supervisor 2009-12 No
Engineering Co., Ltd.
gganﬁzau SK Transformer vice board chairman 2008-03 No
f/lgiﬁ:(‘ft'u':’i'r']‘;“c'\gacﬂ'gew board chairman 2008-12 No
iﬂf‘;fﬁgﬁ%ﬂ"ﬂ%f‘g@heﬂ% vice board chairman 2010-12 No
Wu Jianxiao agﬁggziggggig board chairman 2006-07 No
State Nuclear Power
Zhao Jie Automation System director 2009-12 No
Engineering Co., Ltd.

(V) Remuneration of directors, supervisors and senior executives:

1. Yearly remuneration for directors, supervisors and senior executives is made up of monthly salary
according to related stipulations of salary management and standards provided by the Company and year-end
bonus based on performance evaluation.
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2. Particulars about directors and supervisors who do not receive remuneration from the Company:

Directors and supervisors who do not receive Paid by shareholders or associates of the
remuneration from the Company Company or not

Xu Ziying Yes

Hu Honggang Yes

Wang Ying Yes

Huang Jianmin Yes

Zhang Junbiao Yes

Zhu Huikiang Yes

He Xiaoyong Yes

Zhang Fubiao Yes

Zhu Qian Yes

Zhou Ming Yes

Hong Ting Yes

(VI) Particulars about changes of directors, supervisors and senior executives:

Name Title Change Reason for changing
Zhuang . . .
Songlin Independent director Leaving post Tenure expired
Fan Youlin Director Leaving post Job change
Zhang Jianxin Director Leaving post Job change
Xiao Weihua Director Leaving post Job change
Wu Jianxiao Deputy general Leaving post Job change
manager
Shareholders
Li Hefu Independent director meeting election Recommended by the board of
the Company
upon renewal
Shareholders
Zhu Yutao Director meeting election Recommended by the board of
the Company
upon renewal
Shareholders
Zhang Junbiao Director meeting election Recommended by the board of
the Company
upon renewal
. . . Shqreholder.s Recommended by the board of
Huang Jianmin Director meeting election
the Company
upon renewal
Mao Youwes Deputy general Appointment by the Recommended by the
manager board management

1. The independent director, Mr. Zhuang Songlin, term expired, not acting as an independent director; the
company adjusted it on January 19, 2010; the Company held its twenty-sixth general meeting of shareholders
(the first Provisional in 2010), which considered and elected for the company Mr. Li Hefu as independent
director of the sixth board.

2. Due to job change, Mr. Fan Youlin, Mr. Zhang Jianxin resigned from the company director post; the Board
adjusted its members; on January 19, 2010, the Company held its twenty-sixth general meeting of
shareholders (the first Provisional in 2010) , which elected Mr. Zhu Yutao, Mr. Zhang Junbiao directors to the
sixth board of directors of the company.

3. Due to job change, Mr. Xiao Weihua acted no longer as a company director; on June 25, 2010, the
Company held the twenty-seventh general meeting of shareholders (and the 2009 Annual Meeting), and Mr.
Huang Jianmin was elected director of the sixth company Board of Directors.

4. Due to job transfer, removed Mr. Wu Jianxiao from deputy general manager duties for the company.
December 28, 2010, the company twenty-sixth Meeting of the Board of Directors agreed to appoint Mr. Mao
Youwei Deputy General Manager for the company.
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II. Particulars about staff conditions of the Company:

As at the end of report period, the Company has 1701 working employees and 63 retired employees on the
payroll.

The constitution of employees:

1. The constitution of specialties:

Classification Quantity
Production Staff 644
Marketing Staff 235
Technical staff 493
Financial staff 59
Administrative staff 270

2. The constitution of education background:

Classification Quantity
Doctorate 4
Master 94
4-year full time college 379
Junior full time college 349
Polytechnic and high school 614
Under high school 261
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Chapter V Corporate Governance Structure

I. Corporate governance status of the Company

In report period, the Company follows the Corporate Law, Securities Law, Governing Principles of Listed
Company and CSRC related requirements to further perfect legal person governance structure, has
developed the "fixed asset management system ", "Annual Report Major Errors in Information Disclosure
System of Accountability”, "registration system of insider information informant” and “users of external
information reporting and management ", made revision of the "Articles of Association " and "Some
Requirement on Investment Examination and Approval "according to the enterprise reality, in an attempt to set
up a mechanism featuring scientific and standard shareholder’'s meeting, board of directors, supervisory board

and the management.

As of end of report period, the corporate governance practice is in compliance with requirements of CSRC
“Listed Company Governance Rules” etc.

1. Shareholder General Meetings and shareholders:

In accordance with the Articles of Association, the Company ensures the equal status and fully enforcement of
rights and obligations for shareholders based on shareholding profile. Through the effective communication
channels between shareholders and the Company, all shareholders are provided with rights of knowing and
participation towards major events of the Company to ensure the sufficient discussion of each motion and fully
enforcement of shareholder rights. In order to safeguard the legal interests of both shareholders and the
Company, the convening and voting procedures of shareholder’s general meetings are standardized, which
are all witnessed by attorney. Related directors of the Company have not voted for the events concerning
related transactions according to withdrawal regulations, nor have they entrusted others to vote on behalf of
them.

2. Relation with the controlling shareholder:

The company strictly classifies the relationship with its controller and actual controller. The Company and the
ultimate shareholder have been independent from each other in personnel, assets, finance, organization and
business activities. The Board of Directors, Supervisory Board and other inner organizations are able to run
independently. Shareholder's General Meetings and the Board of Directors independently make all major
decisions of the Company. The controller does not occupy the Company’s fund or asks to guarantee for it. The
Company trades fairly and reasonably with the controller.

3. directors and the board:

The Company has adjusted directors and supervisors according to standard procedures and made timely
adjustment to the members of the four special committees in accordance with the change of directors and
supervisors. Number and composition of independent board directors have been conforming to relevant laws
and regulations. Directors were able to attend every board meeting and exercise voting rights according to
Procedures of the Board. Each director actively took part in the training provided by CSRC’s Shanghai Bureau
for qualification of directors and the following trainings. Independent directors carefully fulfilled their
responsibilities and provided independent opinions on significant events. The board committees under the
board were able to examine events carefully based on respectively “Detailed Procedures” they set up, within
their scope of responsibility before the board meetings and opinions formed were submitted to the board for
review. Especially in the company governance special campaign, the committees played an actively role in
fulfilling corrections and improvements.

4. Supervisor and the Supervisory Board:

Number and composition of the Supervisory Board have been conforming to relevant laws, regulations.
Supervisors were able to act according to Procedures of the Supervisory Board. The Company has always
adhered to the practice that supervisors attend board meetings. They were trained in the training provided by
CSRC’s Shanghai Bureau. The Supervisory Board made independent opinions on regular reports of the
Company as well as supervised over legality and standardization of the directors, managers and other senior
executives in performing their duties, delivered regular independent opinions, in an attempt to maintain legal
benefits of the Company and its shareholders.
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5. Info disclosure and transparence:

The Company designated the board secretary to be responsible for information disclosure. The Company was
able to truly, accurately, completely and timely disclose related information according to related stipulations to
ensure equality of all shareholders in acquiring information. The Company strictly followed related stipulations
to timely disclose information concerning detailed movement of large shareholders’ holding status. To further
standardize information disclosure, the company set up Managerial System on Information Disclosure and
strengthened the sense of information disclosure through training of responsible persons from subsidiaries
and branches and various functional offices of the Company, meanwhile combining the gradual introduction of
the OA system, so as to avoid any violations to stipulations or laws.

6. Management of investor relationship

In accordance with CSRC’s Stipulations on Strenghening Protection of Public Shareholders’ Benefits, the
Company endeavoured to protect the benefits of public shareholders. To further deepen relations with
investors, the Company clearly appointed the board office to be responsible for the management of investor
relationship. The board office strengthened the relationship with investors through telephone, email, web page,
seminar and receiving visits of investors. In this way, investors are able to better understand the company and
a good relationship is maintained. Demand of investors for information is satisfied to the great extent. The
Company made regular analysis on stock price trend, watched over and collected comments of the Company
from the media and investors. Thus the image of the Company has been improved.

7. Special campaign on corporate governance

Following the special activities of corporate governance, since the reporting period, the company launched the
rectification and review over the 2009 China Securities Regulatory Commission on site inspection visit, on the
Shanghai Bureau of Securities Supervision’s opinion on the “discrepancy between warrants and rights
holders” for the 6 units of real estate property of the Company; it has taken corrective measures to the ordered
decision (Shanghai Securities and Futures Commission decision [2009] 6) for review rectification. The
company conduct diagnostic procedures over the ownership transfer formalities concerning 6 units of its
historical house and buildings at Fucun Road Putuo District, Sunze Villiage Qingpu District, Beimen Road
Chongming County, Linshan Road Zhabei District, Yongxing Road, and Hetian Road. involving 26,600 m2 in
land and 20,200 m2 in house and buildings, and verified some of the property, due to the implementation of
the Government intention of old city transformation "administrative restrictions", the transfer of ownership
certificates can not be done; for the rest of permit transfer of property matters, the Company has developed
individual plans and has clarified relevant functional departments and responsible persons, according to the
rectification of the time nodes of implementation. At the same time, with site layout adjustment, the company
discussed many times with original major shareholder - Shanghai Electronics Development Holding (Group)
Company, in consultation at the end of 2010 to form the final "package"solution, the two sides signed the
"Agreement: on the land, real estate registration and return of rental property and payment of unpaid rent and
other matters. As of this reporting period end, the Linshan Road property was purchased on December 13,
2010 by the Land Development Centre, Zhabei District, (see details in the announced Nineteenth meeting
resolution of the sixth board of directors), and on 24 January 2011 completed the transfer of the property.
Transfer documents of the real estate at Fucun Road, has been accepted by Real Estate Trading Center of
Putuo District, and now it is in the process. As for the land lots of Chongming County Beimen Road, and
Hetian Road etc. theCompany is now working with relevant government departments and the coordination unit
- Shanghai Electronics Development Holding (Group) Company, according to the agreement and will collect
funding as soon as possible for the early completion of transfer formalities.

Problems not solved in report period
. Committed
The Problem Respg nsible Re"’!SO” for not Progress time to
y being solved
solve
"The company’s three In view of the | 1. Documents forthe
properties: Fucun former major | transfer  of  real
Road, Beimen Road shareholder - | estate  on Fucun
and Hetian Road in Wang Qi Shanghai Road have been | To solve as
Chongming County Electronics produced to Putuo | soon as
involved over land and Development Real Estate and | possible
housing and buildings Holding (Group) | Land Trading Center | according to
procedures not yet "package"solution and have Dbeen | the
completed, the warrant at the end of 2010 | accepted. Now it is | planning,
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holder recorded in the agreement, the | in processing. step by step
original is still the final  performance
controlling shareholder depending on the 2. Plans have
of the company unification of been made for
Shanghai Electronics certificates of land properties at
Development Holding and house by | Chongming County
(Group) Company. relevant Beimen Road and
The situation is in government Hetian Road. Will
violation of the departments, thus negotiate with
relevant provisions of the transfer former major
Article 24 of the process will be shareholder
"Corporate delayed. Instrumentation
Governance Holdings Group for
Guidelines." assisting the transfer
formalities.
II. Performance of Directors of the Company:
1. Attendance of Directors at meetings of the Board of Directors:
Two
Inqependent Expected Actual Number of Entrusted absgnces
Name Director or attendances by Absences in
attendances | attendances attendances .
not correspondence succession
or not
Xu Ziying No 9 9 3 0 0 No
Hu No 9 9 3 0 0 No
Honggang
Zhu Yutao No 9 9 3 0 0 No
Huang No 5"Note” 5 3 0 0 No
Jianmin
Wang No 9 9 3 0 0 No
Ying
Zhu No 9 9 3 0 0 No
Huiliang
Zhang No 9 9 3 0 0 No
Junbiao
i No 9 8 3 1 0 No
iaoyong
Ouyang Yes 9 9 3 0 0 No
Lingnan
Dai Yes 9 8 3 1 0 No
Jixiong
Fei Minrui Yes 9 9 3 0 0 No
Li Hefu Yes 9 9 3 0 0 No
Number of board meetings in report year 9
Including: number of field meeting 6
Number of meeting by correspondence 3
Number of meeting field & by correspondence 0

Note: Director Huang Jianmin was elected director to the 6" board at the 27" shareholders general meeting

held on June 25, 2010.

2. Performance of duties by directors

During the reporting period, all the company’s directors, in accordance with "Company Law", "Securities Law",
"Corporate Governance Guidelines" and other relevant laws and regulations and the "Articles of Association"
requirement, carried out due diligence responsibilities of directors related to the post, played their professional
expertise, and made positive suggestions for the company's healthy development; in the same time, actively
participated in relevant training, in an effort to improve the standard of operation level; directors voted in Board

meetings following relevant provisions of the rules of procedure, made careful consideration, careful

decision-making, and effectively protected interests of the company and shareholders, especially the interests
of public shareholders. The Chairman convened and presided over meetings, executed the Board’s collective

decision-making seriously and urged the implementation of the resolutions of shareholders and board of

directors and independent directors, secretary to the Board to create good conditions to perform their duties to
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ensure the normal operation of the Board according to the law.
3. Duty fulfillment of independent directors

The Company established Independent Directors Procedures, Independent Director Annual Report System
etc, which specify independent directors’ qualifications of employment, employment procedures, power
excercising principles, rights enjoyed, liabilities in checking related transactions, responsibilities and liabilities
in preparing and discloing annual report. As required by the said norms, independent directors fulfilled their
duties, care about and learn about the operation and legal performance of the Company. They actively took
part in board meetings and shareholders’ meetings.

At board meetings, independent directors made their pre-approval opinions, specific explanation and
post-review opinions on regular related transactions expected amount, profit distribution pre-planning, external
guaranty, standard unqualified opinions with stressed paragraphs presented by CPAs. On replacement of
directors, employment of senior executives etc., independent directors proposed their specific opinions, on
which decisions were made and submitted to board meetings for review. Thus, benefits of the Company and
shareholders are guaranteed. Standard performance of the Company was enhanced.

In the course of annual report preparation and review, independent directors listened to the management for
operations and implementation of significant issues in report period; listened to financial responsible people for
financial status and operating results; met CPAs on the planning of the audit and made suggestions and
opinions on big issues. Thus, a quality annual report is guaranteed to be disclosed.

4. Dissent expressed by Independent Directors on related issues of the Company:

During the report period, no independent director of the Company has ever expressed dissent on resolutions
of the Board or any other issues.
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lll. Independence of the Company from its controlling shareholder:

Done

independently

Remarks

or not

Business

Personnel

Assets

Organization

Finance

Business

Personnel

Assets

Organization

Finance

The Company features independent and complete operation
procedure and business system. Its business decision-making
is independent and market-oriented. It does not compete with
its ultimate shareholder.

Directors, supervisors and senior executives are originated
according to Company Law and Articles of Association. It is
independent from its ultimate shareholder in personnel and
salary management in that its GM, vice GMs and other senior
executives all receive salary from the Company, holding no
positions other than board director with shareholders and not
getting paid by shareholders.

The Company possesses independent production, supply and
marketing systems and supporting facilities, as well as
intangible assets such as industrial property, trademark and or
non-patented assets. The Company has clear defined property
relationship with its ultimate shareholder while the ultimate
shareholder has never illegally occupied capital or assets of the
Company.

The Company set up an overall management organization
according to its own business characteristics. Internal
institutions such as Shareholders’ General Meeting, the Board
of Directors, the Supervisory Board, General Manager and the
management operate independently and are not subject to
functional departments of ultimate shareholders. It has
independent premises and office.

The Company has an independent finance department with
independent accounting and finance management system
strictly separated from that of its ultimate shareholder. The
Company has an independent bank account, and pay tax as an
independent entity. There exists no guaranty for shareholders’
liabilities by means of assets, equity or credit.

IV. Internal control systems construction

General scheme of
internal control
construction

Accordign to Enterprise Internal Control Basic Norms by the five minitries
and CSRC'’s Listed Company Internal Control Guide, the Company started
from establishing and perfecting internal control systems to systematically
comb existing basic systems. On this basis, specific systems are built for
departments and posts; business procedures and managing manual are
standardized. Internal control is complete and clear in layers. Therefore,
“safty and completeness of all assets and risk control” are guaranteed.

The Company made planning and stage goals on internal control building,
giving internal control construction a specific requirement and working
joint. In report period, the Company established Fixes Assets Management

Work'T‘g pIann!ng System; revised Sales and Payment Collection, Purchase and Payment,

and implementation : . . X .

. on the basis of which established Receivables Collection Management
of internal control . )

system’s Measures, Sales Income Confirmation Measures, Internal Sales

. management Measures, Agents Management Measures, Inventory

establishment and M M W Material Di M

erfection anagement easures and aste_d ater!a isposal M anagement .

P Measures and related implementation detailed prescriptions. Meanwhile,
the audit and supervising offices made special audit over implementation
of Purchase and Payment and asset disposal.

Setting of | The Company clearly appoints the Audit and Supervision Office as the

supervising supervising office for internal control affairs, responsible for iinspection on

departments of | execution and irregular inspection.
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internal control

Execution of internal
supervision and
self-evaluation

The Audit and Supervision Office made follow-up supervision over
operating activities and financial income and expenses of the Company
and affiliated units, according to internal control systems like Supervision
and Inspection, as planned by the Audit Committee of the Company. It
also made inspections over internal control system making and
implementation and produced regular “Self-Evaluation Report”. In report

period, the audit unit made audit over the implementation of internal
control systems including Sales and Payment Collection and Purchase
and Payment eftc.

The board governs the “Audit and Supervision Office” as its standing
institute. As required by the audit committee, it made regular inspection
over regular reports and implementation of internal control systems and
drafted reports to submit to the board’s audit committee for review. On this
basis, the audit committee made suggestions and comments and submit
to the board for approval.

Arrangement of the
board on internal
control

Perfection of internal
control  concerning
financial accounting

The Company made accounting systems and financial management
systems according to related stipulations and made procedures over the
handling of accounting orginal documents, books and financial reports.

In report period, the Company considered problems found in the check-up
of asset management system and internal audit including Purchase and

Flaws of internal | Payment and established Fixed Assets Management System, Internal
control and | Sales Management Measures (Provisional), Income Sales Confirmation
corrections or | Management Measures (Provisional) and related detailed implementation
improvement prescriptions, and made corresponding “authorization and approval”

procedures, as a result having standardized the management of the
company and ensured its risk-proof capabilities.

V. For the time being the Company has no self-valuating report on internal control by the board or
reviewing opinions from the auditing department

VI. Evaluation and motivation of senior executives:
Remuneration of senior executives is linked with current year key targeted tasks and positions. Realization
proposal of remuneration of senior executives is reviewed by the remuneration committee and then submitted

to the board for approval.

VII. Establishing of responsibility investigation system for significant information errors in annual
report

The Company has established Responsibility Investigation System for Significant Information Errors in Annual
Report, which clearly stipulates responsibility investigation, procedure, fines etc. Upon implementation, the
system will help improve the quality of the disclosure of annual report and regular reports.

In report period, the Company has incurred no serious accounting error correction or serious info omission
supplementation or performance pre-claiming.
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Chapter VI Shareholder’s General Meeting

I. Particulars about Annual Shareholder’'s General Meeting:

1. The 27" Shareholders’ General Meeting of the Company (2009 Annual Meeting) was convened at the
Changgong Hall of Good Hope Grand Hotel (5" F, 500, Zhaojiabang Rd., Shanghai) on the morning of Jun.
25" 2009, resolution announcement of which was posted on Shanghai Securities News and Hong Kong Wen
Wei Po dated Jun. 25, 2009. The following resolutions are reviewed and passed through open voting:

) 2009 Report of the Board of Directors;

) 2009 Report of the Supervisory Board;

) 2009 Report on Corporate Finance;

) Report on Year 2009 Profit Distribution Pre-plan;

) Bill on The Company’s 2009 Annual Report and the Abstract;

) Bill on Amendment of Articles of Association;

) Bill on Replacement of Directors;

) Bill on Hiring Deloitte Huayong CPAs’ as the Company’s 2010 Financial Auditor & the Remuneration of
Audit;

(9) Bill on Anticipation of Related Transaction Amount 2010 of the Company with Shanghai Electric (Group)
Corporation and its Affiliated Companies;

(10) Bill on Liquidation in Advance of Shanghai McLink Electronic Co., Ltd.

(1
(2
(3
(4
(5
(6
(7
(8

Il. Interval general meetings

The 26" Shareholders’ General Meeting (2010 First Interval) of the Company was convened at the
Changgong Hall of Good Hope Grand Hotel (5" F, 500, Zhaojiabang Rd., Shanghai) on the morning of Jan.
19" 2010, resolution announcement of which was posted on Shanghai Securities News and Hong Kong Wen
Wei Po dated Jan. 20, 2010. The following resolutions are reviewed and passed through open voting:

(1) Bill on Nominating Mr. Li Hefu as Independent Director of 6" Board;
(2) Bill on Replacing Directors of the Board:

1) Electing Mr. Zhu Yutao as director to 6" board;

2) Electing Mr. Zhang Junbiao as director to 6" board
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Chapter VII Report of the Board of Directors

I. Discussion and analysis by the management
() retrospect of the operational status of the Company during the report period:
1. Particulars about overall operational status of the Company during the report period:

Following the board’s strategic thoughts of “focusing on 3 major fields, strengening major business, speeding
up development”, in report period, the Company sticks to the main line of development, targeting at remaining
stable and healthy as periodic goals, depended on means of deepening reform and structural adjustment,
pushed forward every aspect of work, and achieved the following 5 items of improvement:

(1) Made progress in the “three major” business areas

During the reporting period, the company focused on three major business areas, namely thermal power,
nuclear power, rail transport, and development achieved.

Thermal power business: instrumentation supporting project goes well, signing 23 sets of units accumulated |
& C project and the DCS project contracts, contract value more than 100 million yuan; control system has
achieved a 1000MW power plant business breakthrough.

Rail transportation business: within the year, what has been completed includes additional of car
empowerment for rail traffic Line No. 6,7,8, 9 and 11; No. 5 lines of etc.; completion of adjustment phase
functional testing of subway signal system for Line No. 7 and 11; the company has achieved conditions of
opening with the wireless CBTC function.

Nuclear power business: The Company relies on the localization of the third-generation nuclear power
projects and accelerated the development of instrumentation products, the pace of transformation and
adaptation. During the reporting period, the company won the first contract for SUPMAX800 systems and
instrumentation consistent with the requirements of nuclear power products AP1000. Meanwhile, temperature
instruments and other products experienced technical breakthrough and gradual develop industrialization.

(2) Gradual increase of the core competitiveness

During the reporting period, the company depended on State Nuclear Automation Instrumentation and
accelerated the introduction and assimilation of third-generation AP1000 nuclear power products and
technology. Currently, AP1000 technology digestion and technical research is progressing smoothly; and the
joint venture contract with Thales for a joint venture meeting requirements of the national domestic rail traffic
signal system has been signed; progress has been achieved in major technical transformation projects in the
nuclear grade and nuclear grade valve actuator agency project development, equipment modification and
plant construction; the proposed of establishing with British IMI Group a joint venture company on nuclear
power valve is the implementation process; the company is to enhance the technical level and product quality,
to continuously enhance development potential, and to gradually improve enterprise core competitiveness in
the market through the introduction, digestion and absorption of advanced technologies.

(3) R&D level to a new level

During the reporting period, another group of R&D projects gaining fruition: having completed 3 Municipal
Science and Technology R&D projects and the Science and Technology "863" and City Economic &
Entrustment Commission; 63 projects at company level and Grade-ll R&D projects completed, accounting for
66.31% of projects approved; the project of the "large-scale advanced pressurized water reactor core
cooling-lacking monitoring system and the nuclear level instrumentation development" filed by the Municipal
Economic & Entrustment Commission won the Electric Group of China Science and Technology Progress
Award and the Society of Instrument Science and Technology Achievement Award. In 2010, the Company
delivered 21 patent applications which have been filed; 12 patents were bestowed, including: 2 for innovation,
7 for utility models, and 3 for outer design.

(4) Quality of economic operation improve

Through deepening the reform, strengthening management and control in order to promote improvement in
the quality of economic operation, during the reporting period, in the establishment of the whole process of the
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internal control system covering operation and management activities, the company at the same time revised
its internal control system, formulated the "Measures for the Administration of Collection of Accounts
Receivable" and six other implementation detailed provisions; other activities include sales force
reorganization, combing sales agents, implementation of control systems, clarification of operating procedures,
which resulted in the initial formation of a marketing system combining market-oriented production, marketing
and technology. At the same time, the company implemented the national "Twelfth Five Year Plan", a clear
focus on developing the company's products, adopted "project manager responsibility system", set up
"industrial development research group", and employed "Chief Engineer", "Sales Engineer" "chief engineer"
and other measures, to develop the company's key products to a large degree, bigger sales.

(5) Business level of health effectively improved

In accordance with the corporate strategy featuring detachment between the main and the auxiliary,
concentrating on developing the main business, in reporting period, through equity transfer, cancellation of
business and other methods, the company completed the integration of 4 invested companies not of the
Company’s main business focus or with low-rate association to the main business, which optimized the
investment structure. Meanwhile, the Company launched across the company a comprehensive check-up
over assets in kind; it carried out the implementation of centralized procurement of raw materials through
Internet, centralized management of fixed asset purchases, use, disposal, which effectively improved the
health of the enterprise.

2. Particulars about major operations and operating status of the Company
(1) Major operations categorized according to industry and product

Unit: 10,000 yuan  Currency: RMB

| Increase
ncrease/ /
. decrease
. . Operating decreas | Increase/ decrease of
Industry or Operating Operating ' of ) i
. profit rate . e of operating profit rate
product income cost (%) operating operatin (%)
° income g ot °
0,
) (%)

Industry
Instrumentation
and apparatus 95,286.15 79,160.27 16.92 -0.13 -0.11 Down 2.48 points
industry
Product
Instrumentation 30,845.21 | 21,684.24 29.70 -0.25 -0.25 Down 0.07 point
and devices
Digital = control 2134419 | 17,058.64 20.08 -0.16 -0.14 Down 2.04 points
system project
Other ~ control 43,096.75 | 40,417.39 6.22 -0.01 0.01 Down 1.70 points
system projects
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(2) Major operations categorized according to region

Unit: 10,000 yuan  urrency: RMB

Region Major operating income Increase/ decrease of major
Domestic 85,224.04 -12.35%
Overseas 10,062.11 -21.28%

Note: Categorization is made according to end-users.

(3) Major products accounting for more than 10% of total major operating income or major operating profit:

Unit: 10,000 yuan  urrency: RMB

Maijor operating . . Major operating profit

Industry or product income Major operating cost rate (%)
Industry

Instrumentation and 95,286.15 79,160.27 16.92
apparatus industry

Product

Instrumentation and 30,845.21 21,684.24 29.70
devices

Digital ~  control 21,344.19 17,058.64 20.08
system project
Other ~  control 43,096.75 40,417.39 6.22
system projects

(4) During the report period, the Company’s major business composition, major business profitability had no
significant changes compared with the previous year.

(5) During the report period, the Company’s products or services had no significant changes or adjustments.

(6) Major suppliers and clients of the Company:

Unit: 10,000 yuan  urrency: RMB

Item Amount Proportion in total
procurement amount (%)
Total procurement amount of 12,112.84 15.11%
top 5 suppliers
Total sales amount of top 5 12,563.76 12.89%
suppliers

(7) Analysis of the Company’s financial situation and operating results during the report period

Unit: 10,000 yuan urrency: RMB

. . L Increase/
2010 Period-end | Period-beginning decrease - (%)
amount amount
amount

Total assets 130,474.54 125,187.54 5,287.00 4.22%
Operating profit -4,405.03 -111.53 -4,293.50 | -3849.64%
Net profit attributable to 588.36 572 45 15.91 278%
parent company owners
Net increase in cash and 812.01 811.29 0.72 0.09%
cash equivalents
Owner's equity attributable | 44 5 g3 16,061.89 538.94 3.36%
to parent company

Analysis of reason for changes: operating profit -44.0503 million yuan, mainly including 46.69 million yuan of
current year transfer of R&D project expenses, after deducting R&D expenses, operating profit 2.64 million
yuan, prior year operating profit after deducting R&D expenses being 9.47 million yuan, operating profit
decrease mainly caused by sales decrease.
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3. B/S items movement explanation report period

gains/losses

5. Cash flow items movement explanation in report period

ltem Closing Starting balance | Movement Reason
balance
Notes receivable 10.956,018.82 | 32,313,812.25 | -38.24% | Mainly due o current period
transfer of acceptance drafts
Dividends receivable 13,998.60 3,390,069.52 | -99.599 | Mainly due fo current period
collection of dividends receivable
Financial assets available Mainly due to decrease of fair
f 823,150.80 1,404,463.50 -41.39% | value of the shares of Bank of
or sale N
Communications held
Mainly due to transfer of the use of
Fixed assets 166,574,323.10 102,363,385.42 62.73% | investment in technical renovation
projects
Intangible assets 31,330,172.35 | 19,752,963.58 |  58.61% | Mainly due to addition of newly
purchased land use right
Lona-term orepaid Mainly due to expenses on
g-term prep 1,668,988.83 1,255,858.39 |  32.90% | renovation of operating fixed
expenses X
assets rent in
Deferred income tax Mainly due to set off of deferred
2,231,563.40 6,425,701.80 -65.27% | income tax with transfer of
assets :
deferred income
Employee remuneration 2 406,098.90 3.545 418.77 -32.13% Mainly due to decrea.se of .
payable employee remuneration unpaid
Taxes payable 2.996,84852 | 12,108,586.43 | -75.25% t'\gig”s'y due to decrease of unpaid
Non-current liabilities due Mainly due to increase of
oy 50,216,406.02 15,216,406.02 230.01% | long-term loans due within the
within one year ) .
following accounting year
Special payables 4149,767.00 | 19.477,056.32 | -78.69% | Mainly due fo transfer of
government subsidy
Minority interest 89,189.65 899,180.36 | -90.08% | Mainly due to decrease of
subsidiaries
4. P&L item movement explanation in report period
Item Report Year Prior Year Growth Reason for Change
Mainly due to current period increase
!nvestment 5.254.627.68 8.190,420.00  -35.84% of Ios_ses from .State.-nuclear
income Automation Instrumentation still under
construction
!\lon-operatmg 55 857 257.24 5785,005.57 865.54% Mam!y due to transfer of government
income subsidy
Non-operating 3.017,949.30 146234797  106.38% Mainly due to expenses on removal as
expenses a result of land disposal
Income  tax 2.917.477.26 2.106.963.81 238.47% !Vlamly due to movement of deferred
expenses income tax assets
Minority
interest -12,047.61 -410,128.53 97.06% Mainly due to decrease of subsidiaries

ltem Report Year Prior Year Growth Reason for

Change

Net cash flow from operating Mainly due to

- -13,455,805.13 -7,373,472.11 -82.49% | pay off of unpaid
activities .

prior year rent

Net cash flow .fr_olm investment -30,132,004.04 | -76,516,779.84 48.86% Mam_ly due to
activities receipt of land
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purchase
payment and
technical reform
project grants in
report year

6. Equipment use related to business operations, product sales and reshuffle of key technical staffs

In report period, the Company engaged in lean production. Use of equipment is normal. Part of backward

productivity was laid out due to demand of energy saving and emission decrease. Combining significant
technical reform implementation, existing production equipment is renewed and rebuilt.

Products are produced by order, almost no backlog; major sales markets and regional distribution experienced

no significant changes, the technical personnel stabie, a number of key personnel with core skills play an

important role in their post.

7 Operating conditions and performance of major holding companies and joint stock companies

Unit: 10,000 yuan

Currency: RMB

Reaqistered Asset scale Net Equity
Company Name Major products or services C?apital (total profit proportion
assets)
Shanahai Shervou Electric Production and sales of low-voltage
ng y control  cabinet, control panel, | 165.954 2693.68 41.44 100%
Equipment Co., Ltd. . .
associated devices and parts
Shanghai Jinggong Hairspring | Production and sales of hair springs 622.4008 89.74 482 75%
Co., Ltd. and provision of after-sales services ] ] ]
Production and sales of electric
Shanghai Microlink . . 710 o
Electronics Co., Ltd. compl_Jters and mstrumenFatlon and (USD) 0.58 146.28 75%
provision of after-sales services
Production and sales of measuring
gggg;;\;?kogawa Instrument and controlling instruments and whole Sg%() 2787.87 103.30 50%
set of instrumentation systems
Stat loar Automatt Nuclear Power Project | & C system
ate-nucliear Automation . . . . .
Instrumentation Systematic deg'gn’ system '.”tegr"f:ﬂon’ installation | 44 50000 | 11938.86 | -2614.68 49%
Engineering Co., Ltd. and commissioning, other engineering
services and related businesses
Shanghai Kangmaosheng Air | Production and sales of air-operated 110
7292.84 149.43 40%
Controlled Parts Co., Ltd. controlled parts and components (USD) ’
Production and sales of LP
air-operated controlled valve and
Shanghai Kangmaosheng related air-operated control system 210
. . .. 7296.20 675.01 409
Automatic Control Co., Ltd. and  accessories, provision of | (USD) &
after-sales services and technology
training
Shanghai Henghe Production and sales of flow meters 3825
Electromagnetic Equipment and associated instruments, provision (USb) 11726.59 | 1116.74 40%
Co., Ltd. of after-sales services

8. Investment return from single share-participating subsidiaries which contributed more than 10% of net profit

of the Company

Unit: 10,000 yuan

Currency: RMB

Major Investment Proportion
R operating Major earnings of net profit
Name of sharg _part|C|pat|ng Principal activities income operating Net profit contributed by of the
subsidiary ) A
profit share-participating Company
subsidiary (%)

Shanghai Henghe ECESVd;CetItZ?S aar:]: asssaclniisateotj
Electromagnetic ~ Equipment | . o 18153.21 5443.53 1116.74 405.27 68.88%

instruments, provision of
Co., Ltd. .

after-sales services
Shanghai Kangmaosheng | Production and sales of LP 9799.32 1614.65 675.01 218.07 37.06%
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Automatic Control Co., Ltd.

air-operated controlled
valve and related
air-operated control system
and accessories, provision
of after-sales services and
technology training

Production and marketing
of measurement systems,

Chino Instrumentation | precision measurement o
(Kunshan) Co., Ltd. and control instrumentation 6563.99 1166.76 564.63 110.53 18.79%
and intelligent instrument
sensors
Nuclear Power Project | &
Instrumentation  Systematic 9 ’ 1254.67 149.27 -2614.68 -1281.19 -217.76%

Engineering Co., Ltd.

commissioning, other
engineering services and
related businesses

(1) Outlook for future development of the Company

1. General development orientation of the Company

2011 is the first year to implement the "12" Five Year Plan". Although China's overall economic situation is
getting better, the international financial crisis has not receded; some new problems and new situations
constantly appear. In the face of the complex economic situation, opportunities and challenges, the company
will focus on the change of the development mode as the main direction, profit-oriented, to deepen "the market,
product, management and control, personnel, structure," and other aspects of reform and adjustment, and
constantly enhance fitness, competitiveness and profitability, and promote sustainable development of the

company.

2. New annual business plan

(1) Major financial indicators

Indicators

Operating income
Operating cost
Period charge

(2) Strategies and activities of the new year

Goal
110,000
90,261
19,500

Unit: 10,000 yuan; Currency: RMB

Up on year-on-year basis

12.83%
12.61%
-6.64%

1) Change mode of development, expand market share

In the new year, adjust the market structure; while ensuring market share in the thermal power, increase the

"nuclear power, rail transport, chemical industry, environmental protection, building materials" and other

areas of market expansion efforts. Standing firm on the platform of State-nuclear Automation

Instrumentation, strengthen team building and fight for greater market share; accelerate the pace of joint

venture on rail business, expand the market advantages of using mature products, and strive to become the

leader in rail traffic signal operations. Actively explore various channels of cooperation to set up a special

team, docking operations and services to enhance and expand the industry supporting business; focus on
the construction of marketing network, and expand market share in key regions.

2) Cultivate high-quality products, and improve core competitiveness

In the new year, the company will seize the "2t five-year plan" planning and development, cultivate a group
of new products in new energy, smart grid, and other emerging areas of things, and to meet market demand,
in line with industrial development, with a broad prospect, accelerate the formation of new economic growth
points. Meanwhile, further improve the secondary development system, speed up new products to market

and result conversion, improve and enhance the quality of the six already-established key products,
constantly improve the technology level, and promote steady growth in sales. Utilizing the second phase of
technological transformation projects and the opportunity of nuclear power development, improve product

level; relying on State-nuclear Automation Instrumentation platform and third-generation AP1000 nuclear
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3.

In

power localization process, focus on personnel, financial, and material resources to accelerate development
of nuclear power products and nuclear power protection system, and transformation of system adaptation;
strengthen independent product support and promotion in an effort to turn the advantages in sources of
technology into product and market advantages; continue to explore and search for technology transfer and
joint venture opportunities and solve company problems in the process of technical support, speed up
product increase energy levels and the pace of industrialization.

3) Focus on cost efficiency and improve profitability

Continue to tap the potential within the company to reduce administrative costs, sales expenses and
financial expenses, to promote the company further to change from extensive to intensive management,
meticulous management; relying on technological innovation as the carrier, make improvement and
innovation of the technology of existing products, materials, processes, tools, and enhance the company's
R&D capabilities and ability to resist risks; to be profit-oriented, step up the speed of the withdrawal of
backward products, and continuously improve the company’s profitability; relying on information
management as the starting point, engage in continuous improvement in management and administration
efficiency.

4) Make efforts to improve the management and health level

Strengthen the agency management. Based on the sorting of agents in 2010, the company developed credit
rating measures over agencies, and after comprehensive analysis, identify a number of agents with
large-scale and comprehensive ability. Meanwhile, establish and improve agency management system and
implementation details to regulate the operations of the agencies.

Strengthen supplier management. Make analysis of existing suppliers, and review their relevant
qualifications, set up strict network qualification examination system, identify a number of large-scale, high
credibility, good quality suppliers to cooperate, and regularly start re-evaluation mechanism, implement
long-term effective supervision over suppliers, to ensure the quality pof product raw materials and
component parts.

Continue to improve the assessment management measures over accounts receivable. Based on
examination of inventory of assets in 2010, build up the information control platform to improve credit
management, and continue to improve the capital turnover rate, reduce business risk; make diagnosis to the
company's existing management and business procedures to further refine internal management practices
and implementation details, so that an effective internal control will work on the risk prevention in business
operations; speed up investment in enterprise integration, and further improve the quality of company
assets, enhance the overall level of profitability; gradually form a dynamic mechanism system, use serial
incentives as the carrier, to create a "learning enterprise "atmosphere in-depth, and improve staff quality
standards and professional ability, guarantee acceleration of the transformation of the mode of development
and achieve healthy development.

Funds sources, and plan of use

2011, the company will developed the one hand the main business operations, expand sales channels, and

strictly control costs and improve profitability; the other hand, continue to promote the financing of
multi-channels, around the cash flow, the implementation of centralized management of funds, maintain

pr

oduction the balance of cash flow from operating activities; continue to reduce accounts receivable and

inventory, tfurther expand the types of online procurement, tfurther expand the effectiveness of cost efficiency.

4.

Potential risks with negative impact on the development strategy and operating goals of the Company and

countermeasures:

1)

With the progress of national economy and new low-carbon energy policies, the traditional thermal power
units used on the instrument will see reducing in demand. The Company emphasizes on the traditional
business areas such as thermal power projects also subject to new energy conservation policy. In this
regard, in the consolidation of the existing thermal power market, the company strives in search of
development opportunities in nuclear power and rail transport, and coal chemical industry, desalination
and other new areas, increase the fire power to open up the field of automation for the domestic market
and overseas projects DCS and I&C market and accelerate the expansion of market share.
The decrease of product gross margin will have a negative impact on improving the profitability of the
company: as influenced by inflation and price surge of imported elements and other factors, the cost of
products increases, the decline in gross profit margin is expected there. In this regard, the company
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intends to expand the centralized procurement by type, optimize product structure, nurture and develop
the company competitive products and other positive measures to improve the company's profitability.

3) Due to the national macro-policy implications of monetary tightening, the company’s cash flow and
investment capital will have a greater pressure. The Company intends to tighten receivables management,
increase the effective control of the agents and the achievement of effective marketing to further enhance
the quality of economic operation of the company. At the same time, continue to maintain with banks and
non-bank financial institutions a good working relationship and strive to ensure a smooth flow of business
financing channels to guarantee the normal economic operation.

II. Investment of the Company

1. In order to promote the industrialization of urban rail traffic signal system construction, on September 21,
2010, the company held its seventeenth meeting of the sixth board of directors, which considered and adopted
the motion that Shanghai Electric (Group) Co., Ltd., Shanghai Automation Instrumentation Co., Ltd., and
French Thales Group (Thales Group) jointly funded Shanghai Jietong Traffic System Co., Ltd., with a total
investment of 300 million yuan (for details see September 27, 2010 "Foreign Investment Notice ", published in
"Shanghai Securities News", Hong Kong, "Wen Wei Po "). As of end of this reporting period, the proposed joint
venture is still the approval process of relevant state authorities.

2. During the report period, the Company raised no funds and no utilization of raised funds took place in
previous period but continued till the current period.

3. Major project financed by non-raised funds and the progress

Project Name :r:%i%tt Project Progresses Project Yield
) . . . :
Applicable to 600MW-~ Fixed investment in the project has | oo 16 an
1000MW been slightly adjusted depending on :
thermal power ? annual capacity of
. changes in the market. As of end of the .
projects and other : , programme:
major projects as well reporting ~period, what has been Sales: 1.08 billion
as J[ranpsfcfrmation 200 million | completed include the DCS platform for Lan C
) yuan high-precision  pressure transmitter, y "
projects | & C systems . Pre-tax profit: 89.14
; i R&D and purchase of equipment for the o
integration and lectri c v th million yuan
automatic control smgrt e (_actrlc _ act_uator. urrently, the
svstem instrumentation project is still in the process of
Sy TR adjustment and acceptance.
industrialization
(1) Research and technology
(1) development the project involves is on
Large-scale PWR schedule and in progress; Converted to an
di i?al control svstems (2) What has been completed is part of | annual capacity of
ar?d nuclear 0\>/lver 299.3 million the transformation of production programme:

X power : equipment for the nuclear level control Sales: 620.08 million
valve industralization yuan valve: yuan
Eggi?;t?ogntefggggg'cal (3) The main plant steel beam Pre-tax profit: 69.87

proJ construction of the nuclear power million yuan
control valve production base of 17,300
square meters has been completed.
Total 499.3 million / /
yuan

lll. Reasons and impacts arising from change in the accounting policy and accounting estimation as

well as major accounting error correction:

During the report period, the Company had no any change in the accounting policy and accounting estimation

as well as major accounting error correction.

IV. Special note provided by the Board of Directors of the Company on Auditor’s Report for Annual
Report 2010 containing an unqualified opinion with an emphasized paragraph of matters issued by
Deloitte Huayong CPA Co., Ltd.
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Recently, an Auditor’'s Report for Annual Report 2010 containing an unqualified opinion with an emphasized
paragraph of matters has been issued by Deloitte Huayong CPA Co., Ltd (Deloitte Huayong CPA KuaiShi Bo
Zi (2011) No. ) reported that: “We hereby remind users of the financial statements to pay attention to what
is referred in Note [ ] to the financial statements that as of Dec. 31, 2010, cumulative loss of your company
has been 481 million yuan; unpaid bank loans and interest has been 611 million yuan (among which 34 million
yuan of loans and interest overdue). While Your Company has fully disclosed in Note [ ] to the financial
statements, there still exists significant uncertainty in the capability of sustainable operation. This paragraph
does not affect the publicly-expressed audit opinion”.

The Board considers that: what Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu CPA Ltd. issued in the stressed paragraph has
been mentioned in light of accumulated losses over the years of the company. In recent years, the company
has been focusing on the three key areas including thermal power, rail transportation and nuclear power,
which improved business status. With "600MW ~ 1000MW thermal power and other major projects |&C
systems integration and automatic control system instrumentation industrilization," and the technological
transformation projects implementation of "large PWR full digital control systems and nuclear power valve
industrilization", as well as to establish joint venture projects with international famous enterprises, the
company's future industrial development will enjoy a major impact. The Company refers to "high-tech,
high-performance, high added-value" and "things to do, things not to" as the industrial development strategy,
and conducts implementation of product structure adjustment. At the same time, through constant giving up
invested enterprises not of main correlation, digestion of redundancy and other measures, enhance their
capacity for sustainable development. Although the company has tried in 2010 for the above goals and
progress has been made, we are still concerned that the health of the company, profitability and core
competitiveness also needs to be improved. In the year 2011, the company will target the "12" Five Year Plan"
as the main direction of the development, implement the the guiding ideology "profit-oriented, quality-based,
so do health stability," further deepen the enterprise reform and accelerating the estructuring of market
structure, product structure, management and control structure, enterprise layout structure and staff structure,
and constantly improve the health of companies. At the same time, relying on the development State-nuclear
Automation Instrumentation and the cooperation or joint venture with the French Thales Group, British IMI
Group, increase energy levels and accelerate the pace of industrialization in order to achieve overall
improvement of the company's core competitiveness, profitability, sustainability development capacity.

V. Routine work of the Board of Directors:

(I) Particulars about board meetings and resolutions of the Board of Directors:

1. On Feb. 3, 2010, the 12" meeting of the 6™ Board of Directors was convened, which approved the Bill on
Related Trade Concerning Accepting Transfer of Assets Integrated Monitoring System of Shanghai Rail Traffic
Equipment Development Co., Ltd. .Public notices of these resolutions were published on Shanghai Securities
News and Hong Kong Wen Wei Po dated Feb. 4, 2010.

2. On Mar. 29, 2010, the Company held its 13" meeting of 6™ board, which passed the following 11 motions:

1) The Company 2009 Annual Report and the summary;

2) Special Explanation on Unqualified Audit Report with Stressed Paragraph by Shu Lun Pan Certified Public
Accountants ;

3) Final Financial Report in 2009;

4) Company 2010 Annual Financial Report;

5) Report on Distribution of Corporate Profits in 2009 (pre-plan) ;

6) Motion on Authorizing the Management of the company for Comprehensive Credit Line from Banks and
Other Financial Institutions for 2010 ;

7) Report on Remuneration 2009 of the Company’s Directors,Supervisors and Senior Executives ;

8) Motion on the Adjustment of the Special Committee Members of the Board ;

9) Significant Errors In Annual Report Disclosure Accountability System;

10 the Company Inside Information Informant Registration System;

11) Management Measures for External Information Reporting and Use

Resolutions were published on Shanghai Securities News and Hong Kong Wen Wei Po dated Mar. 31, 2010.
3. On Apr. 28, 2010, the Company held its 14" meeting of 6" board, which passed the following 5 motions:

1) 2010 First Quarter Report and Summary;
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2) 2009 Work Report of the Board of Directors;

) Motion on Delivering 2009 Annal Report and Summary to the General Meeting for Review;

4) Motion on Estimation of Related Trading Amount Related to Routine Operation for 2010 with Shanghai
Electric (Group) Co., Ltd. and Affiliated Companies;

5) Duty Performance Report for 2009 by Independent Directors

Resolutions were published on Shanghai Securities News and Hong Kong Wen Wei Po dated Apr. 30, 2010.

4. On May. 26, 2010, the Company held its 15" meeting of 6™ board, which passed the following 7 motions:

—_

) Motion on Hiring Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu CPA Ltd. as Auditor for 2010 Annual Audit and Remuneration
Scheme;

Motion on Change of Board Directors;

Motion on Adjustment of Administrative Organization;

Motion on Liquidation in Advance of Shanghai MicroLink Electronic Co., Ltd;

Motion on Revision of Regulations on Authorization Right for Investment;

Motion on Convening the 27" Shareholders’ General Meeting (2009 Annual Meeting);

Motion on Amendment to Articles of Association

~NOoO O~ WN
~— — N —

Resolutions were published on Shanghai Securities News and Hong Kong Wen Wei Po dated May. 29, 2010.

5. On Aug. 26, 2010, the Company held its 16™ meeting of 6™ board, which passed by means of
correspondence the 2010 First Half Report and the summary. Resolutions were published on Shanghai
Securities News and Hong Kong Wen Wei Po dated Aug. 30, 2010.

6. On Sep. 21, 2010, the Company held its 17" meeting of 6" board, which passed the following 3 motions:

1) Motion on Organizing Shanghai Jietong Transport System Co., Ltd. (provisional);
2) Motion on Adjusting Members of the Board’s Strategic, Audit and Remuneration & Appraisal Committees;
3) Motion on Recommending Ms Qian Xiaoli as Board’s Securities Agent;

Resolutions were published on Shanghai Securities News and Hong Kong Wen Wei Po dated Sep. 27, 2010.
7. 0On Oct. 28, 2010, the Company held its 18" meeting of 6" board, which passed the following 2 motions:

1) 2010 Third Quarter Report;
2) Motion on Authorizing the Management Responsible for Removal of Land Lot at 359 Baochang Road

Resolutions were published on Shanghai Securities News and Hong Kong Wen Wei Po dated Oct. 30, 2010.

8. On Dec. 15, 2010, the Company held its 19" meeting of 6" board, which passed by means of
correspondence the Motion on Authorizing the Management Responsible for Implementation of Purchase of
Real Estate on Land Lot at No. 45 Linshan Road by Zhaibei District Government. Resolutions were published
on Shanghai Securities News and Hong Kong Wen Wei Po dated Dec. 7, 2010.

9. On Dec. 28, 2010, the Company held its 20" meeting of 6" board, which passed the Motion on Hiring Mr.
Mao Youwei as Deputy General Manager of the Company. Resolutions were published on Shanghai
Securities News and Hong Kong Wen Wei Po dated Dec. 30, 2010.

(1) Implementation by the Board of Directors of resolutions approved by General Meeting of Shareholders:

1. During the report period, the Company held 2 general meetings of shareholders, resolution made by
general meetings of shareholders have been put into practice

2. Implementation of authorized matters by General Meeting of Shareholders

(1) The 27" shareholders meeting approved Bill on Estimated Related Transaction Amount between the
Company and Shanghai Electric (Group) Co., Ltd. and Affiliates in the Year 2010, which stated “in 2010 the
Company was estimated to conduct related transaction (including sales, labor providing, parts purchase of
digital control system, other control system, instrumentation and equipment) and house leasing, financing, and
technical service, totally amounting to 355.6 million yuan with Shanghai Electric (Group) Co., Ltd. and
Affiliates.” The reality in report period is: total amount of related transaction between the Company and
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Shanghai Electric (Group) Co., Ltd. and Affiliates for sales of products and labor provision is 73.8830million
yuan, which is within the estimates.

(2) In report period, the Company’s total financing amount from banks and non-financial institutes is 744.26
million yuan, within the authorized total amount of comprehensive credit line of 818.8 million yuan from banks
and other financial institutes as approved by the shareholders’ general meeting 2010.

(111) Duty fulfillment of Audit Committee subordinated to Board of Directors
1. Duty fulfillment of the Company in auditing work for financial reports in 2010

In accordance with Shanghai Automation Instrumentation Co., Itd. Board’s Audit Committee Annual Report
Procedures, the Audit Committee subordinated to Board of Directors met and consulted with Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu CPA Ltd. on Dec. 28, 2010 for audit work arrangements of annual financial report 2010 of the
Company before the certified public accountants conducted annual audit, combined with overall arrangement
for disclosure of the annual report, completion deadline of the first draft for annual financial audit report and
issuance date of official report, as well as the audit highlights during the report period 2010.

On February 24, 2011, the Audit Committee held its second meeting about the annual report. Participating
committee members and independent directors heard the company’s management report on the 2010
financial position, operating results and progress on major issues and the implementation; and the company
internal audit division’s " internal audit opinions on the 2010 annual report" members and independent
directors on unaudited financial statements asked on issues of concern to the company management and
financial officers; at the same time, they hope the management with Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu CPA Ltd. will
seriously implement the new accounting standards and related provisions, truey, accurately, completely and
fairly reflect the company's financial position and operating results, to produce audit report according to
planning.

Following the preliminary opinion on the annual report from CPAs, the Audit Committee on March 24, 2011
held the third meeting on the annual audit with Deloitte Huayong CPA Ltd and independent directors. The
Audit Committee considered the financial audit report (draft) and conducted in-depth communications on some
of the problems arising in the course between the CPAs and reached consensus that the audit report issued
by the auditors objectively reflected the financial position of the company in 2010 and operating results and
cash flows, the audit conclusions consistent with the Company's actual situation. Meeting members agreed to
bring the annual financial audit report 2010 to the Board of Directors for consideration. The meeting
summarized the audit work of the reporting period by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu CPA Ltd. and suggested for
the CPA firm as the financial auditor for next year, and submitted it to the Board for consideration.

2. Inspection on duty fulfilment of internal financial and auditing system

During the report period, Audit Committee subordinated to Board of Directors held 4 analysis sessions except
for above 3 thematic sessions on the annual report, and carried out an inspection for periodic reports of the
Company, analysis of financial operation, applying internal control system of the Company as well as issues
related to replacement of CPAs, etc. On this basis, Audit Committee communicated with the Company’s top
management and internal audit department, put forward views and suggestions with respect to rectification,
and fulfilled its supervision duties in effective and down-to-earth manner so as to promote the further
implementation of improvement in the financial management and internal control system.

(IV) Duty fulfillment of Remuneration Committee subordinated to Board of Directors

Remuneration and Assessment Committee reviewed the annual remuneration for directors, supervisors and
senior executives on the payroll and concluded that the remuneration disclosed in the annual report was in
conformity with the actual payment. Allowance for independent directors is determined based on the tenets of
related laws and regulations and the allowance criteria approved by general meeting of shareholders.

The Company has not yet set up equity incentive mechanism and executives’ remuneration and appraisal
system. The Company will further internal incentives and restrictions in the future, develop “benefit-sharing
and risk-bearing” incentive system which combines short-term incentives and long-term incentives, and
tighten up the close ties between the top management with the benefits of the Company and shareholders.

(V) Summary report on duty fulfilment of Strategy Committee subordinated to Board of Directors
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Strategy Committee has fulfilled its responsibilities in accordance with Rules of Procedure, and continuously
promoted the improvement of strategic planning for mid/long-term development of the Company and
implementation of strategic planning. During the report period, Strategy Committee debriefed the report on the
progress of the investment in the project I&C Systematic Integration Applicable to 600MW~ 1000MW Thermal
Power Projects and Other Major Projects as well as Transformation Projects of Auto-control System
Instrumentation Industrialization, and the report on such matters as international joint venture with the French
Thales rail signal system progress of the industrialization project and the proposed joint venture with the
British IMI valve business to promote nuclear power technology and market vision, and their views and
suggestions were put forward. Following this meeting, in the beginning of this year, once again it held a special
meeting of the Strategy Committee, considered special studies and research for nuclear power project
investment in the DCS by Huang Jianmin, member of the Strategic Committee, Director,President of
Academia Sinica Shanghai Electric (Group); the participating members proposed improvements to the nuclear
power project in the proposed self-DCS, and effectively promoted the implementation of strategic planning.

(V1) Summary Report on duty fulfillment of Nominating Committee subordinated to Board of Directors

During the report period, Nominating Committee held 2 special meeting. In view of change of directors of the
Board of Directors, and hiring senior executives, it reviewed carefully and made suggestions to the Board of
Directors, and effectively fulfilled duties of the Nominating Committee.

VI. Profit distribution scheme or capital reserve transfer to increase capital stock:

As audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu CPA Ltd., the Company yielded in 2010 net profit attributable to
parent company of 5.8836 million yuan, parent company’s net profit being 5.2587 million yuan. According to
the provisions of Articles of Association, the parent company undistributed profit firstly used to cover losses in
previous years, which was -475.3575 million yuan. Therefore, the Company will not carry out the distribution
for profits in current year or withdraw the statutory public reserve or statutory public welfare reserve. Moreover,
the Company will not distribute dividends, bonuses and capital reserve for transferring to increase capital
stock. This scheme shall be subjected to General Meeting of Shareholders of the Company (Annual Meeting
of 2010) for consideration.

Independent Directors’ Opinions on Profit Distribution Scheme 2010

We have reviewed Financial Auditing Report 2010 of the Company. The Company vyielded in 2010 net profit
attributable to parent company of 5.8836 million yuan, parent company’s net profit being 5.2587 million yuan,
year-beginning undistributed profit of -480.6162 million yuan, and the distributable profit to shareholders was
-475.3575 million yuan. We have noted that previous years’ losses should have to be covered despite of the
profit realized in current year, and the profit distribution scheme worked out by the Board of Directors conforms
to the relevant provisions of Company Law, Accounting Systems of Business Enterprises and Articles of
Association.

Independent Directors: Ouyang Lingnan, Fei Mimrui, Li
Hefu

Mar. 29, 2011
VII. Profit sharing in prior three years

The Company did not distribute profit in the years 2007, 2008 and 2009 due to negative profit in the
consolidated statements.

VIII. Construction of yystems on users of external information

To further standardize informant of internal information and external user’s behavior, the Company has been
practicing the Internal Information Informant Commitment on Secret Keeping Liabilities and the Internal
Information Dispatch Registration. Meanwhile, in addition to the said stipulations, the board established the
Systems on Internal Information and Informant Management and External Dispatch and Use Management to
avoid leaking of internal information and to maintain fairness in information disclosure.
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Chapter VIII Report of the Supervisory Board

I. Routine work of the Supervisory Board

There were 4 supervisory meetings during the report period, details as follows:

1. The 9" Meeting of the 6™ Supervisory Board was held on Mar. 29, 2010, on which the following resolutions
were reviewed and passed:

(1) 2009 Annual Report and its abstract;

(2) Supervisory Board’s Special Representation On the Explanation of the Board of Directors of the
Company on the Audit Report Containing an Unqualified Opinion with an Emphasized Paragraph of
Matters Issued by Shanghai Shu Lun Pan CPAs Co., Ltd.

2. The 10" Meeting of the 6™ Supervisory Board was held on Apr. 28, 2010, on which the following
resolutions were reviewed and passed:

(1) The 1st Quarter Report in 2010 and its abstract;

(2) 2009 Report of the Supervisory Board;

(3) Bill on Estimated Related Transaction Amount between the Company and Shanghai Electric (Group)
Co., Ltd. and Affiliates in the Year 2010

3. The11™ Meeting of the 6! Supervisory Board was held on Aug. 26, 2010, on which the following
resolutions were reviewed and passed by means of correspondence:

(1) 2010 Interim Report and its abstract;

4. The 12" Meeting of the 6™ Supervisory Board was held by means of correspondence on Oct. 27, 2010 on
which the following resolutions were reviewed and passed:

(1) The 3" Quarter Report in 2010 and its abstract

II. Independent opinion on legal operation of the Company issued by the Supervisory Board

During the report period, the Supervisors attended Shareholders’ General Meetings and all meetings of the
Board of Directors as nonvoting delegates, took part in discussions concerning major decision-makings,
offered supervision over the Company’s financial status and operating status. Supervisor Board concluded
that in report period, the board followed the Company Law, Articles of Association and other stipulations to
operate in standard way and strictly followed decisions of the shareholders’ meeting. Directors and senior
executives were able to diligently fulfill their duties, observe state laws and regulations, articles of association,
systems and standards of the Company, maintain the interest of the Company; no violation of laws or
regulations, or harm to the Company’s interest was ever found.

lll. Independent Opinions of the Supervisory Board on Inspection of the company’s finance status
By reading the financial statements of the Company, the supervisory board concludes that the financial
statements are true to the state of affairs and operating result of the Company; no serious omission or false
record has ever been found.

IV. Independent opinion on inspection of the use of the company’s fund raised last

During the report period, no fund raise was incurred or formerly raised fund invested into any project in current
period.

V. Independent opinion on assets purchase or sale
In report period, events concerning the internal disposal of real estate and the transfer of 66.76% equity of

Shanghai Zijiu Measuring Tools Co., Ltd. were all reviewed and approved by the board and all payment
concered were paid. The supervisory board believes: in report period events of the Company concerning
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assets purchase and sale, equity transfer etc. had been conducted in legal way; no behind-the-curtain
transaction or harm to the Company’s interest had ever been found.

VI. Independent opinion of the supervisory board on related transactions

During the reporting period, the acceptance of transfer of rail transport business of Shanghai Electric Group’s
subsidiary as well as the event that with substantial shareholder Shanghai Electric Group to invest with the
French Thales Group a joint venture. The voting procedure concerning this related party transaction is in
accordance with regulations. The transaction is conducted according to agreement. The disclosure of
information complies with open, fair, just and fair principles. No damage found, and the company and
shareholders insider trading.

About the Bill on the Company’s Related Transaction in 2010 with Shanghai Electric (Group) Co., Ltd. and its
Affiliated Companies as approved by the 27" shareholders meeting, the supervisory board believes that the
said transaction is routine business transaction in daily operating activities; material purchase, sales of raw
materials, receipt of labor etc are all accounted and settled by mutual agreement, follow fair and reasonable
market trading principles. The estimates for 2010 related transaction are in compliance with reality of the
Company. No behind-the-curtain transaction or harm to the Company’s interest had ever been found.

VII. Independent opinion issued by the Supervisory Board dedicated to special statement of
regarding the audit report containing an unqualified opinion with an emphasized paragraph of matters
issued by Deloitte Huayong CPAs Co., Ltd.

The Supervisory Board attended the 21™ Meeting of the 6" Board of Directors as nonvoting delegates and
carefully reviewed the 2010 financial audit report. All Supervisors who were present at the Meeting agreed
with of the Board of Directors regarding the Special Presentation on Audit Report for 2010 Containing an
Unqualified Opinion with an Emphasized Paragraph of Matters Issued by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu CPA Ltd.,
and hold the view that Special Statement is true to financial and operational status and in conformity with the
state of affairs of the Company, and the development prospect made by the Board of Directors is well
grounded and reasonable.

VIIl. Independen opinion on the substantial difference between profit realization and forecast
As reviewed, the Company had made no prediction on the profit of 2010, which is in compliance with the

requirement in Shanghai Stock Exchange’s Notification on Listed Company Working Well at 2010 Annual
Report which prescribes that related index can be exemplified from being released.
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|. Substantial lawsuits and arbitrations:

Chapter IX Substantial Events

1. Shanghai Automation Instrumentation Co., Ltd. and its subsidiary, Shanghai Microlink Electronic Co., Ltd.
as the co-plaintiffs charged Microlink Systems Incorporation USA (Microlink USA), Mr. Cai Xianxiu, Mr. Gui
Haojie and three related parties of Microlink USA in 12 indictments including breach of contracts, illegal
transference of assets and fraudulent conduct. The Company won the lawsuit according to the verdict brought
in by the North District Court of California, USA. (See the bulletins on Shanghai Securities News and Hong
Kong South China Morning Post on Nov. 29th 2001). In witness of bankruptcy of Mr. Cai Xianxiu, the case was
handed over to the Local Bankruptcy Court of California, USA. The written verdict was sent to the Company
on Dec. 13th 2002 (See bulletins disclosed on Shanghai Securities News and Hong Kong Commercial Daily
on Dec. 16th 2002). Dorsey & Whitney - American & International Lawyers Firm and the Company have been

seeking active execution of the verdict and currently that case is still in the course of execution.

2. Shanghai Feilong Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. sued the Company for dissension on joint
development of land plot addressed at 1496, Huashan Rd. Shanghai. The first and second instant verdicts
turned out on May 27th and Aug.23rd, 2002 (See bulletins disclosed on Shanghai Securities News and Hong
Kong Commercial Daily on Jun. 4th 2002. and Aug.27th, 2002). According to law, the Company made
complaints to Shanghai Senior People’s Court but failed and the Reject Notice on Retrial Application by the
same court was issued at the end of Dec. 30th, 2003. (See bulletins disclosed on Shanghai Securities News
and Hong Kong Commercial Daily on Dec.30th, 2003). In Aug.2004, the Company made appeal to the
Supreme People’s Court and the case was still in the course of hearing.

The progress of the said cases had been released in the timely report in the past years.

Il. Bankruptcy reorganization

No events like bankruptcy reorganization occurred in the report period.

lll. Other significant events and the impact and solutions

1. Equity holding in other listed companies

Unit: RMB yuan

Proportion Gains/ o , it
Stock Short form Initial in total Closing book loss in r;v:\?er:]:r?tuilny Accounting Origin of equit
Code investment equity value report iod entry 9 quity
(%) period report perio
Bank of Financial Purchase of
601328 | Communi 198,252.00 0.0003 823,150.80 -581,312.70 assets legal person
cations available shares
Jilin Long-term | Legal person
601518 £ 450,000.00 0.0001 450,000.00 0.00 equity shares as debt
Xpress investment | compensation
Total 648,252.00 - 1,273,150.80 -581,312.70 - -

2. By the end of report period, the Company holds no stock equity of non-listed financial enterprises.

3. By the end of report period, the Company had conducted no purchase or sales of stock equity of other listed

companies.

IV. Acquisition and sales of assets, corporate mergers

(1) Sales of assets
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Profit the

Rights

Net
profit

concerned Related and from @

assets Gains transacti Owner | liabiliti asset %

Trading Date of Price contributed or on or not Pricing ship es sales in =

Assets sold to listed losses (if yes, ! transf | conce total @

party sold sold : policy )

company from specify erred rned net =

from year sales pricing ornot | transf | profitof | 2

start till policy) erred listed =

sales day ornot | compa ©

ny (%)
Based
Transfer of 66.67% on net © O
Mo stock equity of asset 5 S
Songw [ Shanghai Zijiu 2010.05.24 | 571.57 -10.04 257.63 No audite Yes Yes | 43.79% % 3
ei Measuring Tool Co., dor D T
Ltd. apprai <
sed

Note: According to the company's development strategy, Shanghai Zijiu Measuring Tool Co., Ltd. was

included in the external investment projects to be cleaned up by the company. The proposal was considered
by the meeting of the general manager and approved by the eleventh session of the sixth board of directors
and resolution was made. (Board resolutions were published in "Shanghai Securities News", Hong Kong,

"Wen Wei Po" on December 25, 2009). In the reporting period, through e-auction at Shanghai Property

Exchange, the final transaction price is 5,715,708 yuan, which completed the .66.67% equity transfer
transaction of Shanghai Zijiu Measuring Tool Co., Ltds.

(2) At end of report period, the Company had no asset purchased or absorption or mergers.

V. Implement of option-incentive scheme

In report period, the Company did not implement option-incentive scheme.
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VI. Magnificent related transactions

1. Substantial related transactions resulted from routine operation
Unit: RMB 10,000 yuan

Selling good and providing labor to Purchasing good and accepting
Related Party related .pa.rty . labor from re!atgd party .
Amount Ratio in same kind Amount Ratio in same kind
trade (%) trade (%)
Shanghai Electric (Group) Co., Ltd. 3,629.88 3.72 -- --
glr;anr:ghal Metallurgy Mine Machinery 1,392.16 143 _ _
Shanghai Electric Power Station
Equipment Co., Ltd. 552.21 0.57 B B
Shanghai Environment Protection
Engineering Units Co., Ltd. 123.51 0.13 B B
Shanghai Boiler Plant Co., Ltd. 593.27 0.61 - -
Shanghai Electric Nantong Water
Processing Co., Ltd. 15.38 0.02 B B
Shanghai Shenweida Machinery Co., Ltd. 1.03 0.00 -- --
Etréanghal Yahua Printing Machinery Co., 88.07 0.09 _ _
Shanghai Electric Hydraulics and
Pneumatics Co., Ltd. 3.31 0.00 B B
Shanghal Electric (Group) Power Station 154.63 0.16 _ _
Service Center

Shanghai Electric Enviornmental
Protection Thermal Power (Nantong) Co., 3.56 0.00 -- --
Ltd.
Shanghai Rail Transport Equipment
Development Co., Ltd. 738.96 0.76 B B
glr;anr;ghal Electric Power Minhang Power 78.40 0.01 _ _
Shanghai Electric Group Co., Ltd. 13.93 58.63 0.08
ftt:janghal Electric International Trade Co., 30.37 0.04

Total 7,388.30 7.50 89.00 0.12

The 27th shareholders meeting on Jun. 25, 2010 approved Bill on Estimated Related Transaction Amount
between the Company and Shanghai Electric (Group) Co., Ltd. and affiliates in the Year 2010. The reality in
report period is: total amount of related transaction between the Company and Shanghai Electric (Group) Co.,
Ltd. and affiliates for sales of products and labor provision is 73.0674 million yuan, which is within the
estimates and authorization.

2. In report period, the Company had no such related transaction as asset acquisition, sales or equity transfer.
3. Related transaction involving joint external investment between the Company and its related party:

In order to promote the industrialization of urban rail traffic signal system construction, put forward the
development of the Company’s rail transport business, the Company signed with Shanghai Electric (Group)
Co., Ltd., French Thales Group (Thales Group) the Memorandum about Establishing Joint Venture about rial
transportation signal business (details see “Significant Event Warning Notice in "Shanghai Securities News",
Hong Kong, "Wen Wei Po " on Apr. 2, 2010). On the base of above, the Company, Electric Group and Thales
International under Thales Group are to jointly fund a joint venture, to introduce, digest and absorb wireless
CBTC subway signal system technology, to independently design, manufacture and sell within designated
area, in an attempt to become a leader in the domestic rail transport signal industry. On September 21, 2010,
the company held its seventeenth meeting of the sixth board of directors, which considered and adopted the
motion that the said “three parties” will jointly fund Shanghai Jietong Traffic System Co., Ltd. (provisional), with
a total investment of 100 million yuan. As investor Shanghai Electric (Group) Co., Ltd. is the largest
shareholder of the Company, the event has constituted a related relation where related parties jointed invest
externally. (For details see September 21, 2010 "External Investment Notice ", published in "Shanghai
Securities News", Hong Kong, "Wen Wei Po ").

4. Current accounts of credits and liabilities with related parties
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Unit: RMB 10,000 yuan

The Company providing fund to Related party providing fund to
Related Party related party the Company
Current amount Balance Current amount Balance

Shanghai Electric
(Group) Co., Ltd.

Total -- -- 3,000.00 5,189.32

- - 3,000.00 5,189.32

5, Other significant related transactions

On February 3, 2010, the company signed an agreement with the affiliated Rail Transport Company of
Shanghai Electric Group Co., Ltd.: the Company accepts transfer of comprehensive monitoring system assets
of Rail Transport Company at the price of 3,357,600 yuan. At the same time, Rail Transport Company
transferred the labor relations of all 22 employees involved in the above assets, to the company as SAIC staff,
in order to achieve a smooth transition; labor contracts between the two sides will be signed.

Considering that Shanghai Rail Transport Equipment Development Co., Ltd. is a controller subsidiary of
Shanghai Electric Group Company Limited, and Shanghai Electric Group Co., Ltd. and the Company are both
attributable to the same major shareholder ---- Shanghai Electric (Group) Co., Ltd. The transaction of related
parties has been completed in the first half of 2010. (See announcement published in "Shanghai Securities
News", Hong Kong, "Wen Wei Po" on February 3, 2010.)

VII. Major contracts and related implementations:

1. There’s no provision or acceptance of substantial trusteeship, contract, lease events occurred in the
Company in report period, or previous occurrence continued to current period.

2. There’s no significant guarantee event occurred in the Company in report period, or previous occurrence
continued to current period.

3. There’s no entrusted financing event occurred in the Company in report period, or previous occurrence
continued to current period.

4. There’s no other significant contracting event in report period.
VIIl. Commitments made in the report period and their implementations:

1. There exists no commitment with shareholders holding over 5% stake in report period or lasting to report
period;

2. Inreport period, there exists no unfulfilled performance commitment with the Company;

3. Inreport period, there exists no unfulfilled commitment to asset input or asset integration with the
Company.

IX. Appointment and removal of accounting firms:

In report period, the Company replaced CPA'’s. As approved by 15" meeting of 6™ board and later by 27"
general meeting, former auditor Shu Lun Pan CAPs is replaced by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu CPA Ltd. as
2010 auditor, annual audit remuneration being 980,000 yuan.

X. In report period, there occurred no inspections, penalties, public criticism imposed by CSRC or
public condemnation by Stock Exchange on the Company, its directors, supervisors, senior
executives, shareholders or actual controller.

XI. Other significant events

1. According to the basic facts China Securities Regulatory Commission Shanghai Bureau " transfer
procedures of six properties the company owned have not yet been completed, the warrant holder
recorded in the original is still the controlling shareholder of the company - Shanghai Electronics
Development Holding (Group) Company,", issued the " Decision on Shanghai Automation Instrumentation
Co., Ltd. Taking Corrective Measures" (Hu Zhenjian Jue [2009] 6). Implementation of its issues is detailed
in section V of Article 7 of the report "Corporate Governance Special Activities" section.
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2. Inthe report period, state-owned corporate shareholders - Shanghai International Trust Company Limited
continues to reduce shares of the Company it held. As of end of this reporting period, Shanghai
International Trust Co., Ltd. holds a total of 12,086,800 shares of the Company's shares, representing
3.03% of total equity.

Xll. Index of information disclosures

Code Date of Disclosure Title of Announcement Announced on
SAIC 26" general meeting (2010 first | Shanghai Securites News
. interval) resolution announcement B15
Lin 2010-001 2010-1-20
Hong Kong Wen Wei Po C4
Shanghai Securities News
i th i B12
Lin 2010-002 2010-2-4 SAIC ch Board of Directors 12 meeting
resolution announcement
Hong Kong Wen Wei Po B3
SAIC Announcement on Accepting Transfer | Shanghai Securities News
of Related Transaction of Assets Related to | B12
Lin 2010-003 2010-2-4 Comprehensive  Monitoring System of
Etr;anghai Rail Transport Equipment Co., Hong Kong Wen Wei PoB3
Shanghai Securities News
i i B32
Lin 2010-004 2010-3-5 SAIC stock trading abnormal fluctuation
announcement
Hong Kong Wen Wei PoA72
Shanghai Securities News
B169
Regular report | 2010-3-31 SAIC 2009 Annual Report Abstract
Hong Kong Wen Wei Po B3
Shanghai Securities News
i th i B169
Lin 2010-005 2010-3-31 SAIC ch Board of Directors 137 meeting
resolution announcement
Hong Kong Wen Wei Po B3
Shanghai Securities News
th i th i B169
Lin 2010-006 2010-3-31 SAIC 6 supervisory board 9° meeting
resolution announcement
Hong Kong Wen Wei Po B3
Shanghai Securities News
A10
Lin 2010-007 2010-4-2 SAIC 2010 First Quarter Loss Estimated
Hong Kong Wen Wei PoA22
SAIC  Signifi e Remindi Shanghai Securities News22
Lin 2010-008 2010-4-3 ignificant vent eminding
Announcement .
Hong Kong Wen Wei Po A16
Shanghai Securities
- NewsB119
Lin 2010-009 2010-4-23 SAIC .State owner Shareholder Share
Reduction
Hong Kong Wen Wei PoC7
Shanghai Securities
. NewsB108
Regular report | 2010-4-30 SAIC 2010 First Quarter Report
Hong Kong Wen Wei PoB7
Shanghai Securities News
th i th i B108
Lin 2010-010 2010-4-30 SAIC 6 Board of Directors 14" meeting
resolution announcement
Hong Kong Wen Wei Po B7
Shanghai Securities News
th . th . B108
Lin 2010-011 2010-4-30 SAIC 6 supervisory board 10" meeting
resolution announcement
Hong Kong Wen Wei PoB7
SAIC Announcement on 2010 Routine | Shanghai Securities News
. Operating Related Transaction Prediction B108
Lin 2010-012 2010-4-30
Hong Kong Wen Wei PoB7
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SAIC 6" Board of Directors 15" meeting
resolution announcement and notice on

Shanghai Securities News23

Lin 2010-013 2010-5-29 . th
convening 27 shareholders  general )
meeting (2009 annual meeting) Hong Kong Wen Wei Po A21
SAIC 27" shareholders general meeting | Shanghai Securities News11
Lin 2010-014 2010-6-26 (2009 annual meeting) resolutions
announcement Hong Kong Wen Wei Po B2
Shanghai Securities News 75
Regular report | 2010-8-30 SAIC 2010 interim report abstract
Hong Kong Wen Wei Po B5
) " . Shanghai Securities News46
Lin 2010-015 2010-9-27 SAIC §th Board of Directors 17" meeting
resolution announcement .
Hong Kong Wen Wei Po B3
Shanghai Securities News46
Lin 2010-016 2010-9-27 SAIC external investment announcement
Hong Kong Wen Wei Po B3
th ) th i Shanghai Securities News23
Lin 2010-017 2010-10-30 SAIC 6 Board of Directors 18" meeting
resolution announcement )
Hong Kong Wen Wei Po A12
Shanghai Securities News23
Regular report | 2010-10-30 SAIC 2010 third quarter report
Hong Kong Wen Wei Po A12
Shanghai Securities News
Lin 2010-018 2010-12-3 SAIC  significant  event  reminding | B11
announcement
Hong Kong Wen Wei Po B12
Shanghai Securities News
Lin 2010-019 2010-12-7 SAIC 6th Board of Directors 19" meeting | B42
resolution announcement
Hong Kong Wen Wei Po B2
Shanghai Securities News
Lin 2010-020 2010-12-30 SAIC 6th Board of Directors 20" meeting | B39

resolution announcement

Hong Kong Wen Wei Po B6
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Chapter X Fiancial Report
AUDITOR'S REPORT

De Shi Bao (Shen) Zi (11) No.P0459
[Translation]

To the Shareholders of Shanghai Automation Instrumentation Co., Ltd.:

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Shanghai Automation Instrumentation Co.,
Ltd. ("The Group"), which comprise the company and consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2010,
and the income company and consolidated statement, the company and consolidated statement of changes
in shareholders' equity, and cash flow statement for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements.

1. Management's responsibility for the financial statements

Management of the Group is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements. This responsibility includes: (1) preparing the financial statements in accordance with
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises to achieve fair presentation of the financial statements; (2)
designing, implementing and maintaining internal control that is necessary to enable the financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

2. Auditor's responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with China Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we
comply with Code of Ethics for Chinese Certified Public Accountants and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers the internal control relevant to the preparation and
fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.
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3. Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements of the Group present fairly, in all material respects, the company
and consolidated financial position of the Group as of 31 December 2010, and the company and
consolidated results of the company and consolidated operations and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises.

4 .Stressed Event

Hereby we remind readers of the financial statements, it shall be explained that the aforesaid finance
statements are prepared on the basis of Continuous Operation according to Note 10 to the finance
statement. By 31 December, 2010, accumulated loss of the Group had reached RMB 481 million yuan; by
31 December, 2010, uncleared bank loans plus interest due amounted to 611 million yuan (including the
overdue bank loan and interest amounted to RMB 33 million yuan). Although the Group has fully disclosed
the planned improvement measures in Note 10 to the finance statements, the main conditions and facts still
lead to substantial doubt and uncertainty about the Group’s continuous operation ability. The context of this
paragraph will not produce an effect on the issued reporting type as unqualified opinion.

5. Other Event

The company’s and consolidated balance sheets as at 31 December 2009, and the company’s and
consolidated income statements, the company’s and consolidated statements of changes in shareholders’
equity and the company’s and consolidated cash flow statements for the period then ended, and the notes

to the financial statements were audited by other CPA firm, and standard unqualified opinions with stressed
event were issued on 31 March, 2010.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu CPA Ltd. Chinese Certified Public Accountant:

Shanghai, China Yuan Shou Qing
Shen Jian Wen

29 March 2011
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SHANGHAI AUTOMATION INSTRUMENTATION CO., LTD.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010

Consolidated balance sheets

RMB

Item

Note

31/12/2010

31/12/2009

Current Assets:

Currency funds

(V)1

178,060,638.03

182,041,427.88

Balances with clearing corporations

Placements with other financial institutions

Financial assets held for trading

Notes receivable

19,956,018.82

32,313,812.25

Accounts receivable

453,899,372.04

435,934,262.01

Prepayments

69,820,701.88

73,233,778.49

Premiums receivable

Amounts receivable under reinsurance
contracts

Ceded insurance reserves

Interest receivable

Dividends receivable

13,998.60

3,390,969.52

Other receivables

25,607,417.69

31,194,320.21

Financial assets purchased under
agreements to resell

Inventories

175,933,652.18

196,109,658.85

Non-current assets due within one year

Other current assets

Total current assets

923,291,799.24

954,218,229.21

Non-current Assets:

Entrusted loans and advances to customers

Available-for-sale financial assets

(V)8

823,150.80

1,404,463.50

Held-to-maturity investments

Long-term receivables

Long-term equity investments

(V)9,10

127,149,400.93

100,288,278.29

Investment properties

Fixed assets

V)11

166,574,323.10

102,363,385.42

Construction in progress

(V)12

48,765,248.39

66,139,963.07

Construction project materials

26,527.80

Disposal of fixed assets

Bearer biological assets

Oil and gas assets

Intangible assets

31,330,172.35

19,752,963.58

Exploration expenditures

2,910,726.88

Goodwill

Long-term deferred expenses

1,668,988.83

1,255,858.39

Deferred tax assets

2,231,563.40

6,425,701.80

Other non-current assets

Total non-current assets

381,453,574.68

297,657,141.85

TOTAL ASSETS

1,304,745,373.92

1,251,875,371.06
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SHANGHAI AUTOMATION INSTRUMENTATION CO., LTD.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010

Consolidated balance sheets - continued

RMB

Item

Note

31/12/2010

31/12/2009

Current Liabilities:

Short-term borrowings

V)17

425,639,446.21

371,658,982.64

Loans from the central bank

Customer deposits and
Deposits from other financial institutions

Placements from other financial institutions

Financial liabilities held for trading

Bills payable

1,442,630.10

Accounts payable

298,104,606.57

300,698,697.02

Advance from customers

94,453,048.19

72,908,394.70

Financial assets sold under agreements to
repurchase

Fee and commission payable

Employee benefits payable

2,406,098.90

3,5645,418.77

Taxes payable

2,996,848.52

12,108,586.43

Interest payable

19,988,414.57

18,821,5672.12

Dividends payable

4,482,460.25

4,482,460.25

Other payables

77,503,133.53

84,066,820.56

Amounts payable under reinsurance
contracts

Reinsurance contract reserves

Client monies received on trust for securities
trading

Amounts payable to clients under securities
underwriting arrangements

Non-current liabilities due within one year

50,216,406.02

15,216,406.02

Other current liabilities

Total current liabilities

977,233,092.86

883,507,338.51

Non-current Liabilities:

Long-term borrowings

115,500,000.00

153,500,000.00

Bonds issued

Long-term payables

Special-purpose funds received

4,149,767.00

19,477,056.32

Provisions

Deferred tax liabilities

180,931.73

Other non-current liabilities

41,765,000.00

33,692,000.00

Total non-current liabilities

161,414,767.00

206,849,988.05

TOTAL LIABILITIES

1,138,647,859.86

1,090,357,326.56

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY:

Paid-in capital

399,286,890.00

399,286,890.00

Capital reserves

225,120,669.80

225,614,785.59

Less: Treasury shares

Special reserve

Surplus reserves

22,767,526.37

22,767,526.37

General reserve

Unappropriated profit

-481,166,761.76

-487,050,337.82

Translation differences arising on translation
of

financial statements denominated in foreign
currencies

Total shareholders' equity attributable to
equity holders of the parent

166,008,324.41

160,618,864.14

Minority interests

89,189.65

899,180.36

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

166,097,514.06

161,518,044.50

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

1,304,745,373.92

1,251,875,371.06
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SHANGHAI AUTOMATION INSTRUMENTATION CO., LTD.

The accompanying notes form part of the financial statements.

The financial statements on pages 3 to 109 were signed by the following:

Legal Representative Chief Accountant
Person in Charge of the Accounting Body:
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SHANGHAI AUTOMATION INSTRUMENTATION CO., LTD.

THE COMPANY BALANCE SHEET

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010

THE COMPANY BALANCE SHEET

RMB

Item

Note 31/12/2010

31/12/2009

Current Assets:

Currency funds

176,554,033.75

178,547,701.19

Financial assets held for trading

Notes receivable

19,565,591.47

29,845,508.20

Accounts receivable

(XD1 447,816,108.76

431,834,835.25

Prepayment

69,744,947.20

73,103,507.27

Interest receivable

Dividends receivable 393,458.91 3,770,429.83
Other receivables (XN2 32,447,143.24 31,201,708.39
Inventories (X3 172,877,212.71 190,670,799.19

Non-current assets due within one year

Other current assets

Total current assets

919,398,496.04

938,974,489.32

Non-current Assets:

Available-for-sale financial assets 823,150.80 1,404,463.50
Held-to-maturity investments

Long-term receivables

Long-term equity investments (XD4,5 135,196,492.93 108,755,370.29

Investment properties

Fixed assets

165,371,441.58

100,543,594.42

Construction in progress

48,765,248.39

66,139,963.07

Construction project materials

26,527.80

Disposal of fixed assets

Bearer biological assets

Qil and gas assets

Intangible assets

31,330,172.35

19,752,963.58

Exploration expenditures 2,910,726.88 -
Goodwill

Long-term deferred expenses 1,668,988.83 1,255,858.39
Deferred tax assets 2,194,747.12 6,304,920.69

Other non-current assets

Total non-current assets

388,260,968.88

304,183,661.74

TOTAL ASSETS

1,307,659,464.92

1,243,158,151.06
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THE COMPANY BALANCE SHEET
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010

THE COMPANY BALANCE SHEET-CONTINUED

RMB
Item Note 31/12/2010 31/12/2009
Current Liabilities:
Short-term borrowings 414,989,018.86 370,959,018.86
Held-for-trading financial liabilities
Bill payable 11,842,630.10 -
Accounts payable 294,753,156.33 290,587,760.95
Advances from customers 94,082,227.00 70,983,140.89
Employee benefits payable 2,368,946.94 2,405,383.93
Tax payable 2,922,610.83 11,909,046.86
Interest payable 19,988,414.57 18,821,572.12
Dividends payable 4,482,460.25 4,482,460.25
Other payables 77,932,695.78 83,041,793.81
Non-current liabilities due within one year 50,216,406.02 15,216,406.02

Other current liabilities

Total current liabilities

973,578,566.68

868,406,583.69

Non-current Liabilities:

Long-term borrowings 115,500,000.00 153,500,000.00
Bonds issued

Long-term payables

Special-purpose funds received 4,149,767.00 19,477,056.32

Provisions

Deferred tax liabilities

180,931.73

Other non-current liabilities

41,765,000.00

33,692,000.00

Total non-current liabilities

161,414,767.00

206,849,988.05

TOTAL LIABILITIES

1,134,993,333.68

1,075,256,571.74

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY:

Paid-in capital

399,286,890.00

399,286,890.00

Capital reserve

225,969,215.22

226,463,331.01

Less: Treasury shares

Special reserve

Surplus reserves

22,767,526.37

22,767,526.37

General reserve

Unappropriated profit

-475,357,500.35

-480,616,168.06

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

172,666,131.24

167,901,579.32

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

1,307,659,464.92

1,243,158,151.06

The accompanying notes form part of the financial statements.
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Consolidated income statements
for the year ended 31 December 2010

Consolidated income statements
RMB
Iltem Note 2010 2009
I. Operating income 974,919,404.29 1,118,092,213.70
Including: operating income (V)34 974,919,404.29 1,118,092,213.70
Interest income
Insurance premium income
Fee and commission income
Il. Operating cost 1,024,224,334.20 1,127,397,927.81
Including: operating cost (V)34 801,533,530.25 895,116,776.14
Interest expenses
Fee and commission expense
Insurance policy surrenders
Claims and benefits paid
Changes in insurance reserves
Policyholder dividends
Expenses for inward reinsurance
Business tax and surcharges (V)35 6,737,115.93 6,389,892.95
Selling expenses (V)36 50,497,268.12 43,692,034.19
Administrative expenses (V)37 137,599,915.76 150,832,208.46
Financial expenses (V)38 20,777,086.47 23,335,876.21
Asset impairment losses (V)39 7,079,417.67 8,031,139.86
Add: Gains or losses arising from
changes in fair value
Investment income (V)40 5,254,627.68 8,190,420.00
Ir)c_ludmg. Income from investment in associates -4,038,825.93 1,224.009.94
and joint ventures
Exchange gains and losses
lll. Operating profit -44,050,302.23 -1,115,294.11
Add: Non-operating income (V)41 55,857,257.24 5,785,095.57
Less: Non-operating expenses (V)42 3,017,949.30 1,462,347.97
asseItr;cludmg. Losses on disposal of non-current 2.695,900.57 319,478.71
IV. Total profit 8,789,005.71 3,207,453.49
Less: Income tax expenses (V)43 2,917,477.26 -2,106,963.81
V. Net profit 5,871,528.45 5,314,417.30
Fl)\laei:caﬁ[oﬁt attributable to shareholders of the 5.883.576.06 5.724.545.83
Profit or loss attributable to minority interests -12,047 .61 -410,128.53
VI. Earnings per share: (V)44
(I) Basic earnings per share 0.015 0.014
(1) Diluted earnings per share 0.015 0.014
VII. Other comprehensive gain and loss (V)45 -494,115.79 502,523.77
VIIl. Total comprehensive gain and loss 5,377,412.66 5,816,941.07
Comprehensive gain and loss attributable to 5.389.460.27 6,227.069.60
shareholders of the parent
Comprehensive gain and loss attributable to -12,047.61 -410,128.53

minority interests

No business combinations involving entities under common control have been occurred in the current year.

The accompanying notes form part of the financial statements.
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The Company income statements
for the year ended 31 December 2010

The Company income statements

RMB
Iltem Note 2010 2009
I. Operating income (X)6 924,414,886.88 1,068,602,060.30
Less: Operating cost (X6 757,521,707.88 859,146,449.50
Business tax and surcharges 6,469,330.75 5,997,077.70
Selling expenses 48,685,213.62 41,451,016.51
Administrative expenses 133,682,101.22 140,216,887.21
Financial expenses 20,531,735.03 23,208,575.04
Asset impairment losses X7 6,588,663.81 6,790,365.64
Add: Gains arising from changes in fair value
(Losses) ) )
Investment income(Loss) (X8 6,280,225.04 11,746,670.61
' Includlpg: Income from investment in -4,038,825.93 1,224.009.94
associates and joint ventures
Il.  Operating profit(Loss) -42,783,640.39 3,538,359.31
Add: Non-operating income 53,734,428.86 5,781,818.03
Less: Non-operating expenses 2,924,684.37 1,327,082.04
asseItr;cludlng. Losses on disposal of non-current 2.695,900.57 184,427.98
lll. Total profit(Loss) 8,026,104.10 7,993,095.30
Less: Income tax expenses 2,767,436.39 -2,397,726.20
IV. Net profit 5,258,667.71 10,390,821.50
V. Earnings per share:
(I) Basic earnings per share
(I) Diluted earnings per share
VI. Other comprehensive gain and loss -494,115.79 502,523.77
VII. Total comprehensive gain and loss 4,764,551.92 10,893,345.27

The accompanying notes form part of the financial statements.
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SHANGHAI AUTOMATION INSTRUMENTATION CO., LTD.

For the year ended 31 December 2010

Consolidated cash flow statements

RMB
Item Note 2010 2009
I. Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Cash receipts from the sale of goods and the rendering of
services 1,155,307,781.46 1,210,020,589.12
Receipts of tax refunds - -
Other cash receipts relating to operating activities (V)46 25,871,105.82 1,668,605.18
Sub-total of cash inflows 1,181,178,887.28 1,211,689,194.30
Cash payments for goods purchased and services received 880,504,600.27 937,986,351.56
Cash payments to and on behalf of employees 143,908,641.49 144,932,677.02
Payments of all types of taxes 47,308,490.22 50,909,452.95
Other cash payments relating to operating activities (V)46 116,232,960.43 85,234,184.88
Sub-total of cash outflows 1,187,954,692.41 1,219,062,666.41
Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities (V)47 -6,775,805.13 -7,373,472.11
Il. Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Cash receipts from disposals and returns of investments - -
Cash receipts from returns on investments 13,188,916.13 6,852,935.18
Net cash receipts from disposals of fixed assets, intangible
assets
and other long-term assets 12,776,486.30 617,234.98
Net cash receipts from disposals of subsidiaries and other
business units 4,652,507.64 1,665,555.99
Other cash receipts relating to investing activities (V)46 25,728,000.00 -
Sub-total of cash inflows 56,345,910.07 9,135,726.15
Cash payments to acquire and construct fixed assets,
intangible
assets and other long-term assets 57,256,876.12 85,652,505.99
Cash payments to acquire investments 34,300,000.00 -
Net cash payments for acquisitions of subsidiaries and other
business units - -
Other cash payments relating to investing activities (V)46 3,921,128.00 -
Sub-total of cash outflows 95,478,004.12 85,652,505.99
Net Cash Flows from Investing Activities -39,132,094.05 -76,516,779.84
Ill. Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Cash receipts from investors making investment in the
enterprise - -
Including: cash receipts from minorities making investment
in subsidiaries - -
Cash receipts from borrowings 237,650,427.35 456,500,000.00
Other cash receipts relating to financing activities (V)46 30,000,000.00 34,692,000.00
Sub-total of cash inflows 267,650,427.35 491,192,000.00
Cash repayments of amounts borrowed 186,669,963.78 369,580,000.00
Cash payments for distribution of dividends or profit or
interest
expenses 28,202,510.88 28,588,824.19
Including: payments for distribution of dividends or profit to
minorities of subsidiaries - 42,000.00
Other cash payments relating to financing activities (V)46 - 1,020,000.00
Sub-total of cash outflow 214,872,474.66 399,188,824.19
Net Cash Flows from Financing Activities 52,777,952.69 92,003,175.81
IV. Effect of Foreign Exchange Rate Changes on Cash and
Cash
Equivalents 36.61 -52.07
V. Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 6,870,090.12 8,112,871.79
Add: Opening balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents 149,091,832.64 140,978,960.85
VI. Closing Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents (V)47 155,961,922.76 149,091,832.64
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SHANGHAI AUTOMATION INSTRUMENTATION CO., LTD.

For the year ended 31 December 2010

The Company cash flow statements

RMB
Iltem Note 2010 2009
I. Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Cash receipts from the sale of goods and the rendering of
services P 9 g 1,098,666,139.41 1,161,589,816.96
Receipts of tax refunds - -
Other cash receipts relating to operating activities 19,792,013.38 1,612,912.97
Sub-total of cash inflows 1,118,458,152.79 1,163,202,729.93
Cash payments for goods purchased and services received 818,998,459.67 912,702,510.96
Cash payments to and on behalf of employees 136,134,590.59 129,059,767.14
Payments of all types of taxes 45,230,079.36 46,438,346.15
Other cash payments relating to operating activities 114,665,169.01 77,774,585.52
Sub-total of cash outflows 1,115,028,298.63 1,165,975,209.77
Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities (XhH9 3,429,854.16 -2,772,479.84
Il.  Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Cash receipts from disposals and returns of investments - -
Cash receipts from returns on investments 13,188,916.13 6,936,935.18
Net cash receipts from disposals of fixed assets, intangible
assets 12,650,387.75 613,664.98
and other long-term assets
Net cash receipts from disposals of subsidiaries and other
R P 6,173,352.24 2,373,600.00
Other cash receipts relating to investing activities 25,728,000.00 -
Sub-total of cash inflows 57,740,656.12 9,924,200.16
Cash payments to acquire and construct fixed assets,
intangible 57,170,423.59 85,573,376.55
assets and other long-term assets
Cash payments to acquire investments 34,300,000.00 -
Net cash payments for acquisitions of subsidiaries and other
business units ) )
Other cash payments relating to investing activities 3,921,128.00 -
Sub-total of cash outflows 95,391,551.59 85,573,376.55

Net Cash Flows from Investing Activities

-37,650,895.47

-75,649,176.39

Ill. Cash Flows from Financing Activities:

Cash receipts from investors making investment in the
enterprise

Cash receipts from borrowings

227,000,000.00

456,500,000.00

Cash receipts from issue of bonds

Other cash receipts relating to financing activities

30,000,000.00

34,692,000.00

Sub-total of cash inflows

257,000,000.00

491,192,000.00

Cash repayments of amounts borrowed

185,970,000.00

369,580,000.00

Cash payments for distribution of dividends or profit or
interest
expenses

27,951,782.77

28,460,511.40

Other cash payments relating to financing activities

1,020,000.00

Sub-total of cash outflow

213,921,782.77

399,060,511.40

Net Cash Flows from Financing Activities

43,078,217.23

92,131,488.60

VI. Effect of Foreign Exchange Rate Changes on Cash and

Cash 36.61 -52.07
Equivalents
VII. Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 8,857,212.53 13,709,780.30

Add: Opening balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents

145,598,105.95

131,888,325.65

VI. Closing Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents

154,455,318.48

145,598,105.95
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SHANGHAI AUTOMATION INSTRUMENTATION CO., LTD.

For the year ended 31 December 2010

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
RMB

Balance as of December 31,2010 Balance as of December 31,2009

Attributable to equity holders of the parent Attributable to equity holders of the parent

Item o Total Total
y shareholders’ Minority interest shareholders’

interest ! Less: " n 2
equity o q q Special Surplus General Unappropriate equity
Others Paid-in capital Capital reserve Treasury e ey i e d profit Others

shares

Less:
Capital reserve Treasury
shares

Paid-in
capital

Special Surplus General Unappropriated
reserve reserves reserve profit

1. Closing
balance carried 399,286,890.0
forward of last 0

year

225,614,785.59 899,180.36

22767.526.3 ~487,050.337.8 399,286,890.00 | 225,094,490.16 22,767,526 37 -492,774,883.65 1,824,240.14 | 156,198,263.02

161,518,044.5
0

Add:Changes in
accounting

policies

Correction of
prior periods
errors

Others

II. Opening

balance brought 399,286,890.0

forward of this 0
year

225,614,785.59 22,76752@3 —487.050‘3372

899,180.36 161,518‘044.3

399,286,890.00 225‘094’490';

22,767,526.37 -492,774,883.65 1,824,240.14 156,198,263.02

IIl. Changes for

the year -494,115.79 5,883,576.06 -809,990.71 4,579,469.56 520,295.43 5,724,545.83 -925,059.78 5,319,781.48

(1) Net profit 5,883,576.06 -12,047.61 5,871,528.45 5,724,545.83 -410,128.53 5,314,417.30

(IT) Other
comprehensive -494,115.79 -494,115.79 502,523.77 502,523.77
ain and loss

e e 494,115.79 5,883,576.06 12,047.61 5,377,412.66 502,523.77 5724,545.83 -410,128.53 5,816,941.07

(Il1) Owner’s
contributions and
reduction in

capital

-797,943.10 -797,943.10 17,771.66 -472,931.25 -455,159.59

1. Capital
contribution from
owners

2. Share-based
payment
recognised in
shareholders'

equity.

3. Others(note) -797,943.10 -797,943.10 17,771.66 -472,931.25 -455,159.59

(V) Profit

distribution -42,000.00 -42,000.00

1. Transfer to
surplus reserve

2. Transfer to

general reserve

3. Distribution to

shareholders -42,000.00 -42,000.00

4. Others

(V.) Transfer
within
shareholders'

equity

1. Capitalisation

of capital reserve

2. Capitalisation
of surplus reserve

3. Loss made
up by surplus
reserve

4. Others

(VI.)Special
reserve

1. Appropriation

2. Usage

(VII)Others

IV. Closing 399,286,890.0
0

225,120,669.80 22,767,526.3 -481,166,761.7
balance 7 6

89,189.65 166,097‘514%

399,286,890.00 225,614,785.59 22,767,526.37 -487,050,337.82 899,180.36 161,518,044.50
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Note: Reduction of minority interest is due to the disposal of subsidiary of Shanghai Zijiu Measuring Instrument Co., Ltd in the current year.
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SHANGHAI AUTOMATION INSTRUMENTATION CO., LTD.

For the year ended

31 December 2010

THE COMPANY STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

RMB

Item

Balance as of December 31,2010

Balance as of December 31,2009

Paid-in capital Capital reserve

Less:
Treasury
shares

Special
reserve

Surplus
reserves

General
reserve

Unappropriated
profit

Total shareholders’
equity

Paid-in capital

Capital reserve

Less:
Treasury
shares

Special
reserve

Surplus reserves

General reserve

Unappropriated
profit

Total
shareholders’
equity

I. Closing balance carried forward of last
year

399,286,890.00 |226,463,331.01

22,767,526.37

-480,616,168.06

167,901,579.32

399,286,890.00

225,943,035.5
8

22,767,526.37

-491,006,989.
56

156,990,462.
39

Add:Changes in accounting policies

Correction of prior periods errors

Others

I1. Opening balance brought forward of
this year

399,286,890.00 |226,463,331.01

22,767,526.37

-480,616,168.06

167,901,579.32

399,286,890.00

225,943,035.5
8

22,767,526.37

-491,006,989.
56

156,990,462.
39

I1l. Changes for the year

-494,115.79

5,258,667.71

4,764,551.92

520,295.43

10,390,821.50

10,911,116.9
3

(1) Net profit

5,258,667.71

5,258,667.71

10,390,821.50

10,390,821.50

(I1) Other comprehensive gain and loss

-494,115.79

-494,115.79

502,523.77

502,523.77

Subtotal of (I) and (1I)

-494,115.79

5,258,667.71

4,764,551.92

502,523.77

10,390,821.50

10,893,345.2
7

(I11) Owner’s contributions and reduction
in capital

17,771.66

17,771.66

1. Capital contribution from owners

2. Share-based payment recognised in

shareholders' equity

3. Others

17,771.66

17,771.66

(IV) Profit distribution

1. Transfer to surplus reserve

2. Transfer to general reserve

3. Distribution to shareholders

4. Others

(V.) Transfer within shareholders' equity

1. Capitalisation of capital reserve

2. Capitalisation of surplus reserve

3. Loss made up by surplus reserve

4. Others

(V1.)Special reserve

1. Appropriation

2. Usage

(VIl)Others

IV. Closing balance

399,286,890.00 |225,969,215.22

22,767,526.37

-475,357,500.35

172,666,131.24

399,286,890.00

226,463,331.0
1

22,767,526.37

-480,616,168.
06

167,901,579.
32
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SHANGHAI AUTOMATION INSTRUMENTATION CO., LTD.

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2010

GENERAL

Shanghai Automation Instrumentation Co., Ltd. (the "Company”) was reconstructed into a joint stock
limited company with foreign investment through approval on September, 1993. The Company has
successfully issued RMB ordinary stock (A-stock) and foreign currency stock in domestic market
(B-stock) which were been listed for trading with Shanghai Stock Exchange at March and April, 1994
respectively. Corporate legal person business license code: 310000400099813(Municipality),legal
representative person now is Xu Ziying, current registered capital RMB399,286,890.00, belonging to
manufacturing industry.

On 28 December 2005 Shanghai State-owned Assets Commission issued (2005) No. 950 reply to
Shanghai Automation Instrumentation Co., Ltd on transfer of state-owned shares, granting the transfer
of 115,196,424 state-owned shares held by Shanghai Yidian Holdings (Group) Co., Ltd. to Shanghai
Electric (Group) Co., Ltd. China Securities Regulatory Commission issued ZhengJian Gongsi Zi (2006)
No. 22 opinion on February 28, 2006, expressing no disagreement to the said transfer. Formalities
concerning transfer of the shares were finished on April 14, 2006 at China Securities Depository and
Clearing Co., Ltd. Shanghai Branch by the Ownership Transfer Confirmation.

On June 26, 2006 the Company’s shareholders’ general meeting concerning stock reform passed the
following: the consideration the Company’s non-listed circulating share holders paid to shareholders of
listed circulating shares to get circulating rights is: A-share holders of listed circulating shares get 4.5
shares of consideration for every 10 shares. With implementation of the consideration, total capital
stock of the Company remains unchanged, but share composition changed. By 31 December 2010,
total capital stock is 399,286,890 shares, its all shares without sales restriction.

The principal operational activities of the Company and its subsidiaries(the "Group") including:
automation control systems/instrumentation and relevant electromagnetic products/parts, whole set
instrument/parts, technical associated parts, technical services/consulting and investment (Under
permission if franchise required). Its major products are industrial control system and instruments,
automobile electronic devices and analysis instruments, office control system and household
electronic appliance.

Company incorporated at No 41 Hong Cao Road, Shanghai, China. Head office address: No. 41,
Hongcao Road, Shanghai.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES.

1. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprises issued by the Ministry of Finance on 15 February 2006, and other related
regulations issued thereafter(together, the New "CASs").

These financial statements have been disclosed in accordance with the disclosure requirement of
the "Information Disclosure and Presentation Rules for Companies Offering Securities to the
Public No.15- General Provision of Financial Reporting" (2010 Amendment) issued by Chinese
Securities Regulatory Commission.

Going concern

As at 31 December 2010, the Group had accumulated losses amount to RMB481,166,761.76. As
the Company's shareholder-Shanghai Electric (Group) Co., Ltd. has agreed not to request
repayment of outstanding balances owing to it in the foreseeable future, and, provide all necessary
financial support to the Company where other outstanding debts owned by the Group fall due in
the foreseeable future, so as to maintain the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, the
financial statements have been prepared using the going concern basis.
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SHANGHAI AUTOMATION INSTRUMENTATION CO., LTD.

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2010

II.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES.-Continued
1. Basis of preparation of financial statements - continued

Basis of accounting and principle of measurement

The Group has adopted the accrual basis of accounting. Except for certain financial instruments
which are measured at fair value, the Group has adopted the historical cost as the principle of
measurement of the financial statements. Where assets are impaired, provisions for asset
impairment are made in accordance with relevant requirements.

2. Statement of compliance with the ASBE
The financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with new CASs, and
present truly and completely, the company's and consolidated financial position as of 31
December 2010, and the company's and consolidated results of operations and cash flows for the
year then ended.

3. Accounting year

The Group has adopted the calendar year as its accounting year, i.e. from 1 January to 31
December.

4. Functional currency
RMB is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Group operates. The
functional currency of the Company and its subsidiaries is RMB. The Group use RMB to compose

the financial statement.

5. Business combinations involving entities under common control and entities not under
common control

Business combinations are classified into business combinations involving entities under common
control and business combinations not involving entities under common control.

5.1Business combination involving entities under common control

A business combination involving entities under common control is a business combination in
which all of the combining entities are ultimately controlled by the same party or parties both before
and after the combination, and that control is not transitory.

Assets and liabilities that are obtained by the acquiring party in a business combination shall be
measured at their carrying amounts at the combination date as recorded by the party being
acquired. The difference between the carrying amount of the net assets obtained and the carrying
amount of the consideration paid for the combination shall be adjusted to capital reserve. If the
capital reserve is not sufficient to absorb the difference, any excess shall be adjusted against
retained earnings.

The directly attributable to the combination incurred shall be recognized as an expense when
incurred.
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2010

II.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES.-Continued

5.

Business combinations involving entities under common control and entities not under
common control - continued

5.2 Business combination involving entities not under common control and goodwill

A business combination not involving enterprises under common control is a business combination in
which all of the combining enterprises are not ultimately controlled by the same party or parties before
and after the combination.

The cost of combination is the aggregate of the fair values, at the acquisition date, of the assets given,
liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity securities issued by the acquirer in exchange for control of
the acquire. Other intermediary fees including audit, legal services, evaluation and consulting services
etc. and other related administrative expenses incurred by the acquirer for a business combination shall
be recognized as expense when incurred. For a business combination achieved in stages that involves
multiple exchange transactions, the cost of combination is the aggregate of the costs of individual
transactions. The cost of equity investment held prior to the purchase date shall be re-measured at fair
value, the difference of the fair value and book value shall be recognized as investment income. Other
comprehensive income related with equity investment held prior to the purchase date shall be
transferred to investment income in the current period.

The acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities that satisfy the recognition criteria,
which are acquired in a business combination not involving enterprises under common control, are
measured at their fair value at the acquisition date. Where the cost of combination exceeds the
acquirer’s interest in the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets, the difference is recognised
as goodwill as an asset and measured at cost. Where the cost of combination is less than the acquirer’s
interest in the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets, the difference is accounted for as
follows: firstly, the acquirer reassesses the measurement of the fair values of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities and measurement of the cost of combination; then, if after
that reassessment, the cost of combination is still less than the acquirer’s interest in the fair value of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets, the acquirer recognises the remaining difference immediately in profit
or loss for the current period.

Goodwill arising in a business combination are tested for impairment annually. Goodwill arising from
business combination is presented seperately in the consolidation financial statements, and measured
at cost less accumulated impairment.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is considered together with the related asset group or
sets of asset groups. Namely, the carrying amount of goodwill, from the acquisition date, is allocated on
a reasonable basis to each related asset group; if it is not possible to allocate to the related asset
groups, it is allocated to each of the related sets of asset groups. When the recoverable amount of an
asset group or a set of asset groups is less than its carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised
accordingly. The amount of impairment loss first reduces the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the asset group or set of asset groups, and then reduces the carrying amount of other assets (other
than goodwill) within the asset group or set of asset groups, pro rata on the basis of the carrying amount
of each asset.

The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and the present
value of the future cash flows expected to be derived from the asset. An asset’s fair value is the price in
a sale agreement in an arm’s length transaction. If there is no sale agreement but an asset is traded in
an active market, fair value is the current bid price. If there is no sale agreement or active market for an
asset, fair value is based on the best information available. Costs of disposal include legal costs related
to the disposal of the asset, related taxes, costs of removing the asset and direct costs to bring the
asset into condition for its sale. The present value of assets based upon estimated future cash flows,
which was generated by continued use of the assets in the process and the final disposal of the assets,
was determined by discounted by appropriated discounted rate.

Once an impairment loss on goodwill is recognised, it is not reversed in a subsequent period.
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6. Preparation of consolidated financial statements

The scope of consolidated financial statements is determined on the basis of control. Control is the
power to govern the financial and operating policies of an enterprise so as to obtain benefits from
its operating activities.

For a subsidiary already disposed of, its operating results and cash flows before the date of
disposal are appropriately included in the consolidated income statement and the consolidated
cash flow statement.

Where a subsidiary has been acquired through a business combination not involving enterprises
under common control, the subsidiary’s operating results and cash flows after the acquisition date
are appropriately included in the consolidated income statement and the consolidated cash flow
statement, and no adjustments are made to the opening balance and comparative figures of the
consolidated financial statements.

Where a subsidiary has been acquired through a business combination involving enterprises
under common control, the subsidiary’s operating results and cash flows from the beginning of the
reporting period to the combination date are appropriately included in the consolidated income
statement and the consolidated cash flow statement, and adjustments are made to the
comparative figures of the consolidated financial statements accordingly.

Major accounting policies and accounting periods adopted by the subsidiary(ies) are defined
according to the standardised accounting policies and accounting periods established by the
Company.

All significant intergroup accounts and transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries or
between subsidiaries are eliminated on consolidation.

The portion of a subsidiary’s equity that is not attributable to the parent is treated as minority
interests and presented as “minority interests” in the consolidated balance sheet within owners’
equity. The portion of net profits or losses of subsidiaries for the period attributable to minority
interests is presented in the consolidated income statement below the "net profit" line item as
"minority interests".

When the amount of loss attributable to the minority shareholders of a subsidiary exceeds the
minority shareholders’ portion of the opening balance of owners' equity of the subsidiary, the
excess amount is allocated against minority interests.

The purchase of a minority interest or partial disposal of equity investment without losing control
over the subsidiary should be accounted for as equity transactions. Interest attributable to the
equity holders and minority interests should be adjusted to reflect the changes of share of equity in
the subsidiaries. Difference of adjustments for minority interest and fair value of payment / receipt
of the consideration should be recorded in capital surplus, or retained earnings if no sufficient
balance of capital surplus remained.

When an enterprise loses control over investee by disposing part of equity investment in the
investee or other reasons, remaining part of the equity investment should be measured
re-measured at fair value at the date when losing control over the investee. The cash received in
disposal of the equity investment and the fair value of remaining part of the equity investment,
deducting net assets proportion calculated by original share percentage since the acquisition date
should be recorded in profit or loss for current period of disposal. Other comprehensive income
related to the equity investment in acquiree before disposal date should be transferred to profit or
loss for current period of disposal.

62



SHANGHAI AUTOMATION INSTRUMENTATION CO., LTD.

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2010

II.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES.-Continued
7. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash refers to cash on hand and cash in bank that can be readily used for payment at any time.
Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

8. Translation of transactions denominated in foreign currencies

8.1 Foreign currency transactions

On initial recognition, foreign currency transactions are translated by applying the spot exchange
rate at the dates of the transactions.

At the balance sheet date, foreign currency monetary items are translated to RMB using the spot
exchange rate at that date. Exchange differences arising from the differences between the spot
exchange rate prevailing at the balance sheet date and those spot rates used on initial recognition
or at the previous balance sheet date are recognized in profit or loss for the current period, except
for: (1) exchange differences arising from specific-purpose borrowings in foreign currencies that
are eligible for capitalization, which are capitalized during the capitalization period and included in
the cost of related assets; and (2) exchange differences arising from hedging instruments for
foreign currency risk, which are treated under hedge accounting; and (3) exchange differences
arising from available-for-sale non-monetary items (e.g. stocks) and fluctuation of carrying amount
of available-for-sale monetary items (other than amortized cost) are recognized in capital reserves.

Foreign currency non-monetary items carried at historical cost continue to be measured at the
amounts in functional currency translated using the spot exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions; foreign currency non-monetary items carried at fair value are translated using the
spot exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined. Differences between the
translated amount and the original amount of functional currency are accounted for as changes in
fair value (including changes in foreign exchange rates) and included in profit or loss for the period
or shareholder's equity included in other comprehersive gain and loss and recorded.

9. Financial instruments

The group recognize the financial assets or financial liabilities when the group becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the financial instrument. Financial assets or liabilities are recognized
at fair value initially. In the case of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, the related
transaction costs occurred at the time of acquisition are recognized in profit or loss for the current
period. For other financial assets, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the
financial assets are included in the initial recognition amounts.

9.1 Measurement of the fair value of financial instruments

Fair value means assets and liabilities which are carried at the amount for which an asset could be
exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm's length
transaction. If there is an active market for a financial instrument, the Group uses quoted price in
the active market to establish the fair value. If no active market exists for a financial instrument, the
Group establishes fair value by using a valuation technique. Valuation techniques include using
recent market transactions between knowledgeable, willing parties, reference to the current fair
value of another instrument that is substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis and
option pricing models.
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9. Financial instruments - continued

9.2 The effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial asset or a
financial liability (or group of financial assets or financial liabilities) and of allocating the interest
income or interest expense over the relevant period, using the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through
the expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability.

When calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates the future cash flows considering
all contractual terms of financial assets and financial liabilities (without considering future credit
losses). The calculation includes all fees paid or received between the parties to the contract that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs, and all other premiums or
discounts.

9.3 Classification, recognition and measurement of financial assets

Financial assets are, on initial recognition, classified into the following four categories: financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL” financial assets), held-to-maturity investments,
loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial assets (“AFS” financial assets). Financial
assets purchased and sold in the regular course are recognized and derecognized on the trade
date.

9.3.1Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for trading and
those designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

A financial asset held for trading is the financial asset that meets one of the following conditions: (1)
the financial asset is acquired for the purpose of selling it in a short term; (2) the financial asset is a
part of a portfolio of identifiable financial instruments that are collectively managed, and there is
objective evidence indicating that the enterprise recently manages this portfolio for the purpose of
short-term profits; (3) the financial asset is a derivative, except for a derivative that is designated
and effective hedging instrument, or a financial guarantee contract, or a derivative that is linked to
and must be settled by delivery of an unquoted equity instrument (without a quoted price from an
active market) whose fair value cannot be reliably measured.

A financial asset is designated on initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss only when
it meets one of the following conditions: (1)the designation eliminates or significantly reduces the
inconsistency in the measurement or recognition of relevant gains or losses that would otherwise
arise from measuring the financial instruments on different bases.(2)a group of financial
instruments is managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, and is reported to
the enterprise’s key management personnel. Formal documentation regarding risk management or
investment strategy has prepared.

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss are subsequently measure at fair value, with

gains or losses arising from changes in fair value as well as dividends and interest income related
to such financial assets recognized in profit or loss for the current period.
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9. Financial instruments - continued

9.3 Classification, recognition and measurement of financial assets - continued

9.3.2Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturities that the Group has the positive intention and ability to hold to
maturity.

Held-to-maturity investments are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method; gains or losses arising from derecognition, impairment or amortization is
recognized in profit or loss for the current period.

9.3.3Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. Financial assets classified as loans and receivables by the
Group include notes receivable, accounts receivable, interests receivable, dividends receivable,
other receivables etc..

Loans and receivables are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
method. Gains or losses arising from derecognition, impairment or amortization are recognized
in profit or loss for the current period.

9.3.4 AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are those non-derivative financial assets that are designated as available for-
sale or are not classified as (1) financial assets at FVTPL, (2) loans and receivables, and (3)
held-to-maturity investments.

AFS financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Gains or losses arising from
changes in fair value (other than impairment losses and foreign exchange gains and losses
resulted from foreign currency monetary assets which are recognized in profit or loss for the
current period) are recognized directly in shareholders' equity, and are reversed and recognized in
profit or loss for the period when such financial assets are derecognized.

Interest received during the period in which the Group holds the AFS financial assets and cash
dividends declared by the investee are recognized as investment income.

Investments in an unquoted equity instrument (without a quoted price in an active market) whose
fair value cannot be reliably measured, and derivatives financial assets linked to and must be
settled by delivery of such an unquoted equity instrument are measured at cost.

9.4 Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses the carrying amount of financial assets, other than those at fair value through
profit and loss, at each balance sheet date. If there is objective evidence that financial assets are
impaired the Group determines the amount of any impairment loss.

Objective evidence of impairment of financial assets are the matters that occurred after the initial

recognition of financial assets which has impact on the expected future cash flows of financial
assets, and can be reliably measured by the enterprises.
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9.

Financial instruments - continued

9.4 Impairment of financial assets - continued

Objective evidence that a financial asset is impaired includes:

(1) Significant financial difficulty of the issuers or the debtors.

(2) A breach of contract by the debtors, such as a default or delay in interest or principal payments.

(3) The Group, for economic or legal reasons relating to the debtors' financial difficulty, grants a
concession to debtors.

(4) Itis probable that the debtors will go bankruptcy or undergo other financial restructuring.

(5) The financial assets cannot be traded in an active market due to financial difficulties of the issuers.

(6) In an overall assessment of a group of financial assets, observable data indicates that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from the group of financial assets since the
initial recognition of those assets, although the decrease cannot yet be identified with the individual
financial assets in the group. Such observable data includes:
-deterioration of payment ability of debtors in the group;
-economic conditions in the country or region where the debtors locate cause the unrecoverability
of the financial assets in the group.

(7)Significant changes with an adverse effect that have taken place in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment in which the obligor operates, indicating that the cost of the
investment in the equity instrument may not be recovered by the investor.

(8) A significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment in an equity instrument below its
cost.
(9) Other objective evidence indicates that there is an impairment of a financial asset.

-lmpairment of financial asset measured at amortized cost

The carrying amount of financial assets carried at cost or amortized cost is reduced to the present value
of estimated future cash flows, with the reduced amount recognized as impairment losses and charged
to profit or loss for the current period. If, in a subsequent period, the carrying amount of financial assets
increases and the increase can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognized, the previously recognized impairment losses are reversed through profit or loss to the
extent that the carrying amount of the financial assets at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortized cost would have been had the impairment not been recognized.

For a financial asset that is individually significant, the Group assesses the asset individually for
impairment; for a financial asset that is not individually significant, the Group assesses the asset
individually for impairment or includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and collectively assess them for impairment. An individually assessed financial asset
(whether the financial asset is individually significant or not individually significant), the Group includes
the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assess
them for impairment. Assets for which an impairment loss is individually recognized is not included in a
collective assessment of impairment.

- Impairment of AFS financial assets

Where AFS financial assets are impaired, accumulated losses due to decreases in fair value previously
recognized directly in capital reserve are reversed and charged to profit or loss for the current period.
The reversed accumulated losses are the asset's initial acquisition costs after deducting amounts
recovered and amortized, current fair value and impairment losses previously recognized in profit or
loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the carrying amount of financial assets increases and the increase can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously
recognized impairment losses are reversed. The reversal of impairment losses of AFS equity
instruments is recognized in equity and the impairment losses of AFS debt instruments are recognized
in profit or loss for the current period.
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9. Financial instruments - continued

9.4 Impairment of financial assets - continued

- Impairment of financial assets measure at cost

The carrying amount of investments in an unquoted equity instrument (without a quoted price in an
active market) whose fair value cannot be reliably measured, and derivatives financial assets
linked to and must be settled by delivery of such an unquoted equity instrument is reduced to the
present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted by market rate of return of similar
financial assets, with the reduced amount recognized as impairment losses and charged to profit
or loss for the current period. Once an impairment loss on financial assets measure at cost is
recognised, it is not reversed in a subsequent period.

9.5 Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognizes a financial asset only when: (1) the contractual rights to receive the cash
flows from the financial asset expire; or (2) it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to the transferee; or (3) it transfers the financial asset,
neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership but has not
retained control of the financial asset.

If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset, it continues to recognize the financial asset to the extent of its continuing
involvement in the transferred financial asset and recognizes an associated liability. The extent of
its continuing involvement in the transferred financial asset is the risk brought by changes on value
of financial asset.

When the overall transferring of particular financial asset has satisfied the conditions of termination,
the difference between “the book value and offer in transferring” and “accumulation of fair value
fluctuation which has been accounted into miscellaneous income” shall be accounted into current
income account.

When partial transferring of particular financial asset has satisfied conditions of termination, the
book value of transferred financial asset shall be amortized between the terminated part and
un-terminated part according their corresponding fair value, and the difference between “the total
of the offer received in transferring and the accumulative of fair value fluctuation originally
accounted into other misc. income amortizable to termination part” and “amortizable aforesaid
book value” shall be accounted into current income account.

9.6 Recognition and measurement of financial liabilities

Financial instruments are recognized as financial liabilities or equity instruments by the Group,
according to the essence of the financial instrument’s contact arrangment and the identification of
financial liabilities or equity instruments.

Financial instruments issued by the Group are recognized as financial liabilities or equity

instruments according to the substantial quality of the contract arrangement and the definition of
financial liability or equity instruments.
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9. Financial instruments - continued

9.6 Recognition and measurement of financial liabilities - continued

9.6.1 Financial liabilities at FVTPL

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if: (1) it has been acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the near future; or (2) it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments
that are managed together and for which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking; or (3) it is a derivative, except for a derivative that is a designated and effective
hedging instrument, or a financial guarantee contract, or a derivative that is linked to and must be
settled by delivery of an unquoted equity instrument (without a quoted price from an active market)
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured.

A financial liability may be designated, on initial recognition, as at FVTPL if either: (1) the
designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency of the
related gains and losses that would otherwise result from measuring assets or liabilities on
different bases; or (2) the financial liability forms part of a group of financial assets or financial
liabilities or both, which is managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, and
information about the group is reported on that basis to the Group's key management personnel.
The Group's formal documentation has been prepared with respect to such risk management or
investment strategy.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are subsequently measured at fair value, with gains or losses arising
from changes in fair values as well as dividends and interest income related to such financial
liabilities recognized in profit or loss for the current period.

9.6.2 Other financial liabilities

Derivative financial liabilities linked to and which must be settled by delivery of an unquoted equity
instrument (without a quoted price in an active market) whose fair value cannot be measured
reliably is subsequently measured at cost. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method; gains or losses arising from derecognition or
amortization is recognized in profit or loss for the current period.

9.7 Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises a financial liability (or part of it) only when the underlying present
obligation (or part of it) is discharged. An agreement between the Group (an existing borrower) and
an existing lender to replace the original financial liability with a new financial liability with
substantially different terms is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability
and the recognition of a new financial liability.

When the Group derecognises a financial liability or a part of it, the Group recognises the
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability (or part of the financial liability)
derecognised and the consideration aid (including any non-cash assets transferred or new
financial liabilities assumed) in profit or loss for the period.

9.8 Offsetting a financial asset and a financial liability

A financial asset and a financial liability are offset and the net amount presented in the balance
sheet when both of the following conditions are satisfied: (1) The Group has a legal right to set off
the recognized amounts and the legal right is currently enforceable; and (2) The Group intends
either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the financial asset and settle the financial liability
simultaneously. Otherwise, financial assets and financial liabilities are presented separately in the
balance sheet and are not offset.
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9. Financial instruments - continued

9.9 Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group
after deducting all of its liabilities. The consideration received from issuing equity instruments, net
of transaction costs, is added to shareholders' equity.

All types of distributions made by the Group to holders of equity instruments (excluding stock
dividends) are deducted from shareholders’ equity. The Group does not recognize changes in the

fair value of equity instruments..

10. Accounts receivable

10.1 Account receivables with significant single amount

Bad debt provision for receivables
significant specific amount
accounting standard:

The Company recognizes receivable accounts over RMB5
million as
receivable accounts with large amount.

Measurement of bad debt provision
of individually significant
receivables:

Receivables that are individually significant are subject to
separate impairment assessment. If impairment of financial
asset tested individually is not established, the financial
asset is tested in financial asset group with similar credit risk
characteristics. If impairment of financial asset tested
individually is established, the financial asset is not tested in
financial asset group with similar credit risk characteristics
any more.

10.2 Account receivables insignificant not with big single amount but with big risk after reorganization

by credit risk features:

Basis for organization by credit risk
features:

Receivables that are not individually significant and within 3
years together with those receivables that have been
individually evaluated for impairment and found not to be
impaired are grouped on the basis of similarity and relevance
of credit risk characteristics. The credit risks normally reflect
debtors' capabilities of contractual repayment for all due
receivables, as well as the future cash flow of the assets
inspected.

Measure of bad debt provision of
organization grouped by credit risk
features:

When assessed on a collective basis, objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the
structure and similar credit risk characteristics (debtors’
capabilities of contractual repayment), as well as the Group’s
past experience of collecting payments, observable changes
in economic conditions, and existed impairment loss and
using following method to prepare.

10.2.1 The organization provided by aging:

Debt aging analysis
Aging Rate for Accounts Rate for Other receivables
receivable (%) (%)
3-4 years 70 70
4-5 years 90 90
Over 5 years 100 100
No bad debt provision is made for receivables from related parties of the Company.
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10. Accounts receivable - continued

10.3Individual insignificant accounts but with provision accrued individually

Reasons for provision accrued individually | Receivables with individual amount less than 5
million yuan and within 3 years are recongnised as
individual insignificant accounts receivable but with
provision accrued individually.

Method of provision accrued Provision is accrued individually with insignificant
Receivables as above.

11. Inventories

11.1 Classification of inventories

Inventory includes raw materials, work in progress, finished goods and goods delivered. Inventories
are initially carried at the actual cost. Cost of inventories comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

11.2 Valuation method of issuing inventories

When issuing inventories, valuation is as per the plan cost basis. Cost variances are computed at the
end of month to adjust planned costs to actual costs.

11.3 Basis Provision for decline in value of inventories

At the balance sheet date, the inventory is stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. If the
cost is higher than the net realizable value, provision for the inventory is made through profit or loss.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale and relevant taxes. The
provision for decline in value of inventories is made according to irrefutable evidence. The purpose of
processing inventories and subsequent events is considered as well.

For inventories with large amounts and low price, provision for decline in value of inventories is made
by catogories; for inventories related with product series produced and sold in the same area, with
same or similar end use or target, which could be hardly recognized seperating from other items,
provision for decline in value of inventories is made in combination; provision for decline in value of
other inventories is made by difference between cost of signal inventory item and net realizable value.

After provision for decline in value of inventories has been made, if the circumstances that previously
caused inventories to be written down no longer exist which results in the net realisable value is higher
than the carrying amount, the amount of the write-down is reversed in profit or loss for the current
period; the reversal is limited to the amount originally provided for the decline in value of inventories.

11.4.Stock count system

The Group applies a perpetual inventory system.

11.5Amortization of perishables and packing materials

Low-value consumables are amortized using the immediate write-off method.

70



SHANGHAI AUTOMATION INSTRUMENTATION CO., LTD.

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2010

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES.-Continued

12. Long-term equity investments - continued

12.1 Initial investment cost

For long-term equity investments acquired through a business combination of entities under common
control, the initial investment cost is the absorbing party’s share of the owner’s equity of the party
being absorbed. For investments acquired through a business combination not involving entities under
common control, the initial investment cost is the cost of acquisition. For business combination
realized by step acquisitions, the investment cost is sum of book value of equity investment of the
acquiree before acquisition date and investment cost added at the acquisition date. The long-term
equity investment acquired otherwise than through a business combination is initially measured at its
cost.

12.2 Subsequent measurement

12.2.1 A long-term equity investment accounted for using the cost method

Where the Group does not have joint control or significant influence over the investee, the investment
is not quoted in an active market and its fair value cannot be reliably measured, a long-term equity
investment is accounted for using the cost method. In addition, in the parent statement, a long-term
equity investment to subsidiaries is accounted for using the cost method. Subsidiaries are investees
controlled by the Group.

Under the cost method, a long-term equity investment is measured at initial investment cost
Investment gains are recognized as the cash dividend or profit announced and distributed, except for
those cash dividend or profit which have already included in the actual payment of offer when the
investment was made.

12.2.2 A long-term equity investment accounted for using the equity method

The Company adopts equity basis in accounting of investment in affiliates and joint ventures. Affiliates
refer to those entities on which the Group can make major influences; joint ventures refer to the
entities the Group has joint control along with other investors.

Under the equity method, where the initial investment cost of a long-term equity investment exceeds
the Group’s interest in the fair values of the investee’s identifiable net assets at the acquisition date, no
adjustment is made to the initial investment cost. Where the initial investment cost is less than the
Group’s interest in the fair values of the investee’s identifiable net assets at the acquisition date, the
difference is charged to profit or loss for the current period, and the cost of the long-term equity
investment is adjusted accordingly.

Under the equity method, investment income or loss represents the Group’s share of the net profits or
losses made by the investee for the current period. The Group recognizes its share of the investee’s
net profits or losses based on the fair values of the investee’s individual separately identifiable assets
at the acquisition date, after making appropriate adjustments thereto in conformity with the accounting
policies and accounting periods of the Group. Profits and losses resulting from transactions between
the Group and associates/jointly controlled entities ("JCE"s) are eliminated to the extent of the Group's
interest in the associates/JCEs and based on which investment incomes or losses are recognized. For
any changes in shareholder’s equity other than net profits or losses in the investee, the Group adjusts
the carrying amount of the long-term equity investment and includes the corresponding adjustment in
shareholder’s equity.
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12. Long-term equity investments - continued

12.2 Subsequent measurement - continued

12.2.2 A long-term equity investment accounted for using the equity method - continued

The Company discontinues recognizing its share of net losses of the investee after the carrying
amount of the long-term equity investment together with any long-term interests that in substance form
part of the Company's net investment in the investee are reduced to zero, except to the extent that the
Company has incurred obligations to assume additional losses, where the obligations to assume
additional loss is estimated and accounted for as provisions and charged in investment loss for the
current period. Where the investee makes net profits subsequently, the Company resumes
recognizing its share of those profits only after its share of the profits equals the share of losses not
recognized.

12.2.3Disposal of long-term equity investments

On disposal of a long-term equity investment, the difference between the proceeds actually received
and the carrying amount is recognized in profit or loss for the current period. For a long-term equity
investment accounted for using the equity method, any changes in the shareholder’s equity of the
investee (other than net profits or losses) included in the owners’ equity of the Group, is transferred to
profit or loss for the current period on a prorate basis according to the proportion disposed of.

12.3 Criteria for recognition of joint control or significant influence over an investee

"Control" is the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an enterprise so as to obtain
benefits from its operating activities. "Joint control" is the contractually agreed sharing of control over
an economic activity, and exists only when the strategic financial and operating decisions relating to
the activity require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control. "Significant influence" is the
power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or
joint control over those policies. When determining whether an investing enterprise is able to exercise
control or significant influence over an investee, the effect of potential voting rights of the investee (for
example, warrants and convertible debts) held by the investing enterprises or other parties that are
currently exercisable or convertible is considered.

12.4 Impairment of long-term investments

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that long-term
investments may be impaired. If there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, the recoverable
amount is estimated for the individual asset. If the recoverable amount of an asset is less than its
carrying amount, the difference is recognised as an impairment loss and charged to profit or loss for
the current period.

Once an impairment loss long-term investments is recognised, it is not reversed in a subsequent
period.

13. Fixed assets

13.1 Recognition of fixed assets

Fixed assets are tangible assets that are held for use in the production or supply of goods and services,
for rental to others, or for administrative purposes and have useful lives more than one accounting
year. A fixed asset is initially measured at cost and the effect of any expected costs of abandoning the
asset at the end of its use is considered.
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13. Fixed assets - continued

13.1 Recognition of fixed assets - continued

Subsequent expenditures incurred for a fixed asset under the circumstance that it is probable that
economic benefits associated with the assets will flow to the Group and the cost of the asset can be
measured reliably, are included in the cost of the fixed asset and the carrying amount of the replaced
part is derecognized. Subsequent expenditures that fail to meet the recognition criteria above are
recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

13.2 Depreciation methods

The useful lives, estimated net residual values rates and annual depreciation rates of each class of
fixed assets are as follows:

Category of fixed assets Useful life Residual value Depreciation rate
Buildings 20-44 5 2.16-4.75
Machinery 10-20 5 4.75-9.5

Motor vehicles 5-12 5 7.92-19

Others 4-10 5 9.5-23.75
Leasehold improvement 5 - 20

Estimated net residual value of a fixed asset is the estimated amount that the Company would
currently obtain from disposal of the asset, after deducting the estimated costs of disposal, if the
assets were already of the age and in the condition expected at the end of its useful life.

13.3 Impairment of fixed assets

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that fixed assets may
be impaired. If there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, the recoverable amount is
estimated for the individual asset. If it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of the
individual asset, the Group determines the recoverable amount of the asset group to which the asset
belongs. If the recoverable amount of an asset is less than its carrying amount, the difference is
recognised as an impairment loss and charged to profit or loss for the current period.

Once an impairment loss on fixed assets is recognised, it is not reversed in a subsequent period.

13.4 Recognition and measurement of fixed assets leased under finance leases

Fixed assets that are held under finance leases shall be depreciated by applying the same policy as
that for the fixed assets owned by the Group. If it can be reasonably determined that the ownership of
the leased assets can be obtained at the end of the lease period, the leased assets are depreciated
over their useful lives; otherwise, the leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms
and the useful lives of the leased assets.
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13. Fixed assets - continued

13.5 Others

The Group reviews the useful life and estimated net residual value of a fixed asset and the depreciation
method applied at least at each financial year-end.

When a fixed asset is sold, transferred, retired or damaged, the Group recognises the amount of any
proceeds on disposal of the asset net of the carrying amount and related taxes in profit or loss for the
current period.

14. Construction in progress

The cost of construction in progress is determined according to the actual expenditure incurred for the
construction, including all necessary construction expenditure incurred during the construction period,
borrowing costs that shall be capitalized before the construction reaches the condition for intended use and
other relevant expenses. Construction in progress is transferred to fixed assets when the asset is ready for
its intended use.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that construction in
progress may be impaired. If there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, the recoverable amount
is estimated for the individual asset. If it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of the individual
asset, the Group determines the recoverable amount of the asset group to which the asset belongs. If the
recoverable amount of an asset is less than its carrying amount, the difference is recognised as an
impairment loss and charged to profit or loss for the current period.

Once an impairment loss on construction in progress is recognised, it is not reversed in a subsequent
period.

15. Borrowing costs

For borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying
asset, capitalization of such borrowing costs can commence only when all of the following conditions are
satisfied: (1) expenditures for the asset are being incurred; (2) borrowing costs are being incurred; and (3)
activities relating to the acquisition, construction or production of the asset that are necessary to prepare the
asset for its intended use or sale have commenced. Capitalization of such borrowing costs ceases when the
qualifying assets being acquired, constructed or produced become ready for their intended use or sale. The
amount of other borrowing costs incurred is recognized as an expense in the period in which they are
incurred.

Where funds are borrowed under a specific-purpose borrowing, the amount of interest to be capitalized is
the actual interest expense incurred on that borrowing for the period less any bank interest earned from
depositing the borrowed funds before being used on the asset or any investment income on the temporary
investment of those funds. Where funds are borrowed under general-purpose borrowings, the amount of
interest to be capitalized on such borrowings is determined by applying a capitalization rate to the weighted
average of the excess amounts of cumulative expenditure on the asset over and above the amounts of
specific-purpose borrowings. The capitalization rate is the weighted average of the interest rates applicable
to the general-purpose borrowings.

16. Intangible assets

16.1Intangible assets

An intangible asset includes Land Right etc.
An intangible asset is initially measured at cost. An intangible asset with a finite useful life is amortized

using the straight-line method over its useful life when the asset is available for use. An intangible asset with
an indefinite useful life is not amortized.
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16. Intangible assets - continued

16.1Intangible assets - continued

At end of report term, revising will be performed on the useful life of intangible assets with limited
useful life and the methods of amortizing, adjustment shall be done when necessary.

16.2 Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on an internal research and development project is classified into expenditure on the
research phase and expenditure on the development phase.

Expenditure on the research phase is recognized in profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred.

Expenditure on the development phase is recognized as an intangible asset only when the Group can
demonstrate all of the following below. Otherwise, it is charged to profit or loss:

(1) The technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale;

(2) Its intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;

(3) How the intangible asset will generate economic benefits. Among other things, the Group can
demonstrate the existence of a market for the output of the intangible asset or the intangible asset
itself or, if it is to be used internally, the usefulness of the intangible asset;

(4) The availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development
and the ability to use or sell the intangible asset; and

(5) Its ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its
development phase.

If the expenditure on the research phase and on the development phase cannot be identified, the
expenditure incurred should be recognized in full in profit or loss for the current period.

16.3 Impairment of intangible assets

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that intangible assets
may be impaired. If there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, the recoverable amount is
estimated for the individual asset. If it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of the
individual asset, the Group determines the recoverable amount of the asset group to which the asset
belongs. If the recoverable amount of an asset is less than its carrying amount, the difference is
recognised as an impairment loss and charged to profit or loss for the current period.

An intangible asset with an indefinite useful life are tested for impairment annually, irrespective of
whether there is any indication that the asset may be impaired.

Once an impairment loss on intangible assets is recognised, it is not reversed in a subsequent period.
17. Long-term deferred expenses
Long-term prepayments are various expenditures incurred but that should be allocated over the

current and future periods of more than one year. Long-term prepayments are evenly amortised over
the respective beneficial period.
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18. Provisions

An obligation for additional losses of investees related to a contingency is recognised as a provision
when all of the following conditions are satisfied: (1) the obligation is a present obligation of the Group;
(2) it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; and (3)
the amount of the obligation can be measured reliably.

At the balance sheet date, a provision is measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required to
settle the related present obligation, taking into account the factors pertaining to a contingency such as
the risks, uncertainties and time value of money. Where the effect of the time value of money is
material, the best estimate is determined by discounting the related future cash outflows.

If the expenses for clearing of predictive liability is fully or partially compensated by a third party, and
the compensated amount can be definitely received, it is recognized separated as asset. Though the
compensated amount shall not greater than the book value of the predictive liability.

19. Revenue

19.1 Revenue from the sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised only when all of the following conditions are satisfied: (1)
the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods; (2)
the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold; (3) the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably; (4) it is probable that the associated economic benefits will flow to the Group; and (5) the
associated costs incurred or to be incurred can be measured reliably.

19.2 Revenue arising from the rendering of services

Where the outcome of a transaction involving the rendering of services can be estimated reliably, at
the balance sheet date, revenue associated with the transaction is recognised using the percentage of
completion method. The stage of completion of a transaction involving the rendering of services is
determined according to the measurement of work completed.

Where the outcome of a transaction involving the rendering of services cannot be estimated reliably,
revenue is recognised to the extent of costs incurred that are expected to be recoverable and the
service costs incurred are recognised as expenses for the current period. Where the costs incurred are
not expected to be recoverable, no service revenue is recognised.

20. Government grants

Government grants are the transfer of monetary assets or non-monetary assets from the Government
to the Group at no consideration. A government grant is recognised when the Group complies with the
conditions attaching to the grant and when the Group is able to receive the grant.

If a government grant is in the form of a transfer of a monetary asset, the item is measured at the
amount received or receivable.

A government grant related to an asset is recognised as deferred income, and evenly amortised to
profit or loss over the useful life of the related asset.

For a government grant related to income, if the grant is a compensation for related expenses or
losses to be incurred in subsequent periods, the grant is recognised as deferred income, and
recognised in profit or loss over the periods in which the related costs are recognised; if the grant is a
compensation for related expenses or losses already incurred, the grant is recognised immediately in
profit or loss for the current period.
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20. Government grants - continued

Relocation compensation received from the government for urban relocation and other public interests

Relocation compensation received from the government for urban relocation and other public interests,
should be recorded as special-purpose funds received. Compensation for loss of fixed assets and
intangible assets, the cost of expenses, suspended losses, assets to be built after the removal, should
be transferred from special-purpose funds received to deferred income, and based on the nature of
compensation, deferred income related to income and deferred income related to assets should be
recorded respectively. Compensation net of amounts transferred to deferred income should be
recognized as capital reserve.

21. Deferred tax assets / Deferred tax liabilities
Tax expense comprises current tax expense and deferred tax expense

21.1 Current income taxes

At the balance sheet date, current income tax liabilities (or assets) for the current and prior periods are
measured at the amount expected to be paid (or recovered) according to the requirements of tax laws.

21.2 Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities

Temporary differences arising from the difference between the carrying amount of an asset or liability
and its tax base, or the difference between the tax base and the carrying amount of those items that
are not recognised as assets or liabilities but have a tax base that can be determined according to tax
laws, are recognised as deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities using the balance sheet liability
method.

Generally all of the provisional differences are recognized for related deferred income tax. Whereas
for the provisional deductible differences, the Group may possibly recognize deferred income tax asset
to the limit of taxable income could be used to neutralize the provisional differences. Those taxable
provisional differences, which are related to initial recognition of goodwill, and neither enterprise
merger, nor initial recognition of assets or liabilities generated by trades make no influence on the
accounting profit and taxable income (or deductible losses), are not recognized as relative deferred
income tax liabilities.

Deductible losses and tax deduction which could be transferred to successive years are recognized as
deferred income tax assets to the limit of future taxable income which could be used to deduct
deductible losses and tax deduction.

Meanwhile, those taxable provisional differences related to investments in subsidiaries, joint
businesses, and cooperative businesses, if the Company is able to control the writing back time of the
provisional differences, and these provisional differences may neither be written back in an expectable
future, are not recognized as relative deferred income tax liabilities. Deductible provisional differences
related to investment in subsidiaries, affiliates, and joint ventures, are recognized as deferred income
tax asset only when the provisional differences could be written back in predicable future, and the
taxable income amount could be obtained to deduct the deductible provisional differences. At the
balance sheet day, those deferred income tax assets and income tax liabilities, according to the tax
law, calculation will be on tax rate applicable to retrieving period of assets or clearing of liabilities.

Except for those current income taxes and deferred income taxes related to trades which are directly
accounted into shareholders’ equity are accounted into other incomes or owners’ equity, and deferred
income tax generated by merger of businesses are adjusted in the book value of goodwill, all current
income taxes and deferred income taxes expenditures or incomes are accounted into current gain/loss
account.
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21 Deferred tax assets / Deferred tax liabilities - continued

21.2 Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities - continued

At the balance sheet day, verification will be performed on the book value of deferred income tax
assets. If it is not possible to obtain enough taxable income to neutralize the benefit of deferred income
tax assets, then the book value of the deferred income tax assets shall be reduced. Whenever
obtaining of taxable income became possible, the reduced amount shall be restored.

When accounting with net amount is a stipulated rights, and tending to account with net amount or
acquire of asset and clearing of debts are performed simultaneously, the income tax asset and
liabilities of the current term are accounted at net amount.

When accounting of income tax asset and liabilities of current term with net amount is the stipulated
rights, and the income tax asset and liabilities are related to the same subject recognized by the same
taxation authority, or to the different subjects but within each period of writing back the deferred
income tax asset and liabilities with great importance, and tending to account with net amount or
acquire of asset and clearing of debts are performed simultaneously, the income tax asset and
liabilities of the current term are accounted at net amount.

22.Financial and operating leases
A finance lease is a lease that transfers in substance all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership
of an asset. Title may or may not eventually be transferred. An operating lease is a lease other than a

finance lease.

22.1 Recording of operating leases by the Group as lessee

Lease payments under an operating lease are recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Initial direct costs are charged to profit or loss for the current period. Contingent rents are charged to
profit or loss in the period in which they are actually incurred..

22.2 Recording of operating leases by the Group as lessor

Lease income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
lease term. Significant initial direct costs are capitalised when incurred and charged to profit or loss for
the corresponding period according to the same basis for rental income recognition. Other insignificant
initial direct costs are charged to profit or loss for the period in which they are incurred. Contingent
rents are credited to profit or loss in the period in which they actually arise.

23.Changes in accounting policies and accounting estimates

23.1Changes in accounting policies

Effect on the
Changes in accounting policies financial Amount
statements

23.2Changes in accounting estimates

Effect on the
Changes in accounting estimates financial Amount
statements
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24.0ther Significant accounting policies and accounting estimates

24.1 Employee benefits

In the accounting period in which an employee has rendered services, the Group recognises the
employee benefits payable for those services as a liability, except compensation payable to
employees for termination of employment relationship

Expenditure related to payments for employees' social welfare system established by the State,
including pensions, medical insurance, housing funds and other social welfare contributions, is
included in the cost of related assets or profit or loss for the period in which they are incurred.

When the Group terminates the employment relationship with employees before the end of the
employment contracts or provides compensation as an offer to encourage employees to accept
voluntary redundancy, if the Group has a formal plan for termination of employment relationship or has
made an offer for voluntary redundancy which will be implemented immediately, and at the same time
the Group cannot unilaterally withdraw from the termination plan or the redundancy offer, a provision is
recognised for the compensation arising from termination of employment relationship with employees,
with a corresponding charge to the profit or loss for the current period.

24.2 Debt restructuring

24.2.1 Recording of debt restructuring obligation as the debtor

When a debt is settled by cash in a debt restructuring, the Group recognises the difference between
the carrying amount of the debt and the cash actually paid in profit or loss for the current period. When
a debt is satisfied by a transfer of non-cash asset(s) to the creditor, the Group recognises the
difference between the carrying amount of the debt and the fair value of the non-cash asset(s)
transferred in profit or loss for the current period. The difference between the fair value of the non-cash
asset(s) transferred and their carrying amount is recognised in profit or loss for the current period.

When a debt is converted into capital, the Group recognizes the difference between the carrying
amount of the debt and the fair value of the capital issued to the creditor in satisfaction of the debt in
profit or loss for the current period.

When a debt restructuring involves the modification of other terms of a debt, the restructured debt
should be recorded at the fair value of the debt which terms have been modified, and the difference
between the carrying amount of the original debt and the recorded amount of the restructured debt is
recognised in profit or loss for the current period.

When a debt is satisfied by a combination of various means, the Group reduces the carrying amount of
the debt by, and in sequence of, the cash payment, the fair value of the non-cash asset(s) transferred
and the fair value of the capital issued to the creditor, and then follow the aforementioned accounting
treatment for a debt restructuring involving the modification of other terms of a debt.

24.2.2 Recording of debt restructuring obligation as the creditor

When a debt is settled by cash in a debt restructuring, the Group recognises the difference between
the gross carrying amount of the debt receivable and the cash received in profit or loss for the current
period.

When a debt is satisfied by a transfer of non-cash asset(s), the Group recognised the difference

between the gross carrying amount of the debt receivable and the fair value of the non-cash asset(s)
received in profit or loss for the current period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES.-Continued

24. Other Significant accounting policies and accounting estimates - continued

24.2 Debt restructuring - continued

24.2.2 Recording of debt restructuring obligation as the creditor - continued

When a debt is converted into capital, the Group recognises the difference between the gross carrying
amount of the debt receivable and the fair value of the equity interest received in profit or loss for the
current period.

When a debt restructuring involves the modification of other terms of a debt, the restructured debt
receivable should be recorded at the fair value of the debt receivable which terms have been modified,
and the difference between the gross carrying amount of the original debt receivable and the carrying
amount of the restructured debt receivable is recognised in profit or loss for the current period.

When a debt is satisfied by a combination of various means, the Group reduces the gross carrying
amount of the debt receivable by, and in sequence of, the cash received, the fair value of the non-cash
assets obtained and the fair value of the equity interest received, and then follow the aforementioned
accounting treatment for a debt restructuring involving the modification of other terms of a debt.

If the Group has provided for an impairment loss on the debt receivable, the above difference first
reduces the impairment provision and any excess is then recognised in profit or loss for the current
period.

TAXATION

1. Taxation
Category Tax base Tax rate
Value-added tax revenues 17%
Business tax taxable income 5%
Income tax taxable income As belows

2. Taxation preferences and approval

As confirmed by Xuhui No.9 tax office and Shanghai Xuhui State Taxation Bureau
No0.3101040903000355 taxation preferential approval notice, based on documents including Cai Shui
(2008) No.21 and Guo Ke Fa (2008) No.172, Guo Ke Fa (2008) No.362, Hu Ke He (2008) No.25, the
Company is recognized as high technical enterprise, and enjoys a reduced 15% corporate tax in the
period from January 2008 to December 2010.

According to the Enterprise Income Tax Law of the People’s Republic of China (the “new EIT Law”),

Shanghai Shenyou Electrical Equipment Co., Ltd., Shanghai Microlink Electronics Co.,Ltd. and
Shanghai Seiko Spring Co., Ltd. are subject to applicable income tax rate of 25%.
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1. Subsidiaries

(1) Subsidiaries acquired through incorporation or investment

RMB
Amount of
Regist . . . Actual Additional Held | Vote | Consoli o e T
- Busines Registered Business . . Minority shareholders'
Subsidiary Types ered n investment at Investment on shares rights dated . .
s Nature capital Scope L 5 ) interest equity offset by
place end of year subsidiaries (%) (%) or not S .
minority interest in
profit and loss
Production and sales of
Shanghai Shenyou wholly Shan Manufac low-voltage control
Electrical owned hai 9 turin 1,659,540.00 | cabinet, control panel, 1,659,540.00 - 100.00 100.00 Yes - -
Equipment Co., Ltd. subsidiary 9 associated devices and
parts
Joint- Manufac sales of hair springs and Yes
Shanghai Seiko owned | Shang | furing 6,224,008.00 | provision of after-market 4,668,006.00 -| 7500 | 75.00 89,189.65 12,047.61
Spring Co. Ltd. subsidiarie hai )
S services
Joint- Manufac Production and sales of Yes
Shanghai Microlink owned Shang | turing uUsb uUsD
Electronics Co. Ltd. | subsidiarie | hai 7,100,000.00 | SomPuters and small 532500000 | £8:369,39971 | 7500 | 75.00 - -
s control system,
Shanghai Zijiu Joint- Manufac production of mechanical Yes
Measuring owned Jiangs | turing and electronic measuring
e 630,000.00 | . . - - - - - -
Instrument Co., subsidiarie u instruments and device;
Ltd.(note1) s after-market service

Note 1: Equity of this company was all transferred out in report period.

2.Subsidiaries disposed

Subsidiary

Disposal date

Method of recognition of
profit

Shanghai Zijiui Measuring
Instrument Co., Ltd.

27 May, 2010

Difference between disposal
price and the sum of
investment capital and profit
under equity method
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1.Currency funds
31/12/2010 31/12/2009
Item Foreign Exchange Foreign Exchange
Currency Rate R Currency Rate R4
Cash:
RMB 247,477.46 1.0000 247,477.46 476,927.24 1.0000 476,927.24
Bank Deposit:
RMB 155,515,119.56 1.0000 155,515,119.56 146,432,887.74 1.0000 146,432,887.74
US Dollar 35.02 6.6227 231.91 53.51 6.8282 365.38
Other Currency
Funds:
RMB 22,297,809.10 1.0000 22,297,809.10 35,131,247.52 1.0000 35,131,247.52
Total 178,060,638.03 182,041,427.88
Details of restricted bank balance are as follow:
RMB
ltem 31/12/2010 31/12/2009

Other Currency Funds

- Security Deposit

20,848,715.27

32,949,595.24

- Others

1,250,000.00

Total

22,098,715.27

32,949,595.24

2.Notes receivable

(1)Categories of Notes receivable

RMB
Category 31/12/2010 31/12/2009
Bank acceptance bills 19,956,018.82 30,434,771.25
Commercial acceptance bills 1,879,041.00

Total

19,956,018.82

32,313,812.25

(2)Acceptance bills pledged at period end

Name of drawer

Billing date

Maturity date

Amount

(3) Bills turned into Accounts receivable due to incapability of drawer payment, and notes endorsed by
the Group to others but not yet due

Name of drawer | Issuedate | due date | Amount Notes
Bills turned into bills receivable due to incapability of billers to fulfill obligation
notes endorsed by the company to others but not yet due
Jingdezhen, Jiangxi Power Plant 18/11/2010 18/05/2011 2,954,900.00 -
Hangzhou Lishi Fertilizer Co., 10/09/2010 10/03/2011 2,000,000.00 -
Ltd.
Chongging Center Energy-saving 21/09/2010 21/03/2011 2,000,000.00 -
Sanfeng Co., Ltd.
Jiangsu Sopo Co., Ltd. 13/07/2010 14/01/2011 1,734,300.00 -
Wugang Jinsheng supplies Ltd. 21/09/2010 21/03/2011 1,500,000.00 -
Total 10,189,200.00

Note: Only top 5 notes endorsed by the Group to others but not yet due are listed above.
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3.Dividends receivable

RMB
Item 31/12/2009 |  Additions Write-off | 3171212010 |  Reasons for Impaired
unrecovered
Dividends Receivable within 1 year 3,300,170.92 | 9,813,138.25 | 13,113,309.17 -
|nclud|ng:.(1) Siemens Industrial Automation Ltd., 3.299.597.00 | 3,306,678.00 6,606,275.00 R
Shanghai
(2) Chino Measuring & Control }
Equipment(Kunshan) Co., Ltd. 573.92 334,937.74 335,511.66
(3) Shanghai Dahua-Chino Instrumentation
Co., Ltd. - 189,024.52 189,024.52 -
: (4) Shanghai Henghe Electromagnetic - | 2523430.88 2.523.430.88 R
Equipment Co., Ltd
(5) Shanghai Ziyi No.9 Instrument Co., Ltd. - 200,000.00 200,000.00 -
(6) SK Transormer Co., Ltd. - | 3,229,025.11 3,229,025.11 -
(7) Bank of Communications Co., Ltd. - 30,042.00 30,042.00 -
Dividends Receivable in more than 1 year 90,798.60 - 76,800.00 13,998.60
Including:(1) Shanghai Shengyi Instrumentation 76.800.00 B 76.800.00 R
Transformer Co., Ltd.
(2) Shanghai Shangziyi Instrument R ) .
Manufacturing Co. Ltd. 13,998.60 13,998.60 Unpaid No
Total 3,390,969.52 | 9,813,138.25 | 13,190,109.17 13,998.60
4.Accounts receivable
(1 ) Disclosure of accounts receivable by categories is as follows:
RMB
31/12/2010 31/12/2009
Category Book Balance Bad Debt Provision Book Balance Bad Debt Provision
Proporti Proporti Proporti Proporti
Amount on(%) Amount on(%) Amount on(%) Amount on(%)
Individual significant
accounts with provision 272,785,978.52 36.24 | 111,673,163.81 40.94 254’836’186'? 34.99 114’083’327'? 44.77
accrued individually
Individual insignificant
SEEILI Wl i 303,637,585.30 | 4034 | 18,739,459.37 6.7 | 31254292511 4591 | 10,912,380.74 6.37
provision accrued 9
individually
Accounts receivables with provision accrued according to the group
Individual insignificant
accounts but with
R 176,246,093 45 2342 | 168,357,662.14 9552 | 160.987.7858 | oy 1o | 1984369272 | 9545
being grouped with 5 3
similar credit risk
characteristics
Total 752,669,657.36 100.00 | 298,770,285.32 39.69 728’366’897'2 100.00 292’432’635'3 40.15
The aging analysis of accounts receivable is as follows:
RMB
31/12/2010 31/12/2009
. Book Balance Book Balance
Aging . - Bad Debt
Amount Proportion(%) Bad Debt Provision Amount Prgz)ozl;tlo Provision
Within 1 year 317,463,197.66 42.18 5,940,472.62 375,511,176.47 51.56 9,101,392.48
More than 1 year but
not exceeding 2 117,612,440.28 15.63 8,355,285.20 56,812,799.77 7.80 7,678,666.98
years
More than 2 years
but not exceeding 3 28,613,262.16 3.80 4,443,701.55 19,975,826.03 2.74 4,470,193.73
years
More than 3 years
but not exceeding 4 14,143,472.20 1.88 8,225,501.02 9,930,869.28 1.36 6,307,162.46
years
More than 4 years
but not exceeding 5 8,997,716.53 1.20 7,333,806.40 5,148,199.84 0.71 4,070,379.86
years
More than 5 years 265,839,568.53 35.31 264,471,518.53 260,988,026.56 35.83 260,804,840.43
Total 752,669,657.36 100.00 298,770,285.32 728,366,897.95 100.00 292,432,635.94
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4.Accounts receivable - continued

Note about categories of accounts receivable:

The Group recognises indivisual amount more than 5 million yuan as individual significant accounts receivable.

The Group recognises indivisual amount less than 5 million yuan and within 3 years as individual insignificant accounts
receivable but with provision accrued individually.

The Group recognises indivisual amount less than 5 million yuan and more than 3 years as individual insignificant
accounts receivable but with significant risks after being grouped with similar credit risk characteristics.

Individual insignificant accounts receivable but with provision accrued individually:

RMB
ltem Book Balance Ead p?bt Proportion(%) Reasqn;, for
rovision provision

Anhui hailuo chuangqi project Co., Ltd. 4,768,001.00 367,369.47 7.70 Long receiving

period
Huaneng xinjiang fukang 4,500,000.00 270,000.00 6.00 Long receiving
thermoelectricity Co., Ltd period
Dongfeng vehicle company 4,472,252.41 1,165,712.91 26.07 Long receiving
thermoelectricity factory period
Shanghai waigaogiao power plant Co., 4,148,072.00 349,204.32 8.42 Long receiving
Ltd period
Total 17,888,325.41 2,152,286.70

Except the items above, other individual insignificant accounts receivable but with provision accrued individually is
composed by large numbers of accounts receivable with small amount.

Individual insignificant accounts but with significant risks after being grouped with similar credit risk characteristics:

RMB
Aging 31/12/2010 31/12/2009
Amount Proportion(%) Bad Debt Provision Amount Proportion(%) Bad Debt Provision
More than 3 years
but not exceeding 13,873,472.20 7.87 8,225,501.02 7,203,381.12 4.47 5,042,366.78
4 years
More than 4 years
but not exceeding 8,206,216.53 4.66 7,333,806.40 3,898,442.94 243 3,508,598.66
5 years
More than 5 years 154,166,404.72 87.47 152,798,354.72 149,885,961.79 93.10 149,885,961.79
Total 176,246,093.45 100.00 168,357,662.14 | 160,987,785.85 100.00 158,436,927.23
(2)Reverse of bad debt provision during this year is as follows:
RMB
Item Reasons Reasons to provide Accumulative bad debt Reverse or
bad debt provision provision before collecting amount
reversing
Total
(3)Accounts receivable written off during this year is as follows:
RMB
Amount of write-off Reasons for Whether it is arised by
ltem Nature . i . :
accounts receivable writing off business of related parties
Total
(4)Accounts receivable from shareholders holding over 5% (inclusive) of the Company shares are
as follows:
RMB
31/12/2010 31/12/2009
Name of shareholder Amount Bad Debt Amount Bad Debt
Provision Provision
Shanghai Electric (Group) Co., 422,200.00 - 259,200.00 -
Ltd.

84



SHANGHAI AUTOMATION INSTRUMENTATION CO., LTD.

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2010

(V) NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

(5) Top five outstanding amounts:

RMB

Proportion of the
outstanding amounts to

Name Relationship Amount Aging the total accounts
receivable (%)
USA Microlink Minority shareholder of 111,673,163.81 | More than 5 years 14.84
Electronics Co.Ltd. the company's subsidiary
Shanghai Electric Group | Common controller 70,817,155.21 | Within 4 years 9.41
Co.,Ltd.
Shanghai Common controller 17,199,822.60 | Within 3 years 2.28
metallurgymine
mechanical factory
Datang linzhou Third party 12,850,000.00 | Within 1 year 1.71
thermoelectricity Co., Ltd
Shanghai Environmental | Common controller 9,166,500.00 | Within 5 years 1.22
project set Co., Ltd
Total 221,706,641.62 29.46
(6)Account receivable from related parties
RMB
Proportion of
the
outstanding
amounts to
the total
accounts
receivable
ltem Relationship Amount (%)
Minority interest of the 111,673,163.81 14.84
USA Microlink Group Co. Ltd. company's subsidiary
Shanghai Electric  Co., Ltd. Subsidiary of ultimate holding 70,817,155.21 9.41
company
Shanghai Metallurgy Mining Machinery Subsidiary of ultimate holding 17,199,822.60 2.28
Plant company
Shanghai Environment Protection Subsidiary of ultimate holding 9,166,500.00 1.22
Engineering Units Co., Ltd. company
Shanghai SIEMENS Industrial Other investment 4,085,676.64 0.54
Automation Co., Ltd.
Shanghai Electric Power Station Subsidiary of ultimate holding 3,054,189.95 0.40
Equipment Co., Ltd. company
Shanghai Boiler Plant Co., Ltd. Subsidiary of ultimate holding 1,925,512.02 0.26
company
State-nuclear Automation Associates 1,894,100.00 0.25
Instrumentation Systematic
Engineering Co., Ltd.
Shanghai Ziyi No. 9 Instrument Co., Ltd. Associates 867,840.18 0.12
Shanghai Yawa Printing Machinery Co..Ltd. | Subsidiary of ultimate holding 780,440.00 0.10
company
Shanghai Electric Transport Co..Ltd Subsidiary of ultimate holding 608,860.02 0.08
company
Shanghai Electric Shichuan Dao Power Subsidiary of ultimate holding 474,000.00 0.06
Station Environment Protection Engineering | company
Co..Ltd
Shanghai Electric Group Co..Power Service | Subsidiary of ultimate holding 449,040.00 0.06
Center company
Shanghai Electric (Group) Co.,. Subsidiary of ultimate holding 422,200.00 0.06
company
Shanghai Electric (Group) Changjian Co., Subsidiary of ultimate holding 240,750.00 0.03
Ltd. company
Shanghai Electric .Nantong water treatment | Subsidiary of ultimate holding 126,000.00 0.02
Co..Ltd company
Shanghai Electric Wind Power Equipment Subsidiary of ultimate holding 91,725.50 0.01
Co., Ltd. company
Shanghai Heavy Machinery Plant Co., Ltd. Subsidiary of ultimate holding 65,114.00 0.01
company
Shanghai Sifang Boiler Plant Subsidiary of ultimate holding 57,711.00 0.01
company
Total 223,999,800.93 29.76
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5.0ther receivables

(1) Disclosure of other receivable by client categories is as follows:

RMB
31/12/2010 31/12/2009
Category Book Balance Bad Debt Provision Book Balance Bad Debt Provision
Proporti Proporti Proporti Proporti
Amount on(%) Amount on(%) Amount on(%) Amount on(%)
Individual significant
accounts with provision 20,191,050.14 16.52 16,378,627.74 81.12 | 14,511,916.79 11.24 | 10,699,494.39 73.73
accrued individually
Individual insignificant
accounts but with
provision accrued 21,684,124.33 17.74 408,652.71 1.88 | 32,031,541.32 24.81 4,945,576.24 15.44
individually
Other receivables with provision accrued according to the group
Individual insignificant
a_cco_unts bgt with
f)'g."'ﬁca"t LS 80,366,486.59 6574 | 7984696292 | 99.35 | 82,562,496.81 63.95 | 82,266,564.08 | 99.64
eing grouped with
similar credit risk
characteristics
Total 122,241,661.06 100.00 96,634,243.37 79.05 | 129,105,954.9 100.00 | 97,911,634.71 75.84
2
The aging analysis of other receivable is as follows:
RMB
31/12/2010 31/12/2009
: Book Balance Book Balance
Aging L - Bad Debt
Amount Proportion(%) Bad Debt Provision Amount Prg:)(;:r)tlo Provision
Within 1 year 14,782,297.98 12.09 59,371.98 23,121,572.22 17.91 512,277.06
More than 1 year but
not exceeding 2 6,270,421.02 5.13 339,851.75 3,626,126.37 2.81 215,916.94
years
More than 2 years
but not exceeding 3 631,405.33 0.52 9,428.97 906,825.20 0.70 383,757.01
years
More than 3 years
but not exceeding 4 251,773.03 0.20 184,779.61 768,248.91 0.60 729,729.80
years
More than 4 years
but not exceeding 5 376,717.47 0.31 328,075.33 1,033,964.24 0.80 666,398.81
years
More than 5 years 99,929,046.23 81.75 95,712,735.73 99,649,217.98 77.18 95,403,555.09
Total 122,241,661.06 100.00 96,634,243.37 129,105,954.92 100.00 97,911,634.71

Note about categories of other receivable:
The Group recognises indivisual amount more than 5 million yuan as individual significant other receivable.

The Group recognises indivisual amount less than 5 million yuan and within 3 years as individual insignificant other
receivable but with provision accrued individually.
The Group recognises indivisual amount less than 5 million yuan and more than 3 years as individual insignificant other
receivable but with significant risks after being grouped with similar credit risk characteristics.

Individual insignificant other receivable but with provision accrued individually:

RMB
Item Book Balance pad Deb! Proportion(%) Reasons for
rovision provision
Shanghai jinbo Flexible Element 2,232,650.52 - - Can be received.
Co,, Ltd
Shanghai Mi'ou instrumentation 754,000.00 - - Can be received.
manufactary Co.
Shanghai zhousheng 451,154.15 - - Can be received.
instrumentation project Co., Ltd
China nuclear project Co., Ltd 200,512.80 - - Can be received.
Total 3,638,317.47 - -

Except the items above, other individual insignificant other receivable but with provision accrued individually is
composed by large numbers of other receivable with small amount.
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5.0ther receivables - continued

Individual insignificant accounts but with significant risks after being grouped with similar credit risk

characteristics: RMB
Aging 31/12/2010 31/12/2009
Amount Proportion(%) Bad Debt Provision Amount Proportion(%) Bad Debt Provision
More than 3 years
but not exceeding 251,773.03 0.31 184,779.60 742,453.69 0.90 519,717.58
4 years
More than 4 years
but not exceeding 376,717.47 0.47 328,075.33 731,966.15 0.89 658,769.53
5 years
More than 5 years 79,737,996.09 99.22 79,334,107.99 81,088,076.97 98.21 81,088,076.97
Total 80,366,486.59 100.00 79,846,962.92 82,562,496.81 100.00 82,266,564.08

(2) Reverse of bad debt provision during this year is as follows:

RMB
ltem Reasons Accordings to Accumulative bad debt Reverse
original bad provision before reversing
debt provision
Total
(3) Other receivable written off during this year is as follows:
RMB
Amount of write-off Reasons for writing Whether it is arised by
Item Nature . . :
other receivable off business of related parties
Suzhou xinmin Prepaid fee 1,629,444.26 | It can’t be received. No
Tower & Tomb
Co,, Ltd
Others Prepaid fee 516,373.02 | It can’t be received. No
Total 2,145,817.28
(4) Other receivable from shareholders holding over 5% (inclusive) of the Company shares are as follows:
RMB
31/12/2010 31/12/2009
Name of shareholder Amount Bad Debt Amount Bad Debt
Provision Provision
(5) Nature or content of major other receivable is as follows:
Other receivable is mainly composed of prepaid fee, entrusted loans and rental deposit, etc.
(6) Top five outstanding amounts:
RMB
Proportion of
. R the outstanding
Name Relatloréshlp e Amount Aging amounts to the
roup
total other
receivable (%)
SPD Bank Xuhui Branch Third party 9,500,000.00 | Over 5 years 7.77
Shanghai zhaohe Third party 5,679,133.35 | Over 5 years 4.65
communication electronic Co.,
Ltd
Shanghai Shangziyi Rotate Associates 5,011,916.79 | Over 5 years 410
Speed Meter Electromagnetic
Equipment Co., Ltd.
Shanghai Jinbo Flexible Element Third party 2,232,650.52 | Within 2 years 1.82
Co., Ltd.,
Linyi Zhongnan Project Co., Ltd Third party 2,089,810.35 | Over 5 years 1.71
Total 24,513,511.01 - 20.05
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5.0ther receivables - continued

(7)Other receivable from related parties:

RMB
Name Relationship Amount Proportion of the
outstanding
amounts to the total
other receivable
(%)
Shanghai Shangziyi Rotate Speed Associates 5,011,916.79 4.10
Meter
Electromagnetic Equipment Co., Ltd.
Shanghai Henghe Electromagnetic Associates 587,622.05 0.48
Equipment Co., Ltd.
Shanghai SIEMENS Industrial Other investment 275,855.88 0.23
Automation Co., Ltd.
Shanghai Ziyi No. 9 Instrument Co., Associates 59,738.30 0.05
Ltd.
Total 5,935,133.02 4.86
6.Prepayments
(1)The aging analysis of advances to suppliers is as follows:
RMB
Aging 31/12/2010 31/12/2009
Amount Proportion(%) Amount Proportion(%)
Within 1 year 66,042,488.39 94.59 66,684,074.92 91.06
MANGITE 7R ) €T s 3,645,719.97 5.22 4,829,000.43 6.59
exceeding 2 years
LSO T 2 715 el 99,533.26 0.14 720,049.57 0.98
exceeding 3 years
More than 3 years 32,960.26 0.05 1,000,653.57 1.37
Total 69,820,701.88 100.00 73,233,778.49 100.00

Note about aging of prepayment: There is Prepayment more than 1 year because transaction hasn’t been finished.

(2) Top five outstanding amounts:

RMB
Name Relationship Amount Aging
Shanghai instrument system . -
project Co., Ltd Third party 4,433,877.72 Within 2 years
Shanghai lanyi automation . -
equipment Co., Ltd Third party 2,635,944.59 Within 1 year
Shanghai shangyi . -
international trading Co., Ltd. Third party 2,600,000.00 Within 1 year
lsiglnel M0 SUEmEIn Third party 2,399,898.99 Within 1 year
equipments selling center
Shanghai Tepu
Instrumentation Complete Third party 1,934,900.58 Within 1 year
Equipment Co., Ltd.
14,004,621.88
Note for major vendors: Balance of prepayment is main amount due to suppliers.
(3)Prepayment to shareholders holding over 5% (inclusive) of the Company shares.
RMB
31/12/2010 31/12/2009
Name of shareholder Amount Bad Debt Amount Bad Debt
Provision Provision
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(4)Disclosure of prepayment by client categories is as follows:

risks after being grouped with similar credit risk

RMB

Category 31/12/2010 31/12/2009
Individual significant accounts - -
Individual insignificant accounts but with significant 32,960.26 1,000,653.57

characteristics
Individual insignificant accounts 69,787,741.62 72,233,124.92
Total 69,820,701.88 73,233,778.49

Note about categories of prepayment:

The Group recognises indivisual amount more than 5 million yuan as individual significant prepayment.
The Group recognises indivisual amount less than 5 million yuan and within 3 years as individual

insignificant prepayment.

The Group recognises indivisual amount less than 5 million yuan and more than 3 years as individual
insignificant prepayment but with significant risks after being grouped with similar credit risk

characteristics.

7.Inventories

(1)Category
RMB
31/12/2010 31/12/2009
Categor i i
e Book Balance Devall_J::_\tlon Carrying Amount| Book Balance Devalga_hon Carrying Amount
Provision Provision
Raw Materials | 69,067,711.08| 6,133,862.88| 62,933,848.20| 69,202,121.69 6,264,318.64| 62,937,803.05
Work-in- 73,932,335.23| 3,030,584.31| 70,901,750.92| 88,899,749.86 3,030,584.31| 85,869,165.55
process
Finished 43,210,176.99| 7,164,917.07| 36,045,259.92 40,594,159.38 8,301,312.14| 32,292,847.24
Goods
Goods 6,233,165.95| 180,372.81 6,052,793.14| 15,405,872.69 396,029.68( 15,009,843.01
Delivered
Total 192,443,389.2| 16,509,737.0| 175,933,652.18| 214,101,903.62| 17,992,244.77| 196,109,658.85
5 7
(2)Provision for decline in value
RMB
ey Opening Provision for Write-off ' Closing
Balance on decline in value Reversals Written off Balance on
Raw Materials 6,264,318.64 - - 130,455.76 6,133,862.88
Work-in- 3,030,584.31 - - - 3,030,584.31
Finished Goods 8,301,312.14 - 111,421.02 1,024,974.05 7,164,917.07
Goods 396,029.68 - 215,656.87 - 180,372.81
Total 17,992,244.77 - 327,077.89 1,155,429.81 16,509,737.07

(3) Changes in write-down of inventory provision are as follows:

ltem The basis for determination of | The reason for reversal of | The proportion of amount of
write-down of inventories previous write-down reversal for the period to the
closing balance of the relevant
inventories
Raw Materials the lower of cost and net No reversal this year 0.00%
realisable value
Work-in- process the lower of cost and net No reversal this year 0.00%
realisable value
Finished Goods the lower of cost and net Increase in price 0.26%
realisable value
Goods Delivered the lower of cost and net Increase in price 3.46%
realisable value
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8.Available-for-sale financial assets

(1)Category
RMB

Category 31/12/2010 31/12/2009

Fair Value Fair Value
Available-for-sale bonds - -
Available-for-sale equity instruments 823,150.80 1,404,463.50
Others - -
Total 823,150.80 1,404,463.50

The fair value of available-for-sale equity instruments as at 31 December 2010 is according to closing

price in Shanghai Stock Exchange in the year end.

(2) There is no other kinds of available-for-sale financial assets reclassified to other financial

instruments during this year-.
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9.Investments in Joint venture and Associates
RMB
Proportion of Proportion of voting . . S , Investee’s total operating , -
Investee ownership interest | in investee held by Investe(;:atro;ﬁldasset at Investe;[ ?égtraér!llgb'““es Investeaet?:;traé:det assel|"income for the current Inviit:ijrp:;tp;g:rt for
held by the entity(%) the entity(%) year
Joint venture
Shanghai Dahua-Chino 50.00 50.00 27,878,711.13 9,100,856.93 18,777,854.20 33,433,052.02 1,032,954.42
Instrumentation Co., Ltd.
IAssociates
State-nuclear Automation
Instrumentation Systematic 49.00 49.00) 119,388,624.79 62,204,899.97 57,183,724.82 12,576,592.56, -26,146,790.10
Engineering Co., Ltd.
Shanghai Shangziyi Instrument ~ )
Manufacturing Co. Ltd 44.44 44.44) 29,177.39 3,361,224.77 3,332,047.38 116,999.52 466,234.78
Egﬁi’;gn*q‘g;]rggghﬁ Electromagnetio 40.00) 40.00 117,265,891.32 35,057,403.42 82,208,487.90 181,532,146.84 11,167,405.38
Shanghai Ziyi No. 9 Instrument Co., Ltd, 40.32) 40.32) 18,790,513.88 9,762,402.68 9,028,111.20) 21,919,708.77 1,009,297.27
Shanghai Shangziyi Rotate Speed
Meter Electromagnetic Equipment Co., 40.00| 40.00 11,001,188.24 14,047,183.51 -3,045,995.27 13,467,162.21 -672,555.02
Ltd.
Shanghai Kangmaosheng Air 40.00 40.00 72,928,352.45 11,764,663.35 61,163,689.10 105,315,331.93 1,494,271.00)
Components Co., Ltd.
Shanghai Kangmaosheng 40.00 40.00) 72,961,966.82 35,310,150.60 37,651,816.22 97,993,231.68 6,750,061.79
IAutomation Co., Ltd.
Chino Measuring & Control 20.00 20.00 42,705,446.34 21,297,071.58 21,408,374.76 65,639,896.60 5,646,263.11
Equipment (Kunshan) Co., Ltd.
Accounting policies and accounting estimates used by joint ventures or associates do not constitute significant difference with those used by the
Company.
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10.Long-term equity investments

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

(1)Details of long-term equity investments are as follows: RMB
Explanation of
lcciionict Proportion of GBS Provision for Provision
. - Opening Changes Closing Balance ownership LR between voting . .
Accountin Initial " : X voting in investee . impairment accrued Cash
Investee Balance as of during this as of interest held proportion and . . L
g method Investments held by the e loss as of during this Dividends
31/12/2009 year 31/12/2010 by the oo ownership interest
o entity(%) L 2010/12/31 year
entity(%) proportion in
investee
Joint Ventures
Shanghai Dahua - Chino Equity 580500000 | 9,088477.91 | 30044919 |  9,388,927.10 50.00 50.00 - - 189,024.52
Instrumentation Co., Ltd. Method
Subtotal in Joint Ventures - 9,088,477.91 300,449.19 9,388,927.10 - - - 189,024.52
Associates
State-nuclear Automation Equity 21.488.072.8
Instrumentation Systematic Method 49,000,000.00 6,531,952.31 : ! '5 28,020,025.16 49.00 49.00 - - -
Engineering Co., Ltd.
Shanghai Shangziyi Equity
Instrument Manufacturing Method 400,000.00 - - - 44.44 44.44 - - -
Co. Ltd.
izl e H e Equity 12,937,203.00 | 31,354,158.51 | 1,520236.65 | 32,883,395.16 40.00 40.00 ; ; 2,523,430.88
Equipment Co., Ltd. Method
Shanghai ShangziyiAdjuster Co. Equity ~ R _ R R R
Ltd.. (Note 1) Method 400,000.00 40.00 40.00
Shanghai Shengyi Equity
Instrumentation Transformer Co., Method 320,000.00 152,658.29 -152,658.29 - 40.00 40.00 - - -
Ltd. (Note 1)
R S . 100000000 | 343317298 | 20696146 |  3,640,134.44 4032 4032 - - 200,000.00
Shanghai Shangziyi Rotate Speed Equity
MeterElectromagnetic Equipment Method 680,000.00 - - - 40.00 40.00 - - -
Co., Ltd.
Elandialianopanshendlay Equity 5,395,394.00 | 23,927,538.08 | 537,937.56 | 2446547564 40.00 40.00 ; ; .
Components Co., Ltd. Method
Shanghai Kangmaosheng Equity
Automation Co., Ltd. Method 6,952,680.00 12,879,994.02 2,180,732.47 15,060,726.49 40.00 40.00 - - -
Chino Measuring & Control Equity : :
Equipment (Kunshan) Co., Ltd. Method 2,648,640.00 3,511,284.20 770,390.75 4,281,674.95 20.00 20.00 334,937.74
26,560,673.4
Sl i AcsasEEs - | 81,790,758.39 5 108,351,431.84 - - - 3,058,368.62
Other investments
Shanghai SIEMENS Industrial Cost
Automation Co., Ltd. Method 2,398,080.00 2,398,080.00 - 2,398,080.00 10.00 10.00 - - 3,306,678.00
Cost
SK Transformer Co., Ltd. Method 6,860,961.99 6,860,961.99 - 6,860,961.99 12.22 12.22 - - 3,229,025.11
Cost 7,624,970.00 7,624,970.00 - 7,624,970.00 - - - 7,474,970.00 -
others Method
Subtotal in Other Investments - 16,884,011.99 - 16,884,011.99 - - 7,474,970.00 6,535,703.11
Total - | 1077632482 | 268611228 | 434 624,370.93 - - 7,474,970.00 9,783,096.25
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(2) Limitation on the transfer of funds from the investee
During the reporting period, the Group is not exposed to limitation on the transfer of funds from the investee.
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10.Long-term equity investments-Continued

(3)Details of unrecognised investment loss are as follows:

RMB
Investee 2010 2009
Unrecognised Accumulated | Unrecognise | Accumulated
investment unrecognised | d investment | unrecognised
loss during this | investment loss | loss during investment
period this period loss
Shanghai Shangziyi Instrument 207,194.74 1,480,761.86 108,125.97 | 1,273,567.12
Manufacturing Co. Ltd.
Shanghai Shangziyi Adjuster Co. - - - 595,130.56
Ltd. (Note)
Shanghai Shangziyi Rotate Speed 269,022.01 1,218,398.11 615,684.11 949,376.10
MeterElectromagnetic Equipment
Co., Ltd.
Total 476,216.75 2,699,159.97 | 723,810.08 | 2,818,073.78

Note: During the reporting period, the Group transferred out the total equity interests of this associate.

11.Fixed assets

(1) Information of fixed assets

RMB
Book Balance " . Book Balance
Iltem 31/12/2009 Additions Deduction 31/12/2010

I. Cost 313,840,656.64 79,564,430.82 12,023,368.78 381,381,718.68
Including Buildings 57,469,780.94 - - 57,469,780.94
Machinery&equipment 147,288,581.28 22,536,789.95 4,486,352.65 165,339,018.58
Transportation vehicles 22,778,970.67 210,537.61 5,716,889.35 17,272,618.93

Others 85,556,143.75 55,499,888.78 1,820,126.78 139,235,905.75
Furniture&fixtures 747,180.00 1,317,214.48 - 2,064,394.48

Addition Depreciation

Il.LAccumulated depreciation 193,533,954.49 - 13,074,635.64 9,663,463.39 196,945,126.74
Including: Buildings 28,530,123.27 - 1,184,128.10 - 29,714,251.37
Machinery&equipment 98,530,142.38 - 5,156,305.82 4,303,530.00 99,382,918.20
Transportation vehicles 12,744,351.49 - 1,847,112.04 4,685,690.74 9,905,772.79
Others 53,256,063.73 - 4,776,915.43 674,242.65 57,358,736.51
Furniture&fixtures 473,273.62 - 110,174.25 - 583,447.87

Ill. Net book value 120,306,702.15 184,436,591.94
including:Buildings 28,939,657.67 27,755,529.57
Machinery&equipment 48,758,438.90 65,956,100.38
Transportation vehicles 10,034,619.18 7,366,846.14
Others 32,300,080.02 81,877,169.24
Furniture&fixtures 273,906.38 1,480,946.61
1V.Provision for impairment loss 17,943,316.73 - 81,047.89 17,862,268.84
including:Buildings 8,140,057.53 - - 8,140,057.53
Machinery&equipment 5,265,204.00 - 35,894.20 5,229,309.80
Transportation vehicles 515,995.25 - 39,241.18 476,754.07
Others 4,022,059.95 - 5,912.51 4,016,147.44
Furniture&fixtures - - - -

V. Carrying amount 102,363,385.42 166,574,323.10
including:Buildings 20,799,600.14 19,615,472.04
Machinery&equipment 43,493,234.90 60,726,790.58
Transportation vehicles 9,518,623.93 6,890,092.07
Others 28,278,020.07 77,861,021.80
Furniture&fixtures 273,906.38 1,480,946.61

During the reporting period, depreciation charged for fixed assets is amounted to RMB13,074,635.64

During the reporting period, cost of the fixed assets transferred in from construction in progress is
amounted to RMB75,882,641.28.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

11.Fixed assets - continued

Included in the deduction of cost of the reporting period, the disposal of fixed assets is amounted to
RMB10,350,727.46 and the disposal of subsidiary is amounted to RMB1,672,641.33.

Included in the deduction of accumulated depreciation of the reporting period, accumulated
depreciation of disposed fixed assets is amounted to 8,401,666.69 and accumulated depreciation of
the disposal of subsidiary ia amounted to RMB1,261,796.70 .

(2)At the end of the period, the group has no idle assets.

(3)At the end of the period, the group has no assets under finance leases

(4) Fixed assets leased under finance leases:

RMB
Item 31/12/2010 31/12/2009
Machinery&equipment - 1,641,370.55
(5) Information about fixed assets with uncompleted property certificate
RMB
Item Book value Reason for not having acquired | Expected time of acquisition
license of property use of license of property use

Buildings 3,027,612.78 | The assignment of title is not P

finished yet, related licenses are apers related has been
1sned yet, . handed to the Real Estate
still in the name of Shanghai Trade Center, still in progress
Yidian Holdings (Group) Co., Ltd. '

Buildings 2,874,838.74 | The assignment of title is not Implementation plan has
finished yet, related licenses are | been made, Shanghai Yidian
still in the name of Shanghai Holdings (Group) Co., Ltd,the
Yidian Holdings (Group) Co., Ltd. | former shareholder ,will

assist the Company to settle
transfer procedures.

Buildings 2,366,098.11 | The assignment of title is not Implementation plan has
finished yet, related licenses are | been made, Shanghai Yidian
still in the name of Shanghai Holdings (Group) Co., Ltd,the
Yidian Holdings (Group) Co., Ltd. former shareholder ,will

assist the Company to settle
transfer procedures.

Total 8,268,549.63
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12.Construction in progress

(1)Details of construction in progress:

RMB
31/12/2010 31/12/2009
Items Book Balance Provision for Carrying Book Balance |Provision for Carrying
Impairment loss amount Impairment loss amount

Large thermal power - - -| 58,424,151.55 -| 58,424,151.55
large nuke power digital ltem 29,236,406.32 - | 29,236,406.32 4,674,272.17 - 4,674,272.17
Imported graphic plotter 2,899,384.35 2,899,384.35 - 2,899,384.35| 2,899,384.35 -
Accident sequence recorder 2,378,485.90 2,378,485.90 - 2,378,485.90| 2,378,485.90 -
Key tech research on power - - - 1,893,999.68 - 1,893,999.68
equipment field general control
system
SIMAX test system 5,775,586.54 - 5,775,586.54 473,464.00 - 473,464.00
C2 main control room emulation - - - 177,619.30 - 177,619.30
item SUPMAX system card
improvement
Dual-reinforcement calibration 131,878.72 131,878.72 - 131,878.72 131,878.72 -
SIPHD live data platform intercom 1,981,518.35 - 1,981,518.35 80,000.00 - 80,000.00
development
SUPMAX800 D control system 5,991,673.44 - 5,991,673.44 358.98 - 358.98
Automatic detection system for 644,444.44 - 644,444 .44 - - -
flow rate
Diversity drive system(nuke 858,835.34 - 858,835.34 - - R
powerDAS)
SUPMAX800D card development 199,024.64 - 199,024.64 - - -
Unified monitoring platform 2,001,154.24 - 2,001,154.24 - - -
intercom development
nuke power SOE system 1,008,424.99 - 1,008,424.99 - - -
Office automation systems 683,351.48 - 683,351.48 - - -
Others 444,231.71 59,403.10 384,828.61 475,500.49 59,403.10 416,097.39
Total 54,234,400.46 5,469,152.07| 48,765,248.39| 71,609,115.14| 5,469,152.07| 66,139,963.07
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12.Construction in progress - continued

(2)Changes of significant construction in progress:

RMB
c L B Proportion of Cumulative Including: amount g A
onstruction in Complete and Other Construction in T p—— s Ratio of interest
Project progress Increase transfer to fixed (EOE TR progress Budget (e ——— Progress(%) - capitalization for capitalization for | Capital source
31/12/2009 assets 31/12/2010 b o P q p this period(%)
udget(%) capitalization this period

Large thermal power 58,424,151.55 14,990,563.96 73,414,715.51 -]_107,800,000.00 68.10 100 7,471,918.68 4,783,597.22 6.09| Loan/Self-owned
large nuke power digital Item 4,674,272.17 24,562,134.15 29,236,406.32| 167,000,000.00 17.51 17.51 6,202,231.37 4,492,427.15 5.99 Loan
Key tech research on power 1,893,999.68 1,893,999.68 - 2,000,000.00 94.70 100 Self-owned
equipment field general control system
SIMAX test system 473,464.00 5,302,122.54 5,775,586.54 6,000,000.00 96.26 96.26 Self-owned
SIPHD live data platform intercom 80,000.00 1,901,518.35 1,981,518.35 2,000,000.00 99.08 99.08 Self-owned
development
SUPMAX800 D control system 358.98 5,991,314.46 5,991,673.44 6,000,000.00 99.86 99.86 Self-owned
Unified monitoring platform intercom 2,001,154.24 2,001,154.24 2,000,000.00 100.06 99.99
development
nuke power SOE system 1,008,424.99 1,008,424.99 1,000,000.00 100.84 70.00
Total 65,546,246.38 55,757,232.69 75,308,715.19 - 45,994,763.88 13,674,150.05 9,276,024.37

Note: Only changes of significant construction in progress are disclosed.
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12.Construction in progress - continued

(3) Provision for impairment loss for construction in progress

RMB
ltems 3112/2009 | Addiions | Write-off | 31/12/2010 | Reasonfor
provision
Technological reform 59.403.10 ) ) 59.403.10 Suspend for
long time
Dugl-re_lnforcement 131,878.72 ) ) 131,878.72 Suspend for
calibration long time
Accident sequence recorder 2.378.485.90 ) ) 2.378,485.90 S:Jspeqd for
ong time
Imported graphic plotter 2.899,384.35 ) ) 2.899,384.35 S:Jspeqd for
ong time
Total 5,469,152.07 - -l 5,469,152.07
(4) Movement of significant construction in progress
ltems Budget Progress(%) Note
Large thermal power - 100%| Transferred to fixed assets
large nuke power digital ltem 29,236,406.32 17.51%
13.Intangible assets
(1)Intangible assets
RMB
Items Book Balance Additions Write-off Book Balance
31/12/2009 31/12/2010
l. Cost 28,659,033.34 | 12,590,400.32 41,249,433.66
Land Use Right 23,144,726.14 | 12,320,000.00 35,464,726.14
Software 1,983,096.00 270,400.32 2,253,496.32
Patents 3,531,211.20 - 3,531,211.20
Il. Accumulated amortization 7,964,406.76 1,013,191.55 8,977,598.31
Land Use Right 3,545,018.35 805,855.72 4,350,874.07
Software 1,972,796.18 64,379.86 2,037,176.04
Patents 2,446,592.23 142,955.97 2,589,548.20
[ll.Net book value 20,694,626.58 32,271,835.35
Land Use Right 19,599,707.79 31,113,852.07
Software 10,299.82 216,320.28
Patents 1,084,618.97 941,663.00
IV. Provision for impairment
loss 941,663.00 - 941,663.00
Land Use Right - - -
Software - - -
Patents 941,663.00 - 941,663.00
V. Carrying amount 19,752,963.58 31,330,172.35
Land Use Right 19,599,707.79 31,113,852.07
Software 10,299.82 216,320.28
Patents 142,955.97 -

During the reporting period, amortization charged for intangible assets is RMB1,013,191.55
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — CONTINUED

13.Intangible assets-

continued

(2)Research and development expenditures

Total

ltem Opening Expenditures Transfer out during the year Closing balance
balance incurred Recognized in | Transferred to
profit and loss intangible
assets
Supercritical thermal - 49,598,782.03 | 46,688,055.15 - 2,910,726.88
power project, etc.
- 49,598,782.03 | 46,688,055.15 - 2,910,726.88

The exploration expenditures accounts for 5.87% of total research and development expenditures
during this reporting period.

During this reporting period, the group has no intangible assets transferred from internal research and

development.

14.Long-term prepaid expenses

RMB
- L Other Reasons for
ltems 31/12/2009 Additions Amortization . 31/12/2010 .
deduction other deduction
.Leasehold 1,255,858.39 1,188,584.95 775,454 .51 - | 1,668,988.83 -
improvement
Total 1,255,858.39 1,188,584.95 775,454.51 - | 1,668,988.83 -

15.Deferred tax assets/Deferred tax liabilities

(1) Deferred tax assets and liabilities before offsetting are set below:

Deferred Tax Assets/liabilities and relevant deductible and taxable temporary difference after offsetting:

RMB

ltems

Closing balance of
deferred tax assets
or liabilities

Closing balance of
Deductible and
Taxable temporary
differences

Opening balance of
deferred tax assets or
liabilities

Opening balance of
Deductible and
Taxable temporary
differences

Deferred tax assets:

Assets provision for
impairment losses

2,325,298.22

15,403,811.43

1,371,901.80

8,823,929.03

start-up costs

Deductible losses

Deferred Income

5,053,800.00

33,692,000.00

Subtotal

2,325,298.22

15,403,811.43

6,425,701.80

42,515,929.03

Deferred tax assets and
liabilities offsetting

93,734.82

Balance of Deferred Assets

2,231,563.40

6,425,701.80

Deferred liabilities:

Valuation of Financial
instruments held for trading
and Derivatives

Changes in fair value of
available-for-sale financial
assets recognized in other
comprehensive income

93,734.82

624,898.80

180,931.73

1,206,211.50

Subtotal

93,734.82

624,898.80

180,931.73

1,206,211.50

Deferred tax assets and
liabilities offsetting

93,734.82

Balance of Deferred

Liability

180,931.73
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15.Deferred tax assets/ Deferred tax liabilities - continued

(2)Details of offsetting between deferred tax assets and liabilities:

RMB
ltems Offsetting Amount
Opening Balance 93,734.82
Closing Balance -
(3)Details of unrecognized deferred tax assets
RMB
Items 31/12/2010 31/12/2009
Deductible temporary differences 428,258,508.24 431,341,688.19
Deductible losses - 19,772,708.52
Total 428,258,508.24 451,114,396.71

(4)The deductible losses (or deductible temporary differences) which are not recognised as deferred

tax assets will expire in following years.

RMB
Year 31/12/2010 31/12/2009

2010 - 8,830,255.73
2011 - 2,377,491.92
2012 - 8,564,960.87
2013 - -
2014 - -
2015 - -
Total - 19,772,708.52
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16.Provision for impairment loss of assets

RMB

ltems

31/12/2009

Provided for
the year

Reductions

Reversals

Write-off
(Note)

31/12/2010

1. Provision for bad debts(Note)

390,344,270.65

7,406,495.5
6

2,346,237.
52

395,404,528.
69

2. Provision for inventory
write-down

17,992,244.77

327,077.8
9

1,155,429.
81

16,509,737.0
7

3. Provision for impairment of
available-for-sale financial
assets

4 .Provision for impairment of
held-to-maturity investments

5. Provision for impairment of
long-term equity investments

7,474,970.00

7,474,970.00

6. Provision for impairment of
investment properties

7. Provision for impairment of
fixed assets

17,943,316.73

81,047.89

17,862,268.8
4

8. Provision for impairment of
construction project materials

9. Provision for impairment of
construction in progress

5,469,152.07

5,469,152.07

10. Provision for impairment of
bearer biological assets

including: Provision for
impairment of mature bearer
biological assets

11. Provision for impairment of
oil and gas assets

12. Provision for impairment of
intangible assets

941,663.00

941,663.00

13. Provision for impairment of
goodwill

14. Others

Total

440,165,617.22

7,406,495.5
6

327,077.8
9

3,5682,715.
22

443,662,319.
67

Note: Write-off of provision for bad debts due to the change of consolidation scope: RMB200,420.24.

17.Short-term borrowings

(1) Short-term borrowings by categories:

RMB

Category

31/12/2010

31/12/2009

Unsecured loans

12,139,446.21

1,489,018.86

Loans secured by pledge of assets

1,669,963.78

Guaranteed loans(Note)

413,500,000.00

368,500,000.00

Total

425,639,446.21

371,658,982.64

Note: The above guaranteed borrowings are guaranteed by Shanghai Electric (Group) Corporation.

(2) Overdue short-term borrowings:

RMB
Individual lender Amount Interest Funds purpose Reasons for Estimated
outstanding repayment
period
China Construction Bank 1,089,018.86 Note
Others 400,000.00 Note
Total 1,489,018.86

Note: Borrowings due but not yet paid: RMB1,489,018.86 of short term loans of the Group had been dued during 1990
and 1998. The said loans were originated from the change of granting to loans. The Group will deal with them according

to related regulations.
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18.Notes payable

RMB
Category 31/12/2010 31/12/2009
Bank acceptance 1,442,630.10 -
Commercial acceptance - -
Total 1,442,630.10 -
Amounting to RMB1,442,630.10 will expire in next accounting period.
19.Accounts payable
(1)Details of accounts payable:
RMB
Item 31/12/2010 31/12/2009

Accounts payable for purchase

298,104,606.57

300,698,697.02

(2) Accounts payable to shareholders holding over 5% (inclusive) of the equity interests with

voting power or to related parties.

RMB
Name 31/12/2010 31/12/2009

State-nuqlear Aytomgtlon Instrumentation 2.900,644.00 8.067,239.80
Systematic Engineering Co., Ltd.

Shanghai Dahua-Chino Instrumentation Co., Ltd. 656,741.60 31,020.00
Shanghai Electric Group Co. 201,357.62 201,357.62
Etréanghal Henghe Electromagnetic Equipment Co., 71.582.55 205.674.55
Shanghai Cable Works Co., Ltd. 28,135.50 -
Ett:fnghal Shengyi Instrumentation Transformer Co., ) 3,120.00
Shanghai Electric(Group) Co., Ltd. - 858,349.81
Shanghai Electric Power Station Equipment Co., Ltd. - 341,198.44
Shanghai Ziyi No. 9 Instrument Co., Ltd. - 170,156.00
Shanghai Shangziyi Rotate Speed Meter )

Electromagnetic Equipment Co., Ltd. 85,920.00
Shanghai Shangziyi Adjuster Co. Ltd. - 5,100.00
Etr:janghal Shangziyi Instrument Manufacturing Co. ) 2.581.00
Total 3,858,461.27 9,971,717.22

(3) As at December 31, 2010, accounts payable over 3 years amounted to RMB15,215,970.78, which

was composed of large numbers of unsettled payments for equipments and goods.
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20.Advance payments from customers

(1) Details of advance payments from customers are as follows:

RMB

Items

31/12/2010

31/12/2009

Advance payments from customers

94,453,048.19

72,908,394.70

(2) As at 31 December 2010, outstanding balance due to either the shareholders holding more than
5% (including 5%) of the Company's voting rights or related parties are as follows:

RMB
Name 31/12/2010 31/12/2009
Shanghai Environment Protection Engineering Units Co., Ltd. 2,250,000.00 -
Shanghai Electric Group Corporation 2,188,680.00 -
Shanghai Electric Power Station Equipment Co., Ltd. 1,543,166.28| 2,202,161.23
Shanghai Electric Wind Power Equipment Co., Ltd. 618,877.95 -
Etr:je-mghal Electric Shichuan Dao Power Station Environment Co., 598,000.00 )
Shanghai Power Equipment Research Institute 51,939.20 -
Shanghai Machine Tool works Ltd - 2,358.00
Shanghai Welding Machine Manufactory - 700.20
Total 7,250,663.43| 2,205,219.43
Explanation of large amounts of advance payments from customers aged over 1 year:
11,453,627.97 yuan, because transactions is not completed.
21.Employee benefits payable
RMB
ltems 31/12/2009 Additions Reductions 31/12/2010
1. Wages and salaries 410,134.15 94,266,533.98 94,676,668.13 -
2. Employee welfare expenses - 11,190,984.71 11,190,984.71 -
3. Social insurance contributions 572,472.70 28,150,639.14 28,723,111.84 -
Including: Premiums or
cocnltJr?bugtJionseon l:nesdi(::al insurance 18,436.09 7,634,185.21 7,6562,621.30 ]
Basic pension insurance 544,639.96 18,079,988.34 18,624,628.30 -
Unemployment insurance 9,152.37 1,624,740.01 1,633,892.38 -
Work injury insurance 122.14 405,862.79 405,984.93 -
Maternity insurance 122.14 405,862.79 405,984.93 -
4. Housing funds 5,472.40 5,899,583.54 5,903,227.54 1,828.40
9. Labar el SE6 2 GgloyEe 2,557,339.52 3,261,580.25 3,414,649.27 2,404,270.50
education expenses
6. Others - - - -
Total 3,545,418.77 142,769,321.62 143,908,641.49 2,406,098.90

No overdue payable was included in the employee benefits payable.

As of December 31, 2010, labor union fees and employee education expenses is amounted to

2,404,270.50 yuan.
22.Tax payable

RMB
Category of tax 31/12/2010 31/12/2009

Value-added tax 736,286.50 8,043,047.13
Business tax 210,465.38 174,467.99
City maintenance and construction tax 434,925.90 700,055.40
Enterprise Income tax 22,262.75 1,303,525.30
Property tax 1,191,602.58 1,443,021.34
Others 401,305.41 444 ,469.27
Total 2,996,848.52 12,108,586.43
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23.Interest payable

RMB

Iltems

31/12/2010

31/12/2009

long-term borrowings with periodic
payment of interest

18,489,819.00

17,159,412.72

Interest payable for short-term
borrowings

1,498,595.57

1,662,159.40

Total

19,988,414.57

18,821,572.12

24.Dividends payable

Note: Interest expenses for overdued loans is amounted to 19,490,909.95 yuan.

RMB

Name 31/12/2010 31/12/2009 Reason for unpaid over 1 year
Shanghai Yidian Holdings Should be paid but not paied y
(Group) Co., Ltd. 4,482,460.25 4,482,460.25 ot

25.0ther payables

(1)Details of other payables:

RMB
Items 31/12/2010 31/12/2009

Shanghai Electric (Group) Corporation 51,893,200.96 21,893,200.96
Prepayment for others 2,135,319.34 -
Deposits 1,218,016.00 7,745,162.60
Lease payables 1,104,093.62 33,018,187.62
Few temperate receipts 851,920.24 3,870,548.81
Jiangsu Liyang Real Estate Company 1,090,000.00 1,090,000.00
Others 19,210,583.37 16,449,720.57
Total 77,503,133.53 84,066,820.56

(2) Other payables to shareholders holding over 5% (inclusive) of the equity interests with voting

power or to related parties are as follow:

Co., Ltd.

RMB
Name 31/12/2010 31/12/2009

Shanghai Electric (Group) Co., Ltd. 51,893,200.96 21,893,200.96
(Lité?he Automatic System Engineering Co., 483,043.07 i
Shanghai Shengyi Instrumentation
Transformer Co., Ltd. ] 151,023.52
Shanghai Wentong Property Co., Ltd. - 979,350.00
Shanghai Ziyi No.9 Instrument Co., Ltd. - 210,435.73
Shanghai Henghe Electromagnetic Equipment ) 125 878.72

Total

52,376,244.03

23,359,888.93

(3)Explanation of large amounts of other payables aged over 1 year:

Among other payables to Shanghai Electric Group Co., other payables amounted to
RMB21,893,200.00 is over 1 year, which is temperate borrowings from Shanghai Electric Group Co.

(4)Significant amount of other payables

As at December 31,2010, other payables mainly included temperate borrowings from Shanghai

Electric Group Co.
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26.Non-current liabilities due within one year

(1)Details of non-current liabilities due within one year:

RMB

ltems

31/12/2010

31/12/2009

Long-term borrowings due within one year

50,216,406.02

15,216,406.02

Bonds issued due within one year

Long-term payables

Total

50,216,406.02

15,216,406.02

(2) Long-term borrowings due within one year:

(a) Long-term borrowings due within one year:

RMB

ltems 31/12/2010 31/12/2009
Loans secured by pledge of assets - -
Mortgage loans - -
Guaranteed loans(Note) 38,000,000.00 3,000,000.00
Unsecured loans 12,216,406.02 12,216,406.02

Total

50,216,406.02

15,216,406.02

Note: The above guaranteed borrowings are guaranteed by Shanghai Electric (Group) Corporation.

(b) Top five long-term borrowings due within one year:

RMB
2010 2009
Original Original
Individual lender Begin with | Due to |Currency|Interest(%)| Currency RMB Currency RMB

China Construction Bank |2008-2-29 2012-12-30f RMB 5.98-6.19 38,000,000.00 3,000,000.00
China Construction Bank |Note 10,207,916.52 10,207,916.52
Industrial and Commercial |[Note 646,122.01 646,122.01
Bank of China
Bank of Communications |Note 450,000.00 450,000.00
Others Note 912,367.49 912,367.49

Note :

Loans due but not paid: 12,216,406.02 yuan of short term loans of the Group had been due

during 1990 and 1998. The said loans were originated from the change of granting to loans. The
Group will deal with them according to related regulations.

(c) Matured long-term borrowings due within one year:
RMB
Individual lender Amount Overdue e Funds Reasons for Estimated
(%) purpose outstanding repay.ment
period
China Construction Bank 10,207,916.52 Note
Industrial and Commercial 646,122.01 Note
Bank of China
Bank of Communications 450,000.00 Note
Others 912,367.49 Note
Total 12,216,406.02

The Group has not repaid the matured long-term borrowings due within one year after balance sheet

date.

Note :

Loans due but not paid: 12,216,406.02 yuan of short term loans of the Group had been due

during 1990 and 1998. The said loans were originated from the change of granting to loans. The
Group will deal with them according to related regulations.
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27.Long-term borrowings

(1)Category of long-term borrowings:

RMB

Category

31/12/2010

31/12/2009

Loans secured by pledge of assets

Mortgage loans

Guaranteed loans(Note)

115,500,000.00

153,500,000.00

Unsecured loans

Total

115,500,000.00

153,500,000.00

Note: The above borrowings are guaranteed by Shanghai Electric (Group) Corporation.

(2) Top five long-term borrowings:

RMB
2010 2009
Original Original
Individual lender | Begin with Due to Currency [Interest(%)| Currency RMB Currency RMB
g;"n”ka Construction | 5008.2.29 |2012-12-30| RMB | 5.98~6.19 -] 40,500,000.00 -| 78,500,000.00
CBIQLnka Development | 544971 | 2021-6-30 | RMB 6.02 - 75,000,000.00 | 75,000,000.00
Total -|115,500,000.00 -[153,500,000.00
28.Special-purpose funds received
RMB
ltems 31/12/2009 | Additions | Reductions | 31/12/2010 Exp"':‘]“at'o
Special fund granted by the 19,477,056.3 1.110,000.00 20,587,056.3 i
government 2 2
Amount of land transfer - | 6,628,000.00 | 2,478,233.00 | 4,149,767.00 Note
Total 19,477,056.3 | 7,738,000.00 | 23,065,289.3 | 4,149,767.00
Note: Funds received from government for land purchasing this year.
29.0ther non-current liabilities
RMB
ltems 31/12/2010 31/12/2009
Deferred income related to income (Note 1) 765,000.00 11,792,000.00

Deferred income related to asset (Note 2) 41,000,000.00 21,900,000.00

Total 41,765,000.00

33,692,000.00

Explanation to other non-current liabilities:

Note 1: It referred to the R&D subsidy received.

Note 2: It referred to receipt for discount from large thermal power, large nuclear power digital item, to
be amortized in expected years of use after being completed.
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30.Share capital

RMB
2010: Additions / Reversals (shares)
Balance at beginning Balance at end of
of year (Shares ear (Shares
veart ) is’s\l:éN of EICIITE) Cepiilezion @ Others | Subtotal veer! )
share issue surplus reserve
|. Restricted tradable _ B _ _ _ - _
State-owned shares - - - - - - -
Subtotal - - - - - - -
Il. Non-tradable B B _ - - -
Ordinary shares
denominated in RMB 292.141,390.00 _ . _ - R 292,141,390.00
Foreign capital
shares !lsted 107,145,500.00 - - - - - 107,145,500.00
Subtotal 399,286,890.00 - - - - - 399,286,890.00
lll. Total shares 399,286,890.00 - - - - - 399,286,890.00
RMB
2009: Additions / Reversals (shares)
Balance at
Balance at end
beginning of ¢ (Sh )
] italisati of year (Shares
year (Shares) | New issue of | Bonus C?)?gi:;ﬁ}lso ! Others Subtotal ’
share issue
reserve
|. Restricted
tradable shares
State-owned shares |105 359,357.00 - - -105,359,357.00[-105,359,357.00 -
Subtotal 105,359,357.00 - - -105,359,357.00|-105,359,357.00 -
II. Non-tradable
shares
Ordinary shares
denominated in 186,782,033.00 - - 105,359,357.00| 105,359,357.00] 292,141,390.00
Foreign capital
shares listed 107,145,500.00 - - - -| 107,145,500.00
Subtotal 293,927,533.00 - - 105,359,357.00| 105,359,357.00| 399,286,890.00
IIl. Total shares 399,286,890.00 - - - -| 399,286,890.00
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31.Capital reserve

ltem

Opening
balance

Addition

Deduction

Closing Balance

From 2010/1/1 to 2010/12/31.:

Share premium

73,598,677.70

73,598,677.70

Including: Capital injected by investors

74,447,223.12

74,447,223.12

Differences derived from
business combination
involving enterprises under
common control

The application of convertible
debenture

Conversion of debt by the
capital

Others

-848,545.42

-848,545.42

Other comprehensive income

1,025,279.77

494,115.79

531,163.98

Other capital reserve

150,990,828.1
2

150,990,828.12

Including: Fair value changes on
available-for-sale
financial assets

Tax effect derived from
available-for-sale financial
assets

Change in capital reserve of
invested entities under
equity method

Assets revaluation gain in
business combination
involving enterprises not
under common control

Other capital reserve-Transfer from
capital reserve under the previous
accounting system

150,990,828.1
2

150,990,828.12

Total

225,614,785.5
9

494,115.79

225,120,669.80

From 2009/1/1 to 2009/12/31.:

Share premium

73,598,677.70

73,598,677.70

Including: Capital invested by investors

74,447,223.12

74,447,223.12

The application of convertible
debenture

Conversion of debt by the
capital

others

-848,545.42

-848,545.42

Other comprehensive income

522,756.00

502,523.77

1,025,279.77

Other capital reserve

150,973,056.4
6

17,771.66

150,990,828.12

Including: Fair value changes on
available-for-sale
financial assets

Tax effect derived from
available-for-sale financial
assets

Change in capital reserve of
invested entities under
equity method

Assets revaluation gain in
business combination
involving enterprises not
under common control

Other capital reserve-Transfer from
capital reserve under the previous
accounting system

150,973,056.4
6

17,771.66

150,990,828.12

Total

225,094,490.1
6

520,295.43

225,614,785.59
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32.Surplus reserve

surplus reserve

RMB
ltems Balance at beginning Accruals Transferred from Balance at end of
of year unappropriated profit year
2010
Statutory 12,040,259.03 i 12,040,259.03

Discretionary

10,727,267.34
surplus reserve

- 10,727,267.34

12,040,259.03
surplus reserve

Total 22,767,526.37 - 22,767,526.37
2009
Statutory

- 12,040,259.03

Discretionary

10,727,267.34
surplus reserve

- 10,727,267.34

Total 22,767,526.37

- 22,767,526.37

33.Unappropriated profit

RMB

ltems

Amount

2010

Unappropriated profit at beginning of year

-487,050,337.82

Add: Net profit of the year

5,883,576.06

Less: Appropriation to statutory surplus reserve

Unappropriated profit to discretionary surplus reserve

Appropriation to reserve fund

Appropriation to enterprise expension fund

Appropriation to staff and workers' bonus and welfare fund

Appropriation to risk reserve

Dividends payable

Ordinary dividends converted into share capital

Unappropriated profit at end of year

-481,166,761.76

2009

Unappropriated profit at beginning of year

-492,774,883.65

Add: Net profit of the year

5,724,545.83

Less: Appropriation to statutory surplus reserve

Unappropriated profit to discretionary surplus reserve

Appropriation to reserve fund

Appropriation to enterprise expension fund

Appropriation to staff and workers' bonus and welfare fund

Appropriation to risk reserve

Dividends payable

Ordinary dividends converted into share capital

Unappropriated profit at end of year

-487,050,337.82
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34.0perating income & Operating cost

(1) Operating income & Operating cost

RMB
ltems 2010 2009
Income from principal business operations 952,861,537.99 1,100,091,410.89
Income from other business operations 22,057,866.30 18,000,802.81
Cost of business operations 801,533,530.25 895,116,776.14

(2) Principal business operations

RMB

2010

2009

Operating

Iltems income

Operating cost Operating

income

Operating cost

Instrumentation and
Implementation Device
Department Income

308,452,138.11

216,842,387.56

412,207,056.31

289,483,424.95

Digital Control System

Department Income 213,441,929.94

170,586,367.43

254,688,142.76

198,344,648.84

Installation and
Assembly Department
Income

430,967,469.94

404,173,910.42

433,196,211.82

398,888,316.18

Total 952,861,537.99

791,602,665.41

1,100,091,410.89

886,716,389.97

(3) Details of the revenue from top 5 customers of the Group are as below:

RMB
Client Operating income Proportion of operating
income(%)
Shanghai Electric Group Co., Ltd. 36,298,843.49 3.72
Shanghai Puhong Power Equipment Co., Ltd. 27,330,512.81 2.80
Shandong Luneng Group Co., Ltd. Materials Branch 25,920,047.01 2.66
Shanghai Alcatel-Lucent Information Products Co., Ltd. 18,817,279.54 1.93
Qinghai Salt Lake Haihong Chemical Co., Ltd. 17,270,917.08 1.77
Total 125,637,599.93 12.88
35.Business tax and surcharges
RMB
ltems 2010 2009 Tax Standard
Business tax 3,248,195.94 2,452,792.39| Taxable Income
City maintenance and construction tax 2,335,620.36 2,623,960.31| Turnover Tax
Educational surcharge 1,083,070.98 1,296,169.51| Turnover Tax
Others 70,228.65 16,970.74
Total 6,737,115.93 6,389,892.95
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36.Selling expenses

RMB
ltems 2010 2009

Salary 15,454,349.09 19,156,789.54
Traveling 7,823,792.31 8,139,465.49
Entertainment 2,429,841.85 101,118.00
Transportation 3,497,698.12 4,919,073.96
Labor 3,115,586.83 225,683.40
Social insurance contributions 5,230,991.15 -
Welfare 2,058,880.78 2,786,995.18
Selling and service 1,543,893.31 2,476,184.38
Packaging 1,163,890.11 1,009,270.24
Office 1,137,737.94 2,311,372.92
Others 7,040,606.63 2,566,081.08
Total 50,497,268.12 43,692,034.19

37.Administrative expenses

RMB
ltems 2010 2009
Salary 25,689,543.65 28,682,663.30
Research and development 46,688,055.15 10,593,648.56
Social insurance contributions 9,520,895.18 23,551,577.47
Entertainment 14,893,425.28 18,765,699.60
Traveling 3,996,422.65 4,802,791.58
Labor insurance contributions 3,953,375.14 6,059,427.02
Welfare 3,509,042.68 4,412,602.62
Depreciation 3,534,463.07 4,312,135.18
Office outlay 3,469,288.93 3,907,261.11
Employment 2,785,999.98 7,731,195.85
Transportation 2,162,713.73 3,568,793.67
Others 17,396,690.32 34,444,412.50
Total 137,599,915.76 150,832,208.46
38.Financial expenses
RMB
ltems 2010 2009

Interest expense 29,369,353.33 30,075,436.64

Less: Interest expenses capitalized 9,276,024.37 7,820,822.25

Interest income 764,130.46 490,276.52

Exchange differences -36.61 147,278.99

Less: Exchange differences capitalized - -

Others 1,447,924.58 1,424,259.35

Total 20,777,086.47 23,335,876.21

111



SHANGHAI AUTOMATION INSTRUMENTATION CO., LTD.

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2010

(V) NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

39.Asset impairment

RMB
Items 2010 2009
1. Provision for bad debts 7,406,495.56 8,830,087.87
2. Provision for inventory write-down -327,077.89 -881,519.48
3. Provision for impairment of available-for-sale financial assets - -
4.Provision for impairment of held-to-maturity investments - -
5. Provision for impairment of long-term equity investments - -
6. Provision for impairment of investment properties - -
7. Provision for impairment of fixed assets - 82,571.47
8. Provision for impairment of construction project materials - -
9. Provision for impairment of construction in progress - -
10. Provision for impairment of bearer biological assets - -
Including:Provision for impairment of mature bearer biological ) )
assets
11. Provision for impairment of oil and gas assets - -
12. Provision for impairment of intangible assets - -
13. Provision for impairment of goodwill - -
14. Others - -
Total 7,079,417.67 8,031,139.86
40.Investment income
(1)Details of investment income:
RMB
ltems 2010 2009
Gains/losses recognised under cost method 6,535,703.11 6,124,125.05
Gains/losses recognised under equity method -4,038,825.93 1,224,009.94
Gains/losses on disposal of long-term equit
e ¢ P 2,727,708.50 812,243.01
Gains from holding of held-for-trading financial assets - -
Gains from holding of held-to-maturity investments - -
Gains from holding of available-for-sale financial assets - -
Gains/losses on disposal of held-for-trading financial - -
assets
Gains/losses on held-to-maturity investment - -
Gains/losses on available-for-sale financial assets 30,042.00 30,042.00
Others - -
Total 5,254,627.68 8,190,420.00
(2) Gains/losses recognised under cost method
RMB
Investee 2010 2009 Reason for
changes
Dividend
. . appropriated
Shanghai SIEMENS Industrial 3,306,678.00 5,866,378.00 | decreased during
Automation Co., Ltd. X
the reporting
period
Dividend
appropriated
SK Transformer Co., Ltd. 3,229,025.11 257,747.05 | increased during
the reporting
period
Total 6,535,703.11 6,124,125.05
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40.Investment income - continued

(3) Gains/losses recognised under equity method

RMB

Investee 2010 2009 Reason for changes
Shanghai Henghe Profit increased durin
Electromagnetic 4,052,667.53 3,186,286.71 this reporting period 9
Equipment Co., Ltd. P 9p
Shanghai Kangmaosheng Profit increased during
Automatic Control Co., Ltd. 2,180,732.47 632,453.52 this reporting period
Chino Measuring & Control Profit increased during
Equipment (Kunshan) Co., Ltd. 1,105,328.49 460,678.69 this reporting period
Shanghai Ziyi No. 9 Instrument 406,961.46 364,119.35 Proﬂt mcre@sed d.urlng
Co., Ltd. this reporting period
Shanghai Dahua — Chino Profit increased during
Instrumentation Co., Ltd. 489,473.71 118,546.49 this reporting period
Shanghai Kangmaosheng Air Profit increased during
Components Co., Ltd. 537,937.56 19,466.66 this reporting period
Shanghai Shengyi . . .
Instrumentation : 98,331.65 | _oposed during this
Transformer Co., Ltd. P 9p
State-nuclear Automation Less increased durin
Instrumentation Systematic -12,811,927.15 -3,459,209.83 this reporting period 9
Engineering Co., Ltd. P 9p
Total -4,038,825.93 1,224,009.94

There is no significant restriction on remittance of the Group’s gains on investment.

41.Non-operating income

(1)Details of non-operating income:

RMB
Through
ltems 2010 2009 SiTERTInEy
gains and
losses
Gains on disposal of non-current assets 13,570,790.30 546,399.17 | 13,570,790.30
:Sc;l;l;ng. Gains on disposal of intangible 230,807.30 546,399.17 230,807.30
Gains on disposal of fixed assets 13,339,983.00 - | 13,339,983.00
Gains on debt restructuring - - -
Gains on exchange of non-monetary assets - - -
Donations received - - -
Government grants 40,101,756.32 | 3,240,000.00 | 40,101,756.32
Others 2,184,710.62 | 1,998,696.40 2,184,710.62
Total 55,857,257.24 | 5,785,095.57 | 55,857,257.24
(2) Government grants
RMB
Items 2010 2009 Explanation
Tech R&D subsidy 40,101,756.32 3,240,000.00 Note
Total 40,101,756.32 3,240,000.00

Note: The Group received government grants 40,101,756.32 yuan for tech R&D subsidy through profit

or loss.
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42.Non-operating expenses

RMB
Through
ltems 2010 2009 SAEET e
gains and
losses
Losses on disposal of non-current assets 2,695,900.57 319,478.71 2,695,900.57
including: Losses on disposal of fixed assets 217,667.57 319,478.71 217,667.57
Losses on disposal of intangible 2.478.233.00 | 2.478.233.00
assets
Losses on debt restructurings - 1,040,835.50 -
Donations 60,000.00 60,000.00 60,000.00
Others 262,048.73 42,033.76 262,048.73
Total 3,017,949.30 1,462,347.97 | 3,017,949.30
43.Income tax
RMB
ltems 2010 2009
Current tax expense 1 17,681 .10 1 ,543,03392
Deferred tax expense 4,048,798.52 -3,649,997.73
Additional tax paid (refund) in respect of the prior year -1,249,002.36 -
Total 2,917,477.26 -2,106,963.81
Reconciliation of income tax expenses to the accounting profit is as follows:
RMB
2010 2009
Accounting profit/loss 8,789,005.71 3,207,453.49
Income tax expenses calculated at 15% (2009: 15%) 1,318,350.86 481,118.02
Effect of expenses that are not deductible for tax 2.535.180.68 2.445.926.82
purposes
Effect of unrecognised deductible losses and
deductible 195,860.35 -237,923.65
temporary differences for tax purposes
Effect of using previously unrecognised deductible
losses and deductible temporary differences for tax -3,433,679.59 -3,864,374.99
purposes
Effect of non-taxable income -980,355.47 -1,102,220.25
Effect of additionally deductible research expense -679,466.64 -421,642.02
Effect_of_dlf_ferent tax rates of subsidiaries operating in -156,789.43 -116,304.96
other jurisdictions
Additional tax paid (refund) in respect of the prior year -1,249,002.36 -
Others 5,053,800.00 -
Total 2,917,477.26 -2,106,963.81

44.Earnings per share & calculation of diluted earnings per share

(1) For the purpose of calculating basic earnings per share, net profit or loss for the current period
attributable to ordinary shareholders is as follows:

RMB
2010 2009
Net profit for the current period attributable to ordinary
ekl s 5,883,576.06 5,724,545.83
Including: Net profit from continuing operations 5,883,576.06 5,724,545.83
Net profit from discontinuing operations - -
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44.Earnings per share & calculation of diluted earnings per share - continued

(2) For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, net profit or loss for the current

period attributable to ordinary shareholders is as follows:

RMB

2010

2009

Net profit for the current period attributable to ordinary
shareholders

5,883,576.06

5,724,545.83

The portion of any interest recognised in the current period related
to dilutive potential ordinary shares that is attributable to ordinary
shareholders after deducting tax effects

The portion of any income or expenses resulting from the
conversion of dilutive potential ordinary shares that is attributable
to ordinary shareholders after deducting tax effects

Including: Net profit from continuing operations

5,883,576.06

5,724,545.83

Net profit from discontinuing operations

(3) For the purpose of calculating basic earnings per share, the denominator is the weighted average number of

outstanding ordinary shares and its calculation process is as follows:

RMB
2010 2009

Number of ordinary shares outstanding at the beginning of period 399,286,890.00 399,286,890.00
Add:Weighted average number of ordinary shares issued during the ) }
period

Less:Weighted average number of ordinary shares repurchased ) )
during the period

Weighted average number of ordinary shares 399,286,890.00 399,286,890.00

(4) For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the denominator is the weighted average number of

outstanding ordinary shares and its calculation process is as follows:

RMB

2010

2009

Weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the calculation
of basic earnings per share

399,286,890.00

399,286,890.00

Add: Weighted average number of ordinary shares that would be
issued upon the conversion of dilutive potential ordinary shares into
ordinary shares

Including: Weighted number of ordinary shares that would be issued
upon the conversion of convertible debts

Weighted number of ordinary shares that would be issued upon the
exercise of warrants/share options

Including: Weighted number of ordinary shares that would be issued
upon the conversion of convertible debts

Weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the calculation
of
diluted earnings per share

399,286,890.00

399,286,890.00

(5) Earnings per share

RMB

2010

2009

Net profit for the period attributable to shareholders of the parent:

Basic earnings per share

0.015

0.014

Diluted earnings per share

0.015

0.014

Net profit from continuing operations for the period
attributable to shareholders of the parent:

Basic earnings per share

0.015

0.014

Diluted earnings per share

0.015

0.014

Net profit from discontinuing operations for the period
attributable to shareholders of the parent:

Basic earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share
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45.0ther comprehensive income (loss)

RMB
Item 2010 2009
1. Fair value gain (loss) on of available-for-sale financial assets -581,312.70 683,455.50
Less: Income tax relating to available-for-sales financial assets -87,196.91 180,931.73
Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income
being reclassified to profit or loss ] )
Sub-total -494,115.79 502,523.77
2. Share of other comprehensive income of investees under equity
method of accounting
Less: Income tax relating to Share of other comprehensive income
of investees under equity method of accounting
Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income
being reclassified to profit or loss
Sub-total
3. Gain (loss) derived from Cash flow hedge instrument
Less: Income tax relating to cash flow hedge instrument
Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income
being reclassified to profit or loss
Adjustment for initial recognition of hedged item
Sub-total
4. Foreign currency translation differences of financial statements
Less: Net gain (loss) derived from disposal of overseas operation
Sub-total
5. Assets appreciation derived from business combination involving
enterprises not under common control
Less: Income tax relating to assets appreciation derived from
business combination involving enterprises not under common
control
Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income
being reclassified to profit or loss
Sub-total
Total -494,115.79 502,523.77
46.Notes to the categories of cash flow statement
(1) Other cash flows related to operating activities
RMB
Items 2010 2009
Interest income 764,130.46 490,276.52
Government Grant 9,545,000.00 -
Restricted Currency Changes 10,850,879.97 -
Others 4,711,095.39 1,178,328.66
Total 25,871,105.82 1,668,605.18
(2) Other cash flow related to investing activities
RMB
ltems 2010 2009

General & operating expenses

79,153,792.62

82,586,919.79

Rental Expenses

31,914,094.00

Special Grant 1,615,000.00 -
Others 3,550,073.81 2,647,265.09
Total 116,232,960.43 85,234,184.88
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(V) NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

46.Notes to the categories of cash flow statement - continued

(3) Other cash flow in related to investing activities

RMB
ltems 2010 2009
Special grant received 19,100,000.00 -
Land Purchase Grant 6,628,000.00 -
Total 25,728,000.00 -
(4) Other cash flow out related to investing activities
RMB
ltems 2010 2009
Outflow of Subsidiaries disposal 1,442,895.00 -
Outflow of Land Movement 2,478,233.00 -
Total 3,921,128.00 -
(5) Other cash flow in related to financing activities
RMB
ltems 2010 2009
Special grant received - 34,692,000.00
Temporary loan from shareholders 30,000,000.00 -
Total 30,000,000.00 34,692,000.00
(6) Other cash flow out related to financing activities
RMB
ltems 2010 2009
Special grant paid out - 1,020,000.00
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(V) NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

47.Supplementary information to the cash flow statement

(1) Supplementary information to the cash flow statement

other long-term assets (less gains)

RMB
Supplementary information 2010 2009
|. Reconciliation of net profit to cash flow from operating
activities:
Net profit 5,871,528.45 5,314,417.30
Add: Provision for asset impairment 7,079,417.67 8,031,139.86
Depreciation of fixed assets 13,074,635.64 12,919,962.73
Amortisation of intangible assets 1,013,191.55 999,503.64
Amortisation of long-term prepaid expenses 775,454.51 2,320,194.92
Losses on disposal of fixed assets, intangible
assets and -10,874,889.73 -226,920.46

Write-off of fixed assets (less gains)

Losses on changes in fair values (less gains)

Financial expenses(less gains)

20,093,292.35

22,254,666.46

Losses arising from investments (less gains)

-5,254,627.68

-8,190,420.00

Decrease in deferred tax assets (less increase)

4,100,403.58

-3,649,997.73

Increase in deferred tax liabilities (less decrease)

Decrease in inventories (less decrease)

17,104,754.81

-15,439,575.86

Decrease in operating receivables (less increase)

-9,089,135.05

12,411,333.94

Increase in operating payables (less decrease)

-50,669,831.23

-44,117,776.91

Others

Net cash flow from operating activities

-6,775,805.13

-7,373,472.11

1. Significant investing and financing activities that do not
involve cash receipts and payments:

Conversion of debt into capital

Convertible bonds due within one year

Fixed assets acquired under finance leases

lll. Net changes in cash and cash equivalents:

Closing balance of cash

155,961,922.76

149,091,832.64

Less: Opening balance of cash

149,091,832.64

140,978,960.85

Add: Closing balance of cash equivalents

Less: Opening balance of cash equivalents

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

6,870,090.12

8,112,871.79
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(V) NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

47.NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS —CONTINUED

(2) Acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries or other operating units

ltems Period from 2010/1/1 Period from 2009/1/1
to 2010/12/31 to 2009/12/31

|.Disposal of subsidiaries or other operating
units:
1. Prlc_e for D_|sposal of subsidiaries or other 6.173,352.24 2.650,414.76
operating units
2. Ce.\s.h or cash equivalent for dlsposal of 6.173,352.24 2.650,414.76
subsidiaries or other operating units

Le§§: qash and cash equ[valent. held by 1,520.844.60 984,858.77
subsidiaries or other operating units
8. Ngt F:qsh received from d.ISpOSEIH of 4.652,507.64 1,665,555.99
subsidiaries or other operating units
4.Disposal of subsidiaries net assets 2,544 ,596.96 2,419,850.86
Current assets 8,616,549.38 6,881,418.43
Non-current assets 377,260.93 1,757,880.51
Current liabilities 6,449,213.35 6,219,448.08
Non-current liabilities - -

(3) Cash and cash equivalents
RMB
Items 31/12/2010 31/12/2009

Cash 247 ,477.46 476,927.24
Bank demand deposits 155,515,351.47 146,433,253.12
Other monetary funds that can be readily withdrawn 199,093.83
on demand 2,181,652.28
Cash and cash equivalent balances 155,961,922.76 149,091,832.64
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(Vl) RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND TRANSACTIONS

1. Basic information of parent company

Corporate i Voting e Organizations
Name of | Relationshi Category of Registered . Principal Registered | interest . holding -
: representativ ; . rights and agencies
company enterprise address operation capital 5 5 company
e (%) (%) code
110 Shanghai
Shangha State-owned i state-owned
i Electric | State-owne enterprise(No Sichuan Xu assets
d relative ; Road. . Industry 4,730,680 26.39 26.39 - 13221287-3
Group . n-incorporate . Jianguo supervision and
holding . Middle., L .
Co.,. d legal entity . administration
Shanghai o
commission
2. Basic information of the subsidiaries
Type of Category of Registered Eoipolals Principal | Registered irlftiﬂietgt vl Olgahizations
Subsidiary ype | gory g representativ p gist rights and agencies
subsidiary enterprise address A operation capital s (%) I
(%)
Shanghai
Shenyou State-owned
Electrical Subsidiary ; Shanghai Wang Qi Industry 1,659.54 100.00 100.00 607213096
- enterprise
Equipment Co.,
Ltd.
Shanghai The wholly
Jinggong owned | State-owned | g onai | Wy dianxiao | Industry | 6,224.008 | 75.00 75.00 60725462-1
Hairspring Co., subsidiary enterprise
Ltd.
?/Ihi(e:]?oglir:\all(I The wholly Joint-venture
A owned . Shanghai Lin Xiongmin Industry 7,100 75.00 75.00 60723280-1
Electronics Co. L enterprise
Ltd. subsidiary
Shanghai Zijiui
. The wholly
Measuring owned | State-owned | g ihai | RuHansheng | Industry 630 66.67 66.67 631494983
Instrument Co., subsidia enterprise
Ltd.(note1) v

Note1: During this reporting period , the group has disposed this company.
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(VI) RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND TRANSACTIONS - continued

3. Basic information of jointly venture and associates

Category . Initial Held shares o Organizations
Investee of _ Registered place re;c):r(;rsp: nrfatt?ve Bgzglsss investments (%) Votm(%)r;ghts T;:}ggsi?gg and agencies
enterprise Type | ‘000 code
1.Joint venture
Shanghai Dahua — Foreign
Chino invest%d Shanghai Xiongmin Lin Industry | USD 2,000 50.00 50.00 Joint venture 607292548
Instrumentation Co., Ltd.
2.Associates
State-nuclearAutomation
getumentation Domestic Shanghai Manchang Fu | Industry | RMB | 100,000 49.00 49.00 Associate 672705169
ystematic Engineering invested
Co., Ltd
Shanghai Shangziyi Domestic
Instrument invested Shanghai Yuanfa Chen Industry | RMB 900 44 .44 44 .44 Associate 70345898-2
Manufacturing Co. Ltd
Shanghai Henghe Domestic
Electromagnetic invested Shanghai Dazhu zhen Industry USD 3,825 40.00 40.00 Associate 60727308-0
Equipment Co., Ltd..
ﬁ]’;fr’:jgn']‘:r']tzgg"‘itj Domestic Shanghai HuiqunYu Industry | RMB | 2,480 |  40.32 40.32 Associate 70321602-7
Shanghai Shangziyi
;"tate el s Domestic Shanghai Jianrong Industry | RMB 1,700 40.00 40.00 Associate 72953999-1
ectromagnetic invested Zhang
Equipment Co., Ltd.
o g el Domestic Attilio
Kangmaosheng Air : Shanghai ) Industry | USD 1,100 40.00 40.00 Associate 607259561
Components Co., Ltd. invested Gamozzi
Shanghai . .
Kangmaosheng Domestic Shanghai Attiio Industry | USD 2,100 40.00 40.00 Associate 749260234
Automation Co., Ltd. invested Gamozzi
Chino Measuring & Domestic
Control Equipment invested Shanghai Yigu Gaofu Industry | USD 2,000 20.00 20.00 Associate 75200438-9
(Kunshan) Co., Ltd.
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(VI) RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND TRANSACTIONS - continued

4.The following are other related parties which have transactions with the Group while no control
relationship exists:

Company

Related party relationships

USA Microlink Group Co. Ltd.

Minority interest of the subsidiary

Shanghai Electric (Group) Changjian Co., Ltd.

Subsidiary of ultimate holding company

Shanghai Electric Power Station Equipment Co., Ltd.

Subsidiary of ultimate holding company

Shanghai Electric Wind Power Equipment Co., Ltd.

Subsidiary of ultimate holding company

Shanghai Electric(Group) Co., Ltd.

Subsidiary of ultimate holding company

Shanghai Boiler Plant Co., Ltd.

Subsidiary of ultimate holding company

Shanghai Electric Group Co..Power Service Center.

Subsidiary of ultimate holding company

Shanghai Electric .Nantong water treatment Co.. Ltd

Subsidiary of ultimate holding company

Shanghai Electric Environment Protection
thermoelectricity(Nantong) Co..Ltd

Subsidiary of ultimate holding company

Shanghai Electric Shichuan Dao Power Station Environment
Protection Engineering Co..Ltd

Subsidiary of ultimate holding company

Shanghai Electric Hydraulic&Pneumatics Co..Ltd Hydraulic
Pump Factory

Subsidiary of ultimate holding company

Shanghai Power Equipment Research Institute

Subsidiary of ultimate holding company

Shanghai Wen Tong Property Co., Ltd.

Subsidiary of ultimate holding company

Shanghai Electric International Economic & Trading Co.. Ltd

Subsidiary of ultimate holding company

Shanghai Environment Protection Engineering Units Co., Ltd.

Subsidiary of ultimate holding company

Shanghai Sifang Boiler Plant

Subsidiary of ultimate holding company

Shanghai Metallurgy Mining Machinery Plant

Subsidiary of ultimate holding company

Shanghai Heavy Machinery Plant Co., Ltd.

Subsidiary of ultimate holding company

Shanghai Ziyi No. 9 Instrument Co., Ltd.

Subsidiary of ultimate holding company

Shanghai Shen wei da Machinery Co., Ltd.

Subsidiary of ultimate holding company

Shanghai Yawa Printing Machinery Co., Ltd.

Subsidiary of ultimate holding company

Shanghai Electric Transport Co., Ltd.

Subsidiary of ultimate holding company

Shanghai Electric Power Co., Ltd Minhang Power Plant

Subsidiary of ultimate holding company

Shanghai Cable Works Co., Ltd.

Subsidiary of ultimate holding company

Shanghai Machine Tool works Ltd

Subsidiary of ultimate holding company

Shanghai Welding Machine Manufactory

Subsidiary of ultimate holding company

Shanghai Dalong Machinery Co., Ltd.

Subsidiary of ultimate holding company

Shanghai General Machinery(Group) Co.,

Subsidiary of ultimate holding company

Pacific Electro Mechanical (Group) Co., Ltd.

Subsidiary of ultimate holding company

Shanghai Electric Compressor Pump Co., Ltd

Subsidiary of ultimate holding company

Shanghai Machinery Manufacturing Craft Research Institute Co.,

Subsidiary of ultimate holding company

IS'hlanghai Turbine Co., Ltd.

Subsidiary of ultimate holding company

Shanghai Relay Co., Ltd.

Subsidiary of ultimate holding company

Shanghai SIEMENS Industrial Automation Co., Ltd.

Other investment

Shanghai Shengyi Instrumentation Transformer Co., Ltd.

Former Associate
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(VI) RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND TRANSACTIONS - continued
5.Significant transactions between the Company and related parties in the year:

(1) Sales and purchases

Purchase
RMB
Period from 1 January | Period from 1 January
Transacti| Transaction ANYite AL ite
Name of the related parties o 31 December 2010 31 December 2009
on type pricing Ratio Ratio
Amount (%) Amount (%)
Shanghai Shangzlyl Adjuster Co. I pyrcnase | Contract price | 973,200.15 013 572,331.20|  0.07

Dahua-Chino Instrument Shanghai| Purchase | Contract price 619,519.65 0.08 250,333.33 0.03

Shanghai Electric(Group) Co., Ltd. | Purchase | Contract price | 586,324.79 0.08 - -

Shanghai Shengyi Instrumentation .
Transformer Co., Ltd. Purchase | Contract price 461,962.21 0.06 26,227.35 0.01

Shanghai Electric International

Economic & Trading Co..Ltd Purchase | Contract price | 303,657.33 0.04 - -

Shanghai Henghe Electromagnetic

Equipment Co.. Ltd. Purchase | Contract price 75,213.68 0.01 109,433.33 0.01

Shanghai Ziyi No. 9 Instrument

Co., Ltd. Purchase | Contract price 28,102.57 0.01 - -

State-nuclear Automation
Instrumentation Systematic Purchase | Contract price -
Engineering Co., Ltd.

16,311,877.09 1.93

Shanghai Shangziyi Rotate Speed
Meter Electromagnetic Equipment |Purchase | Contract price -
Co., Ltd.

210,436.75 0.02

Shanghai Electric (Group) Co., Purchase | Contract price -

172,100.53 0.02
Shanghai Shangziyi Instrument .
Manufacturing Co. Ltd Purchase | Contract price - 7,400.35 0.01

Total 3,048,079.38 0.41]17,660,139.93 2.10
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(VI) RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND TRANSACTIONS - continued

(1) Sales and purchases - continued

Sales RMB
Transaction |Transacti| Period from 1 January | Period from 1 January
type on 2010 to 2009 to
Name of the related parties pricing 31 December 2010 31 December 2009
Ratio
Amount (%) Amount Ratio (%)
ftt;anghal SRS e, sales Cc:)r;it(::ct 36,298,843.49 3.72 80,481,617.91 7.20
l\sﬂgi';?nh:riy'\é?;ﬂlurgy AT, sales C?)?it(::ct 13,921,611.11 1.43 18,870,847.86 1.69
Shanghai Electric Transport Sales and Contract
Co..Ltd rendering of ) 7,389,624.81 0.76
services price
: . Sales and
ihangha_\l =Ll rendering of Contract 6,511,366.83 0.67 12,358,922.26 1.11
utomation Co., Ltd. services price
Sl Rl e, ek sales Cg?ité:d 5,932,735.05 0.61 5,205,584.38 0.47
Ezﬁ%%ggfggtriftgower S sales CcF))r;itCr:ct 5,522,127.59 0.57 13,447,001.35 1.20
State-nuclear Automation Contract
Instrumentation Systematic sales fice 1,929,230.77 0.20
Engineering Co., Ltd. P
Co. Power Senvice Center saes | "o | teeasear) o
E:Z%%ﬁ:nznﬁm%im Ii;otectlon sales C(:)r;it(::ct 1,235,042.74 0.13 13,377,999.15 1.20
’\S/It:;r;?nh(:ring;vaLZrinting sales Cgrr'iz:d 880,717.95 0.09
Egﬁ%ﬂ:gfggtri&g\”nd FEIEr sales Cc;?ité:ct 783,978.63 0.08 63,669.66 0.01
tSrZ:angs’: (E:Ic()ect&%.Nantong water sales C(:)r;itcr:ct 153,846.15 0.02
Shanghai Electric (Group) Co.,. sales C?)rrlitcr:ct 139,316.24 0.01
Shanghai Electric Environment
Protection Contract
thermoelectricity(Nantong) sales price 35,641.03 B )
Co..Ltd
Shanghai Electric Contract
Hydraulic&Pneumatics Co., Ltd. sales fice 33,100.85 - -
Hydraulic Pump Factory P
Shanghai Shen wei da Machinery sales Con_tract 10.299.15 _ )
Co..Ltd. price
Shanghai Henghe Sales and Contract
Electromagnetic rendering of fice 3,620,632.03 0.32
Equipment Co., Ltd. services P
Shanghai Heavy Machinery Plant sales Con_tract 335,185.48 0.03
Co,, Ltd. price
Do Sales and
gt;anl:qt?’al Ziyi No. 9 Instrument rendering of CcF))rrlitCr:ct 306,924.00 0.03
v services
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(VI) RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND TRANSACTIONS - continued

(1) Sales and purchases - continued

Sales RMB
Shanghai Electric (Group) Contract i i

Changjian Co., Ltd. sales price 205.800.00 0.02
Shanghai Shangziyi Rotate Speed Sales and Contract

Meter Electromagnetic Equipment rendering of rice 95,053.83 0.01
Co., Ltd. services P

Shanghai Kangmaosheng

Automation sales Cor:itézct - - 40,527.77

Co., Ltd. P

Shanghai Sifang Boiler Plant sales Cg?itézct - - 11,089.76

ftréanghal Shangziyi Adjuster Co. sales Cgrr\itcr:ct i i 8.499.99

Shanghai Turbine Co., Ltd. sales Cgr:itégct - - 7,145.38
Dahua-Chino Instrument Shanghai sales Cg?itézct - - 6,752.14

Shanghai General Contract

Machinery(Group) Co., sales price j i 190000

Shanghai Relay Co., Ltd. sales Cgr:it(::ct i i 1,500.00

Shanghai Electric Compressor Contract i i

Pump Co., Ltd sales price 900.00

Shanghai Machinery Manufacturing Contract i i

Craft Research Institute Co., Ltd. sales price 400.00

Total 82,323,738.80 8.45| 148,447,952.95 13.29

(2) Operating leasor

RMB
Recognition
Asset for | Beginning . criteria for .
Leaser Leasee leasehold date Expiry date rental Rental income
income
Shanghai Plant 2010.1.1  |2010.12.31|Contact price 1,724,160.00

Shanghai Henghe

Automation -
. __|Electromagnetic
Instrumentation Equipment Co.. Ltd
Co., Ltd. quip » L
Shanghai Plant  {2010.1.1 |2010.12.31|Contact price 573,720.00

Automation Shanghai Ziyi No. 9 Instrument
Instrumentation|Co., Ltd.

Co., Ltd.
Shanghai . Plant 2010.1.1  |2010.12.31|Contact price 1,230,580.00
. State-nuclear Automation
Automation X .
. |Instrumentation Systematic
Instrumentation Engineering Co.. Ltd
Co., Ltd. 9 g0, .
Shanghai Plant 2010.1.1  |2010.12.31|Contact price 102,016.50
Automation Shanghai Kangmaosheng Air
Instrumentation|Components Co., Ltd.
Co., Ltd.

Total 3,630,476.50

Operating leasee

Asset for Beginning REEREMIET Recognition criteria
Leaser Leasee Expiry date| criteria for
leasehold date . for rental expenses
rental income
Shanghai
Shanghai Wen Tong |Automation | 5 i o office [2009.7.1  [2014.3.31 | Contact price 3,917,400.00
Property Co., Ltd. Instrumentation
Co., Ltd.
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(VI) RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND TRANSACTIONS - continued

5.Significant transactions between the Company and related parties in the year - continued

(3) Compensation for key management personnel

RMB

ltems

2010

2009

Compensation for key management personnel

2,201,600.00

1,755,000.00

6.Accounts payable and accounts receivable of related parties

(1) Receivable

RMB

Iltem

Related parties

2010/12/31

2009/12/31

Book Balance

Bad Debt Provision

Book Balance

Bad Debt Provision

Accounts receivable

USA Microlink Group
Co. Ltd.

111,673,163.81

111,673,163.81

111,

673,163.81

111,673,163.81

Accounts receivable

Shanghai Electric
Co., Ltd.

70,817,155.21

69,

853,5611.70

Accounts receivable

Shanghai Metallurgy
Mining Machinery Plant

17,199,822.60

11,

593,892.00

Accounts receivable

Shanghai Environment
Protection Engineering
Units Co., Ltd.

9,166,500.00

8,

371,927.40

Accounts receivable

Shanghai SIEMENS
Industrial
Automation Co., Ltd.

4,085,676.64

1,

730,121.91

Accounts receivable

Shanghai Electric
Power Station
Equipment Co., Ltd.

3,054,189.95

3,

422,287.95

Accounts receivable

Shanghai Boiler Plant
Co., Ltd.

1,925,5612.02

734,966.04

Accounts receivable

State-nuclearAutomatio
n Instrumentation
Systematic
Engineering Co., Ltd

1,894,100.00

Accounts receivable

Shanghai Ziyi No. 9
Instrument Co., Ltd.

867,840.18

867,840.18

Accounts receivable

Shanghai Yawa
Printing Machinery Co.,
Ltd.

780,440.00

Accounts receivable

Shanghai Electric
Transport Co., Ltd

608,860.02

Accounts receivable

Shanghai Electric
Shichuan Dao Power
Station Environment
Protection Engineering
Co., Ltd.

474,000.00

474,000.00

Accounts receivable

Shanghai Electric
Group Co. Power
Service Center.

449,040.00

Accounts receivable

Shanghai Electric
(Group) Co.,

422,200.00

259,200.00

Accounts receivable

Shanghai Electric
(Group) Changjian Co.,
Ltd.

240,750.00

240,750.00

Accounts receivable

Shanghai
Electric .Nantong water
treatment Co., Ltd.

126,000.00

Accounts receivable

Shanghai Electric Wind
Power Equipment Co.,
Ltd.

91,725.50
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(VI) RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND TRANSACTIONS - continued

6.Accounts payable and accounts receivable of related parties - continued

Receivable - continued

Accounts receivable

Shanghai Heavy
Machinery Plant Co., Ltd.

65,114.00

345,055.00

Accounts receivable

Shanghai Sifang Boiler
Plant

57,711.00

57,711.00

Accounts receivable

Shanghai Pacific Textile
Machinery &Assembly
Co., Ltd.

44,243.55

Accounts receivable

Shanghai Dalong
Machinery Co., Ltd.

8,253.60

Accounts receivable

Shanghai General
Machinery(Group) Co.,

2,250.00

Accounts receivable

Pacific Electro
Mechanical (Group) Co.,
Ltd.

1,709.91

Accounts receivable

Shanghai Henghe
Electromagnetic
Equipment Co., Ltd.

1,284.00

Accounts receivable

Shanghai Electric
Compressor Pump Co.,
Ltd

324.80

Accounts receivable

Shanghai Machinery
Manufacturing Craft
Research Institute Co.,
Ltd.

190.00

Subtotal

223,999,800.9
3

111,673,163.8
1

209,682,682.85

111,673,163.81

Advance to supplier

Shanghai Electric
International Economic &
Trading Co., Ltd

335,250.00

Advance to supplier

Shanghai Ziyi No. 9
Instrument Co., Ltd.

68,610.60

Advance to supplier

Shanghai Shangziyi
Adjuster Co. Ltd.

176,622.80

Advance to supplier

Shanghai Henghe
Electromagnetic
Equipment Co., Ltd.

58,243.50

Advance to supplier

Shanghai Shangziyi
Instrument
Manufacturing Co. Ltd

3,717.00

Advance to supplier

Shanghai Shangziyi
Rotate Speed Meter
Electromagnetic

Equipment Co., Ltd.

400.00

Subtotal

335,250.00

307,593.90

Other receivable

Shanghai Shangziyi Rotate
Speed Meter
Electromagnetic
Equipment Co., Ltd.

5,011,916.79

1,199,494.39

5,011,916.79

1,199,494.39

Other receivable

Shanghai Henghe
Electromagnetic
Equipment Co., Ltd.

587,622.05

587,622.05

Other receivable

Shanghai SIEMENS
Industrial
Automation Co., Ltd.

275,855.88

275,855.88

Other receivable

Shanghai Ziyi No. 9
Instrument Co., Ltd.

59,738.30

59,738.30

Other receivable

Shanghai Shengyi
Instrumentation
Transformer Co., Ltd.

419,689.77

Subtotal

5,935,133.02

1,199,494.39

6,354,822.79

1,199,494.39
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(VI) RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND TRANSACTIONS - continued

6.Accounts payable and accounts receivable of related parties — continued

(2) Payable
RMB
ltem related parties 31/12/2010 31/12/2009

Accounts payable State-nuqlear Aytomgtion Instrumentation

Systematic Engineering Co., Ltd. 2,900,644.00 8,067,239.80
Accounts payable |Dahua-Chino Instrument Shanghai 656,741.60 31,020.00
Accounts payable [Shanghai Electric Group Co., 201,357.62 201,357.62
Accounts payable Shapghai Electric Power Station

Equipment Co., Ltd. 71,582.55 205,674.55
Accounts payable |Shanghai Cable Works Co..Ltd 28,135.50 -
Accounts payable |Shanghai Electric(Group) Co., Ltd. - 858,349.81
Accounts payable Shapghai Electric Power Station

Equipment Co., Ltd. - 341,198.44
Accounts payable |Shanghai Ziyi No. 9 Instrument Co., Ltd. - 170,156.00
Accounts payable Shanghai Shangziyi Rotate Speed Meter

Electromagnetic Equipment Co., Ltd. - 85,920.00
Accounts payable |Shanghai Shangziyi Adjuster Co.Ltd. - 5,100.00
Accounts payable Shanghai Shengyi Instrumentation Transformer

Co., Ltd. - 3,120.00

Shanghai Shangziyi Instrument Manufacturing
Accounts payable Co. Ltd ) 2.581.00
Subtotal 3,858,461.27 9,971,717.22
Other payable Shanghai Electric Group Co., 51,893,200.96 21,893,200.96
Other payable State-nuqlear Aytomgtion Instrumentation

Systematic Engineering Co., Ltd. 483,043.07 -

Shanghai Shengyi Instrumentation
Other payable |ansformer Co., Ltd. - 151,023.52
Other payable Shanghai Wen Tong Property Co..Ltd - 979,350.00
Other payable Shanghai Ziyi No. 9 Instrument Co., Ltd. - 210,435.73
Other payable Sha_nghai Henghe Electromagnetic

Equipment Co., Ltd. - 125,878.72
Subtotal 52,376,244.03 23,359,888.93
Advance from Shanghai Environment Protection Engineering
customer Units Co., Ltd. 2,250,000.00 -
Advance from
customer Shanghai Electric Group Co., 2,188,680.00 -
Advance from Shanghai Electric Power Station Equipment
customer Co., Ltd. 1,543,166.28 2,202,161.23
Advance from Shanghai Electric Wind Power Equipment Co.,
customer Ltd. 618,877.95 -
Advance from Shanghai Electric Shichuan Dao Power Station
customer Environment Protection Engineering Co..Ltd 598,000.00 -
Advance from
customer Shanghai Power Equipment Research Institute 51,939.20 -
Advance from
customer Shanghai Machine Tool works Ltd - 2,358.00
Advance from
customer Shanghai Welding Machine Manufactory - 700.20
Subtotal 7,250,663.43 2,205,219.43
(3) Guarantees provided by related party

Perform
Guarantor Guarantee Amount Beginning Date Due Date Completed(yes/no)
Shanghai
Shanghai Electric |Automation 1557 504 000.00(2008.2.20~2010.12.12[2011.1.8~2021.6.30 No
Group Co., Instrumentation
Co..L.td
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(Vi)  CONTINGENCIES

No material contingencies noted.

(viiy COMMITMENTS

1. Capital commitments

RMB’000
31/12/2010 31/12/2009
Capital commitments that have been
entered into but have not been - -
recognised in the financial statements:
- the acquisition of long term assets 46,571 4,892
- significant subcontract - -
- investment commitments 30,100 -
Including: Capital commitment associated with
: L . 30,100 -
other venturer's equity in the joint-venture
Share of capital commitments in ) )
common commitments with other ventures
Total 76,671 4,892
Others -

Share of capital commitments in the
joint-venture not included in the
consolidated financial statement

2. Operating lease commitments

As of the balance sheet date, the Group had the following commitments in respect of non-cancellable

operating leases:

RMB’000

31/12/2010 31/12/2009
Minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable:
1styear subsequent to the balance 3,949 3.917
sheet date
2nd year subsequent to the balance 3.917 3.917
sheet date
3rd year subsequent to the balance 3.917 3.917
sheet date
Subsequent 979 4,897
Total 12,762 16,648
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(IX) EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

1.Details of events after the balance sheet date

Effects on financial
position and results of | Reasons for unability to
ltem Content its operating estimate the effects

2.Details of profit distribution after the balance sheet date
RMB

Amount
Profits or dividend to be distributed -
Declared profit to dividend being approved -

According to the 21th meeting of the 6th board of directors held on March 29, 2011, the Company
will not

distribute profit for the reporting period. This distribution plan is subject to the approval by the
shareholder’s general meeting.

(X) OTHER SIGNIFICANT EVENTS

1. Going concerns

As at 31 December 2010, the Group had accumulated losses amount to RMB 481 Million
and unpaid loan and interest 611 Million(including overdue loan and interest 33 million).

In order to improve the Company's Profitability, financial status, cash flow and business
operating status, following action has been taken by the board of Directors:

(1) As the Group's major shareholder — Shanghai Electronic (Group) Co. Ltd. has agreed to
a series of written commitments in the following year to keep the Company's daily
operation;

(2) As the Group's major shareholder — Shanghai Electronic (Group) Co. Ltd has agreed to
provide a guarantee of RMBO0.57 billion over the unpaid loan of the Company;

(3) Possibility of renewed bank investment based the guarantee from Parent Company;

(4) The Board is confident that the Company would take every possible move to strongthen
its profitability and cash flow status.

Due to effect of above and other undertaking measures, the Company Board takes for
granted that the financial support to the Company is sufficient in the following year. And
the Company will make progress accordingly. Thus, the financial statements of 2010 have
been prepared using the going concern basis.

2. Financial instruments and risk management

The Group's major financial instruments include notes receivables, account receivables,
borrowings and account payables. Details of these financial instrument are disclosed in
Note (V). The risks associated with these financial instruments and the policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. Management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.
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X)

OTHER SIGNIFICANT EVENTS - CONTINUED

2.

(1)

Financial instruments and risk management
Risk management objectives and policies

The Group's risk management objectives are to achieve proper balance between risks and
yield, minimise the adverse impacts of risks on the Group's operation performance, and
maximise the benefits of the shareholders and other equity investors. Based on these risk
management objectives, the Group's basic risk management strategy is to identify and
analyse the industry's exposure to various risks, establish appropriate bottom line for risk
tolerance, implement risk management, and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

(1)1 Market risk

(1.1 Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk of changes in the fair value or future cash flow will occur because of
changes in foreign exchange rate. The Group's principal activities are denominated and settled
in RMB. Currency risk arising from the foreign currency balance of assets and liabilities has no
significant impact on the Group’s performance.

(1)1.2 Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk of changes in the fair value or future cash flow will occur because of
changes in interest rates. The Group's exposure to the interest rate risk is primarily associated
with bank and cash, loan. As at 31 December 2010, loan of variable interest rate equivalently is
RMB 591,356,000. All other variables are held consistently, the reasonably 10% increment
(decrement) in interest rate may have the RMB1,933,000.00 pre-tax effect on the profit or loss
for the period or equity.

(1)2 Credit risk

As at 31 December 2010, the Group's maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause a
financial loss to the Group arises from failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties
and financial guarantees issued by the Group. This mainly comes from that the carrying amount
of the respective recognized financial assets as stated in the consolidated balance sheet. For
financial instruments measured at fair value, the carrying amount reflects the exposure to risks
(but not the maximum exposure to risks); the maximum exposure to risks would vary according
to the future changes in fair value.

In order to minimize the credit risk, the Company and all its subsidiaries have delegated a team
responsible for determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews
the recoverable amount of each individual trade debt at each balance sheet date to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
management of the Group considers that the Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

The current bank and cash has been saved in bank and financial company with high credit
standard, so the credit risk is very low.

The Group has allocated the relevant risk among various counterparties and clients. The Group
has no other significant concentration of credit risk.
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(X) OTHER SIGNIFICANT EVENTS - CONTINUED

2.

(1)

Financial instruments and risk management - continued
Risk management objectives and policies - continued

(1)3 Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains a level of cash
and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management of the
Group monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings.

Fair value

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined using following
methods:

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities with standard terms and
conditions and traded on active markets are determined with reference to quoted
market bid prices and ask prices respectively;

The fair value of other financial assets and financial liabilities (excluding derivative
instruments) are determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing models
based on discounted cash flow analysis or using prices from observable current
market transactions;

Segment reporting

According to internal organization and management structure and internal reporting system, the
Group identify three reporting segment on base of business type. The management of Group
assigns resources and assesses achievement according to periodical assessment on reporting
segment. The segments are as follows: Instrumentation and Implementation Device
Department, Digital Control System Department, Installation and Assembly Department.

Segment accounting policies are the accounting policies adopted for preparing the consolidated
financial statements or the financial statements of the enterprise.
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(X) OTHER SIGNIFICANT EVENTS - CONTINUED

3. Segment reporting - continued
RMB
Instrumentation and Implementation Digital Control System Department Installation and Assembly Department Unappropriated items Inter-segment deduction Total
Device Department
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009

Revenue
Revenue arising from 308452,138. | 410007 05p.3q | 213441.9299 | 254.688,1427 | 430967.4699 | 433,196,211 | 22,057,866.3 | 14000500 81 . | ora01040420 | 1118092213
external transactions 11 4 6 4 82 0 70
Revenue arising from
intersegment 30'071'183'3 38,903,092.60 3,096,622.98 - 2,072,717.96 ”’585'905'2 - - '35'240'524'3 -50,488,998.48 - -
transactions
intersegment operating 338,523,322, | 451 140.148.01 | 2165385529 | 254,688,1427 | 433040,187.9 | 444782117 | 22057.8663 | 140050081 | 352405248 | 504000848 | 07401040420 | 1118092213
income 00 2 6 0 70 0 3 70
Total operating income 338,523,3202(j 451.110,148.91 216,538,5522 254,688,142.; 433,040,187.3 4447821 1770. 22,057,866.8 18,000,802.81 -35,240,524.2 50,488,99848 | 97491940429 | 1 18,092,21730.
Operating expenses 247'704’99855' 331,802,068.63 173*682’990"1‘ 198’344*648'2 406'246'628'3 4”’704’99316 9,930,864.84 2,361,925.39 | ~36:031 '949'§ -49,096,858.02 | 801,533,530.25 | 895,116,776.14
;?reogfirtn 53;3 perating 90'818’326'; 119,308,080.28 | 42,855,562.51 | 56,343,493.92 | 26,793,559.52 33’077’126'3 12,127,001 "é 15,638,877.42 791,424.40 -1,392,140.46 | 173,385,874.04 | 222,975,437.56
Operating profit (loss) 90818,326.1 1 119,308,08028 | 4285556251 | 5634349392 | 2679355052 | 0771204 | 21200014 | 4563987742 | 79142440 | 139214046 | 1737385874.04 | 22297543756
Eﬁ'{fg’;ess taxes and - - - - - - | 6737,115.93 | 6,389,892.95 - - 6,737,115.93 |  6,389,892.95
Selling and distribution - - - - - .| 504972681 1 43 692,034.19 - -| 5049726812 | 43,692,034.19
expenses 2
Administrative expenses - - - - - - 137,599,915.76 150’832’208'2 - - 137,599,915.76 150,832,208.46
Financial expenses - ; - ; ; - | 207770884 | 23,335 ,876.21 ; .| 20777,086.47 | 23,335,876.21
Impairment loss in - - - - - - | 707941767 | 8031,139.86 - - 7,079,417.67 8,031,139.86
respect of assets
Gains from changes in
fair values Investment - - - - - - - - - - - -
income
Income from investment - - - - - - 5,254,627.68 8,190,420.00 - - 5,254,627.68 8,190,420.00
Operating profit - - - - - - - - - - -44,050,302.23 -1,115,294.11
Non-operating income - - - - - - 55’857’257“21 5,785,095.57 - - 55,857,257.24 5,785,095.57
Non-operating expenses - - - - - - 3,017,949.30 1,462,347.97 - - 3,017,949.30 1,462,347.97
Total profit - - - - - - - - 8,789,005.71 3,207,453.49
Income tax expenses - - - - - - [ 2,917,477.26 | -2,106,963.81 - - 2,917,477.26 -2,106,963.81
Net profit - - - - - - - - 5,871,528.45 5,314,417.30
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OTHER SIGNIFICANT EVENTS - CONTINUED

3. Segment reporting - continued
Instrumentation and Implementation Unappropriated items i
Device Department Digital Control System Department Installation and Assembly Department Inter—segment deduction Total
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
Segment Assets
Total Assets 620161364.11 |  686,808,246.03 | 26058252635 | 243129,567.08 | 25472148727 | 12624324186 | 098285903 | I1BOTONIOBN 496450413 | oo oo | 130474537392 | 12O1BTOSTTO
Segment Liabilities
Total Liabilities 267,594,682.16 362416,988.35 | 151477,18174 | 13308182849 | 240,06026569 | 119047,14528 | ©19.034340.0 | 5882827483 1 15951860075 | -112,471,383.93 | 1,138,647,850.86 1'090'357'326'2
Appendix
Rg‘z)rﬁicz':tti'g;‘ and 7,626,338.48 9,631,038.17 4,661,328.15 4,436,203.42 261,559.18 519,053.01 2,314,055.89 1,653,366.69 14,863,281.70 16,239,661.29
Interest Income - B - - - - 764,130.46 490,276.52 - - 764,130.46 490,276.52
Interest Expense - - - - B - | 20,093,328.96 | 22,254,614.39 - - 20,093,328.96 |  22,254,614.39
g‘;z;rsmem in respect of 2,678,297.67 5,936,898.16 3,046,184.59 37,413.06 1,369,030.81 671,109.84 -14,095.40 1,385,718.80 - - 7,079,417.67 8,031,139.86
Investment Income from
Long-term investment - - - - - - | -403882593 | 1,224,009.94 - - -4,038,825.93 1,224,009.94
using equity methods
Long-term investment using R B R B B R 117,740,358.9 90,879,236.3 R R 117,740,358.94 90,879.236.30
equity methods 4 0
Long-term Assets
excluding Long-term 98,323,104.84 102,585,386.73 |  84,910,886.33 68,697,062.13 4,610,571.55 4,383,802.09 | 66,459,611.03 | 21,702,612.61 - - 25430417375 | o0 aco 0en e
Investment T
Capital expenditure 6,535,589.58 26,342,242.93 | 21,162,239.87 35,490,648.34 213,754.26 3,486,732.32 | 38,647,844.58 992,652.07 - - 66,550,428.29 | 66,312,275.66
Including: Expenditure
arising from construction in 5,149,781.40 23,635,441.97 18,019,119.61 35,187,848.77 89,531.43 3,401,22891 | 35249,494.15 992,652.07 - - 58,507,926.59 | 63,217,171.72
progress
Expenditure arising from 271,764.91 2,706,800.96 2,891,548.26 302,799.57 30,852.83 85,503.41 487,623.55 - - - 3,681,789.55 3,095,103.94
acquisition of fixed assets
Expenditure arising from
acquisition of intangible 270,400.32 - - - - - - - 270,400.32 -

assets

Non-cash expenses other
than depreciation and

amortisation

(2) Revenue arising from external transactions classified and non-current assets classified by location
Transaction of the Group occurs around the nation and can not be allocated to specific locations.
Non-current assets of the Group mainly located in Shanghai China.

(3) Reliance on major customer

Due to the variance of customer scope, there is no specific reliance on any customer.
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XI.

NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY'S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.Accounts receivable

(1) Disclosure of accounts receivable by client categories is as follows:

RMB
31/12/2010 31/12/2009
Category Book Balance Bad Debt Provision Book Balance Bad Debt Provision
Amount SR Amount FIEREiE Amount PR Amount PR
on(%) on(%) on(%) on(%)
Individual significant
accounts wifqh provision 161,112,814.71 25.48 - - 143’163’023'8 23.48 2,410,164.16 1.68
accrued individually
Individual insignificant
LT L 297,459,526.89 4703 | 18,641,764.15 6.27 | 307.615.504.7 50.45 | 19,045,318.60 6.19
provision accrued 1
individually
Accounts receivables with provision accrued according to the group
Individual insignificant
accounts but with
significant risks after 158,925,639.8 156,413,849.6
bging grouped with 173,829,734.97 27.49 | 165,944,203.66 95.46 9 26.07 9 98.42
similar credit risk
characteristics
Total 63240207657 | 100.00 | 184,585967.81 | 20.19 | S09TOLTOTTN ggpp | 1778093324 5947
The aging analysis of accounts receivable is as follows:
RMB
31/12/2010 31/12/2009
: Book Balance Book Balance
Agin . - Bad Debt
ging J— Proportion(%) Bad Debt Provision Amount Prgg}zr)tlo Provision
Within 1 year 311,580,734.64 49.27 5,872,458.23 371,732,608.90 60.97 8,978,491.13
More than 1 year but 117,413,279.62 18.57 8,302,285.76 56,327,427.46 9.24 7,557,323.91
not exceeding 2
years
More than 2 years 28,516,827.34 4.50 4,467,020.16 19,928,079.56 3.27 4,451,095.14
but not exceeding 3
years
More than 3 years 14,137,472.20 2.24 8,221,301.03 9,835,407.42 1.61 6,240,339.16
but not exceeding 4
years
More than 4 years 8,997,716.53 1.42 7,333,806.40 5,043,901.27 0.83 3,976,511.15
but not exceeding 5
years
151,756,046.24 24.00 150,389,096.23 146,836,743.09 24.08 146,665,571.9
More than 5 years 6
Total 632,402,076.57 100.00 184,585,967.81 609,704,167.70 100.00 177,869,332.4
5

Note about categories of accounts receivable:
The Group recognises indivisual amount more than 5 million yuan as individual significant accounts receivable.

The Group recognises indivisual amount less than 5 million yuan and within 3 years as individual insignificant accounts
receivable but with provision accrued individually.
The Group recognises indivisual amount less than 5 million yuan and more than 3 years as individual insignificant
accounts receivable but with significant risks after being grouped with similar credit risk characteristics.

Individual insignificant accounts receivable but with provision accrued individually:

RMB
Item Book Balance Ead !ngt Proportion(%) Reasqng for
rovision provision

Anhui hailuo chuangi project Co., 4,768,001.00 367,369.47 7.70 Long receiving
Ltd period
Huaneng xinjiang fukang 4,500,000.00 270,000.00 6.00 Long receiving
thermoelectricity Co., Ltd period
Dongfeng vehicle company 4,472,252.41 1,165,712.91 26.07 Long receiving
thermoelectricity factory period
Shanghai waigaogiao power plant 4,148,072.00 349,204.32 8.42 Long receiving
Co., Ltd period
Total 17,888,325.41 2,152,286.70

Except the items above, other individual insignificant accounts receivable but with provision accrued individually is
composed by large numbers of accounts receivable with small amount.

Individual insignificant accounts but with significant risks after being grouped with similar credit risk characteristics:
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XI.

NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY'S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

1.Accounts receivable - continued

RMB
Aging 31/12/2010 31/12/2009
Amount Proportion(%) Bad Debt Provision Amount Proportion(%) Bad Debt Provision
More than 3 years
but not exceeding 13,867,472.20 7.98 8,221,301.03 7,107,919.26 4.47 4,975,543.48
4 years
More than 4 years
but not exceeding 8,206,216.53 4.72 7,333,806.40 3,794,144 .37 2.39 3,414,729.95
5 years
More than 5 years | 151,756,046.24 87.30 150,389,096.23 | 148,023,576.26 93.14 148,023,576.26
Total 173,829,734.97 100.00 165,944,203.66 158,925,639.89 100.00 156,413,849.69
(2) Reverse of bad debt provision during this year is as follows:
RMB
ltem Reasons Accordings Accumulative bad Reverse
to original debt provision before
bad debt reversing
provision
Total
(3) Accounts receivable written off during this year is as follows:
RMB

Whether it is arised by

Amount of write-off Reasons for .
ltem Nature . " business of related
accounts receivable writing off X
parties
Total
(4) Accounts receivable from shareholders holding over 5% (inclusive) of the Company shares are
as follows:
RMB
31/12/2010 31/12/2009
Name of shareholder Amount Bad Debt Amount Bad Debt
Provision Provision
Shanghai Electric (Group) Co., 422,200.00 - 259,200.00 -
Ltd.
(5) Top five outstanding amounts:
RMB
Proportion of the
. . . outstanding amounts
Name Relationship Amount Aging to the total accounts
receivable (%)
cssha”gha' EEEE Common controller 70,817,155.21 | Within 4 years 11.20
roup Co., Ltd.
Shanghai
metallurgymine Common controller 17,199,822.60 | Within 3 years 2.72
mechanical factory
Datang linzhou
thermoelectricity Co., Third party 12,850,000.00 | Within 1 year 2.03
Ltd
Shanghai
Environmental project Common controller 9,166,500.00 | Within 5 years 1.45
set Co., Ltd
glé';?(bgo%’f{‘dgm'”g Third party 8,524,753.80 | Within 1 year 135
Total 118,558,231.61 18.75
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XI.

NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY'S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

1.Accounts receivable - continued

(6) Accounts receivable from related parties:

RMB
ltem Relationship Proportion of the
outstanding
Amount amounts to the
total accounts
receivable (%)
Shanghai Electric(Group) Co., Ltd. Subsidiary of ultimate holding 70,817,155.21
company 11.20
Shanghai Metallurgy Mining Machinery Plant Subsidiary of ultimate holding 17,199,822.60
company 2.72
Shanghai Environment Protection Subsidiary of ultimate holding 9,166,500.00
Engineering Units Co., Ltd. company 1.45
Shanghai Electric Power Station Subsidiary of ultimate holding
Equipment Co., Ltd. company 3,054,189.95 0.48
Shanghai Boiler Plant Co., Ltd. Subsidiary of ultimate holding 1,025,512.02
company 0.30
Guohe Automatic System Engineering Co., Associate Company 1.894.100.00
Ltd. T 0.30
Shanghai Ziyi No. 9 Instrument Co., Ltd. Associate Company 867,840.18 0.14
Shanghai Yawa Printing Machinery Co., Ltd. Subsidiary of ultimate holding 780 440.00
company T 0.12
Shanghai Electric Transport Co., Ltd. Subsidiary of ultimate holding 608.860.02
company T 0.10
Shanghai Electric Shichuan Dao Power Subsidiary of ultimate holding
Station Environment Protection Engineering company 474,000.00
Co.,. Ltd. 0.07
Shanghai Electric (Group) Power Service Subsidiary of ultimate holding
Center company 449,040.00 0.07
Shanghai Electric (Group) Co.,. Subsidiary of ultimate holding 422 200.00
company T 0.07
Shanghai Electric (Group) Changjian Co., Subsidiary of ultimate holding
Ltd. company 240,750.00 0.04
Shanghai Electric .Nantong water treatment Subsidiary of ultimate holding 126.000.00
Co., Ltd. company T 0.02
Shanghai Electric Wind Power Equipment Subsidiary of ultimate holding 91.725.50
Co., Ltd. company T 0.01
Shanghai Heavy Machinery Plant Co., Ltd. Subsidiary of ultimate holding 65.114.00
company T 0.01
Shanghai Sifang Boiler Plant Subsidiary of ultimate holding 57,711.00
company 0.01
Total 108,240,960.48 17.11
2.0Other receivable
(1) Disclosure of other receivable by client categories is as follows:
RMB
31/12/2010 31/12/2009
Category Book Balance Bad Debt Provision Book Balance Bad Debt Provision
Proporti Proporti Proporti Proporti
Amount on(%) Amount on(%) Amount on(%) Amount on(%)
Individual significant 102.921.316.5
accounts with provision 115,507,012.08 53.30 104,748,027.45 90.69 e '0 47.81 99,108,894.10 96.30
accrued individually
Individual insigr_1iﬁcant
CLETH S eI 21,569,754.82 9.95 343,219.57 159 | 31,697,203.50 1472 | 4,549,128.82 14.35
provision accrued
individually
Other receivables with provision accrued according to the group
Individual insignificant
a_cco_unts bgt with
z'g."'ﬁca"t S R 79,642,338.06 36.75 | 79,180,714.70 99.42 | 80,656,043.76 37.47 | 80,414,832.45 99.70
eing grouped with
similar credit risk
characteristics
Total 216,719,104.96 100.00 | 184,271,961.72 85.03 215'274'563'2 100.00 184’072'855'3 85.51
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XI. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY'S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
2.0ther receivable - continued

The aging analysis of other receivable is as follows:

RMB
311272010 3171212009
A Book Balance Book Balance
Aging - : Bad Debt
Amount Proportion(%) Bad Debt Provision Amount PrgF,ZBt'O Provision
Within 1 year 21,686,495 60 10.01 56,491.50 22.779,266.88 10.58 496,704.84
More than 1 year but
ezl 6,198,416.12 2.86 277,299.10 3,135,277.25 1.46 93,204.66
years
More than 2 years
e 631,405.33 0.29 9,428.97 786,448 44 0.37 335,606.31
years
More than 3 years
e £ 188,223.39 0.09 140,294 .86 528,206.69 0.24 498,696.58
years
More than 4 years
e e 3 98,067.33 0.04 88,260.60 576,840.09 0.27 254,987.08
years
e T 5 e 187,916,497.19 86.71 | 183,700,186.69 187,468 524.41 87.08 182'393’655'8
Total 216,719,104.96 10000 | 184,271,961.72 215,274,563.76 | 100.00 184'072'855'3

Note about categories of other receivable:

The Group recognises indivisual amount more than 5 million yuan as individual significant other receivable.

The Group recognises indivisual amount less than 5 million yuan and within 3 years as individual insignificant other
receivable but with provision accrued individually.

The Group recognises indivisual amount less than 5 million yuan and more than 3 years as individual insignificant other
receivable but with significant risks after being grouped with similar credit risk characteristics.

Individual insignificant other receivable but with provision accrued individually:

RMB
Item Book Balance pad Deb! Proportion(%) Reasons for
rovision provision
Shanghai jinbo Flexible Element 2,232,650.52 - - It can be received.
Co,, Ltd
Shanghai Mi'ou instrumentation 754,000.00 - - It can be received.
manufactary Co.
Shanghai zhousheng 451,154.15 - - It can be received.
instrumentation project Co., Ltd
China nuclear project Co., Ltd 200,512.80 - - It can be received.
Total 3,638,317.47 - -

Except the items above, other individual insignificant other receivable but with provision accrued individually is
composed by large numbers of other receivable with small amount.

Individual insignificant accounts but with significant risks after being grouped with similar credit risk characteristics:
RMB

Aging 31/12/2010 31/12/2009

Amount Proportion(%) Bad Debt Provision Amount Proportion(%) Bad Debt Provision

More than 3 years
but not exceeding
4 years 188,223.39 0.24 140,294.86 712,423.69 0.88 498,696.58

More than 4 years
but not exceeding

5 years 98,067.33 0.12 88,260.60 274,842.00 0.34 247,357.80
More than 5 years 79,356,047.34 99.64 78,952,159.24 79,668,778.07 98.78 79,668,778.07
Total 79,642,338.06 100.00 79,180,714.70 80,656,043.76 100.00 80,414,832.45

(2) Reverse of bad debt provision during this year is as follows:
RMB

ltem Reasons Accordings to Accumulative bad debt Reverse
original bad provision before reversing
debt provision

Total
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NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY'S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

2.0ther receivable - continued

(3) Other receivable written off during this year is as follows:

RMB

Iltem Nature

Amount of write-off
other receivable

Reasons for
writing off

Whether it is arised by
business of related parties

Total

(4) Other receivable from shareholders holding over 5% (inclusive) of the Company shares are as

follows:
RMB
31/12/2010 31/12/2009
Name of shareholder Amount Bad Debt Amount Bad Debt
Provision Provision
Total
(5) Nature or content of major other receivable is as follows:
Other receivable is mainly composed of prepaid fee, entrusted loans and rental deposit, etc.
(6) Top five outstanding amounts:
RMB
Proportion of
. . the outstanding
Name Relatlonshlp Amount Aging amounts to the
with the Group
total other
receivable (%)
ftléanghal Microlink Group Co. Subsidiaries 88.369.399.71 More than 5 years 40.78
SPD Bank Xuhui Branch Third party 9,500,000.00 More than 5 years 4.38
ShEEliE SliEmyoy [Elsmez] Subsidiaries 6,946,562.23 Within 5 years 3.21
Equipment Co., Ltd.
Shanghai zhaohe More than 5 years 2.62
communication electronic Co., Third party 5,679,133.35
Ltd
Shanghai Shangziyi Rotate More than 5 years 2.31
Speed Meter Electromagnetic Associate 5,011,916.79
Equipment Co., Ltd.
Total 115,507,012.08 53.30
(7) Other receivable from related parties:
RMB
Proportion of the
outstanding amounts
to the total other
Name Relationship with the Group Amount receivable (%)
Shanghai Microlink Group Co. Ltd. subsidiary 88,369,399.71 40.78
Shanghai Shenyou Electrical - 3.21
Equipment Co., Ltd. subsidiary 6,946,562.23
Shanghai Shangziyi Rotate Speed Associate Company 2.30
Meter
Electromagnetic Equipment Co., 5011,916.79
Ltd.
Sha_nghai Henghe Electromagnetic | Associate Company 587,622.05 0.27
Equipment Co., Ltd.
Shanghai SIEMENS Industrial Subsidiary of ultimate holding 0.13
. 275,855.88
Automation Co., Ltd. company
ftr:janghal Ziyi No. 9 Instrument Co., | Associate Company 59.738.30 0.03
Total 101,251,094.96 46.72
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3.Inventories

(1) Category

RMB
31/12/2010 31/12/2009
Categol i i
et/ Book Balance Devall_Ja_\tlon Carrying Amount| Book Balance Devalge}tlon Carrying Amount
Provision Provision
Ra‘tN - 66.923.940.29 6.029586.14| 60.894.354.15| ©66,984,635.26 6,106,313.72( 60,878,321.54
materials P e PEETHOS
Work-in-pro | 5 09 811.90] 272500640 69.884 805.50| 87.404,937.60  2,725,006.40| 84,679,931.20
gress ,609,811. ,725,006. ,884,805.
Finizhed 41.922.098.33| 5.876,838.41| 36,045250.92| 36,100,916.13|  5,998,212.69| 30,102,703.44
goods ,922,098. ,876,838. ,045,259.
Sol(?ds : 6.233.165.95 180.372.81 6.052.793.14| 15,405,872.69 396,029.68| 15,009,843.01
elivere PO T e e
Total 187,689,016.47| 14,811,803.76| 172,877,212.71| 205,896,361.68| 15,225,562.49| 190,670,799.19

(2) Provision for decline in value

RMB
Opening Provision for Write-off Closing Balance on
Category :
Balance on decline in value Reversals Written off 31/12/2010

Raw materials 6,106,313.72 - - 76,727.58 6,029,586.14
Work-in-progress 2,725,006.40 - - - 2,725,006.40
Finished goods 5,998,212.69 - 111,421.02 9,953.26 5,876,838.41
Goods Delivered 396,029.68 - 215,656.87 - 180,372.81
Total 15,225,562.49 - 327,077.89 86,680.84 14,811,803.76

(3) Changes in write-down of inventories are as follows

Project

The basis for
determination of
write-down of
inventories

The reason for
reversal of previous
write-down

The proportion of amount
of reversal for the period
to the closing balance of
the relevant inventories

Raw materials Materials in

the lower of cost and

transit ; No reversal this year
Raw materials net realisable value 0.00%
Work-in-progress the low?r of cost and No reversal this year

net realisable value 0.00%
Finished goods the Iowgr of cost and Increase in price

net realisable value 0.27%
Goods Delivered biological the lower of cost and Increase in price
assets net realisable value P 3.46%

4.Investment in Joint Venture and Associated Enterprise

Please refer to note(V)9.
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NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY'S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

5.Long-term equity investments

RMB

31/12/2010

31/12/2009

Using the equity method

—investment in joint ventures

9,388,927.10

9,088,477.91

—investment in associates

108,351,431.84

81,790,758.39

Using the cost method

—investment in subsidiary company

48,674,044.00

49,094,044.00

—investment in other enterprises

16,884,011.99

16,884,011.99

Subtotal

183,298,414.93

156,857,292.29

Less: provision for impairment loss

48,101,922.00

48,101,922.00

Net amount of long-term equity investments

135,196,492.93

108,755,370.29
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5.Long-term equity investments - CONTINUED

(1) Details of long-term equity investments are as follows:

NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY'S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — CONTINUED

RMB

Proportion of

Explanation of
differences

Investee Balance as of this reporting as of interest held ; 9 prop . P cruec Cash Dividends
g method Investments 31/12/2009 o 31/12/2010 o, investee held ownership as of during this
2 ent’i't %) by the entity(%) interest 2010/12/31 year
V(% proportion in
investee

Joint Ventures
Sliglgitel DELiLE) = Ciflie Equity 5,805,000.00 9,088,477.91 300,449.19 9,388,927.10 50.00 50.00 None - 189,024.52
Instrumentation Co., Ltd. Method
Subtotal in Joint Ventures - 9,088,477.91 300,449.19 9,388,927.10 - - - 189,024.52
Associates
State-nuclear Automation Equity
Instrumentation Systematic Method 49,000,000.00 6,531,952.31 | 21,488,072.85 28,020,025.16 49.00 49.00 None - -
Engineering Co., Ltd.
Shanghai Shangziyi Equity
Instrument Manufacturing Co. Ltd. Method 400,000.00 ) B ) 44.44 44.44 None 3 3
Shanghailienghe Electromagnetic Equity 12,937,203.00 |  31,354,158.51 1,529,236.65 32,883,395.16 40.00 40.00 None . 2,523,430.88
Equipment Co., Ltd. Method
Shanghai ShangziyiAdjuster Co. Equity
T Method 400,000.00 - - - 40.00 40.00 None - -
Shanghai Shengyi Equity
Instrumentation Transformer Co., Method 320,000.00 152,658.29 -152,658.29 - 40.00 40.00 None - -
Ltd.
f{:’”gha' A (2. @ it Clo ,\fgt”h'gé 1,000,000.00 3,433,172.98 206,961.46 3,640,134.44 40.32 40.32 None - 200,000.00
Shanghai Shangziyi Rotate Speed Equity
MeterElectromagnetic Equipment Method 680,000.00 - - - 40.00 40.00 None - -
Co., Ltd.
SEmgEN Mgl Al Equity 5,395,394.00 23,927,538.08 537,937.56 24,465,475.64 40.00 40.00 None . .
Components Co., Ltd. Method
Sl il KemgiEsizmg Equity 6,952,680.00 | 12,879.994.02 |  2,180,732.47 15,060,726.49 40.00 40.00 None i i
Automation Co., Ltd. Method
Chino Measuring & Control Equity
Equipment (Kunshan) Co.. Ltd. Mothod 2,648,640.00 3,511,284.20 770,390.75 4,281,674.95 20.00 20.00 None - 334,937.74
S T AR - 81,790,758.39 | 26,560,673.45 | 108,351,431.84 - - - 3,058,368.62
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5.Long-term equity investments - CONTINUED

(1) Details of long-term equity investments are as follows: - continued

RMB
Explanation of
Proportion of differences
" " Opening Changes during Closing Balance ownership Propc_)rtloln of betweep Rl . Pro_wswn fon Sloyision
Investee Azl il Balance as of | this reporting as of interest held vEling T prepenion e | (pEimeniless |- e Cash Dividends
g method Investments 31/12/2009 8 investee held ownership as of during this
period 31/12/2010 by the o) .
bt by the entity(%) interest 2010/12/31 year
entity(%) proportion in
investee
subsidiary company
i Ji Cost
aziarrs‘g:‘iiggggt?g Mathod 4,768927.00 |  4,768927.00 - 4,768,927.00 75.00 75.00 None - -
At L Coct
Elheacrt]%m;yggdll_rt]g Mothod | 4062695200 |  40,626,952.00 - | 40626,952.00 75.00 75.00 None -40,626,952.00 -
i Cost
Er;i?g:;' S:Sgﬁ’gm . Mothod 3,278,165.00 |  3,278,165.00 - 3,278,165.00 100.00 100.00 None - -
=0 Coct
“Sﬂgzr;%?ﬂbzl'ﬁ:t'mmem Co. Lid. | Method 420,000.00 420,000.00 -420,000.00 - 75.00 75.00 None - -
Subtotal ~ | 49,094,044.00 ~420,000.00 48,674,044.00 ; } ~40,626,952.00 ;
Other investments
Shanghal SIEMENS Industrizl oot 2,398,080.00 2,398,080.00 - 2,398,080.00 10.00 10.00 None ; 3,306,678.00
SK Transformer Co.. Ltd MZ?;; g 6,860,961.99 6,860,961.99 . 6,860,961.99 12.22 12.22 None ; 3,229,025.11
Cost
others Method 7,624,970.00 7,624,970.00 7,624,970.00 } - -7,474,970.00 -
Subtotal in Other Investments _ | 16,884,011.99 - 16,884,011.99 : ; 7,474,970.00 6,535,703.11
Total 156,857,202.29 | 26,441,122.64 | _183,208,414.93 - - - ~48,101,922.00 9,783,096.25
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6.0perating Income and Operating Cost

(1) Operating Income, Operating Cost

RMB

ltems

2010

2009

Income from principal business operations

902,802,021.24

1,052,438,116.17

Income from other business operations

21,612,865.64

16,163,944.13

Cost of business operations

757,521,707.88

859,146,449.50

(2) Principal operating activities

RMB

2010

2009

ltems

Operating
Income

Operating Cost

Operating Income

Operating Cost

Device Department Income

Instrumentation and Implementation

290,994,834.27

205,104,985.09

364,553,761.59

254,346,028.10

Income

Digital Control System Department

213,441,929.94

170,586,367.43

254,688,142.76

198,344,648.84

Income

Installation and Assembly Department

398,365,257.03

372,152,200.54

433,196,211.82

398,888,316.18

Total

902,802,021.24

747,843,553.06

1,052,438,116.17

851,678,993.12

(3) Details of the revenue from top 5 customers of the company are as below:

RMB

Client

Operating income

Proportion of operating
income(%)

Shanghai Electric Group Co., Ltd.

36,298,843.49

3.93

Shanghai Puhong Power Equipment Co., Ltd.

27,330,512.81

2.96

Shandong Luneng Group Co., Ltd. Materials Branch

25,920,047.01

2.80

Shanghai Alcatel-Lucent Information Products Co., Ltd.

18,817,279.54

2.03

Qinghai Salt Lake Haihong Chemical Co., Ltd.

17,270,917.08

1.87

Total

125,637,599.93

13.59

7.Asset impairment loss

RMB

ltem

2010

2009

1. Provision for bad debts

6,915,741.70

8,340,804.58

2. Provision for inventory write-down

-327,077.89

-1,633,010.41

3. Provision for impairment of available-for-sale
financial assets

4. Provision for impairment of held-to-maturity
investments

5. Provision for impairment of long-term equity
investments

6. Provision for impairment of investment properties

7. Provision for impairment of fixed assets

82,571.47

8. Provision for impairment of construction project
materials

9. Provision for impairment of construction in progress

10. Provision for impairment of bearer biological
assets

11. Provision for impairment of oil and gas assets

12. Provision for impairment of intangible assets

13. Provision for impairment of goodwiill

14. Others

Total

6,588,663.81

6,790,365.64
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8.Investment income

(1)Details of investment income:

RMB
ltems 2010 2009
Gains/losses recognised under cost method 6,535,703.11 6,208,125.05
Gains/losses recognised under equity method -4,038,825.93 1,224,009.94
Gains/losses on disposal of long-term equity 3,753,305.86 4,284,493.62
investments
Gains from holding of held-for-trading financial assets - -
Gains from holding of held-to-maturity investments - -
Gains from holding of available-for-sale financial assets - -
Gains/losses on disposal of held-for-trading financial - -
assets
Gains/losses on held-to-maturity investment - -
Gains/losses on available-for-sale financial assets 30,042.00 30,042.00
Others - -
Total 6,280,225.04 11,746,670.61
(2) Gains/losses recognised under cost method
RMB
Investee 2010 2009 Reason for
changes
Dividend
. . appropriated
ihangh?" SIEMENS Industrial 3,306,678.00 5,866,378.00 | dotronsed during
utomation Co., Ltd. X
the reporting
period
Dividend
appropriated
SK Transformer Co., Ltd. 3,229,025.11 257,747.05 | increased during
the reporting
period
L . Dividend
Shanghai Zijiui Measurin :
Instrugr]nent éo., Ltd. 9 84,000.00 | appropriated
changed
Total 6,535,703.11 6,208,125.05
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8.Investment income

(3) Gains/losses recognised under equity method

NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY'S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — CONTINUED

RMB
Investee 2010 2009 Reason for
changes
Shanghai Henghe Profit increased
Electromagnetic 4,052,667.53 3,186,286.71 | during this
Equipment Co., Ltd. reporting period
Shanghai Kangmaoshen Profit increased
ghai Bang g 2,180,732.47 632,453.52 | during this
Automatic Control Co., Ltd. . .
reporting period
. . Profit increased
Chino Measuring & Gonirol 1,105,328 .49 460,678.69 | during this
Equipment (Kunshan) Co., Ltd. . .
reporting period
Shanghai Ziyi No. 9 Instrument Profit increased
Co., 406,961.46 364,119.35 | during this
Ltd. reporting period
. . Profit increased
Shanghai Dahua — Chino 489,473.71 118,546.49 | during this
Instrumentation Co., Ltd. . .
reporting period
. . Profit increased
Shanghai Kangmaosheng Air 537,937.56 19,466.66 | during this
Components Co., Ltd. . .
reporting period
. . . Disposed during
Shanghai Shengyi Instrumentation ) -98,331.65 | this reporting
Transformer Co., Ltd. .
period
State-nuclear Automation Loss increased
Instrumentation Systematic -12,811,927.15 -3,459,209.83 | during this
Engineering Co., Ltd. reporting period
Total -4,038,825.93 1,224,009.94

There is no significant restriction on remittance of the Company’s gains on investment.
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9.Supplementary information to the cash flow statement

RMB
Supplementary information 2010 2009
1. Reconciliation of net profit to cash flow from
operating activities:
Net profit 5,258,667.71 10,390,821.50
Add: Provision for asset impairment 6,588,663.81 6,790,365.64

Depreciation of fixed assets [and depreciation
of bearer
biological assets]

12,874,633.12

12,425,623.34

other long-term assets (less gains)

Amortisation of intangible assets 1,013,191.55 999,503.64
Amortisation of long-term prepaid expenses 775,454.51 2,194,395.83
Losses on disposal of fixed assets, intangible

assets and -10,874,889.73 -361,971.19

Write-off of fixed assets (less gains)

Losses on changes in fair values (less gains)

Financial expenses (less gains)

19,842,564.24

22,243,353.67

Losses arising from investments (less gains)

-6,280,225.04

-11,746,670.61

Decrease in deferred tax assets (less increase)

4,016,438.75

-3,646,728.56

Increase in deferred tax liabilities (less decrease)

Decrease in inventories(less decrease)

18,120,664.37

-15,838,704.52

Decrease in operating receivables (less increase)

-11,881,900.26

10,255,885.45

Increase in operating payables (less
decrease)

-36,023,408.87

-36,478,354.03

Others

Net cash flow from operating activities

3,429,854.16

-2,772,479.84

2. Significant investing and financing activities
that do not involve cash receipts and payments:

Conversion of debt into capital

Convertible bonds due within one year

Fixed assets acquired under finance leases

3. Net changes in cash and cash equivalents:

Closing balance of cash

154,455,318.48

145,598,105.95

Less: Opening balance of cash

145,598,105.95

131,888,325.65

Add: Closing balance of cash equivalents

Less: Opening balance of cash equivalents

Net increase(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

8,857,212.53

13,709,780.30
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10.Related Party Transaction

(1) Basic information of the related party.

Please refer to Notes(VI)

(2) Basic information of jointly venture and associates

(2a) Sales and purchases

NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY'S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — CONTINUED

Purchase
RMB
Period from 1 January | Period from 1 January
Transacti| Transaction 2D ALt
Name of the related parties on type pricing 31 December 2010 31 December 2009
Ratio Ratio
Amount (%) Amount (%)
gg_a”Lthf’“ Shenyou Electrical Equipment | o ace | Contract price 8,183,745.69 1.09 5,429,350.41 0.64
Shanghai Shangziyi Adjuster Co., Ltd. Purchase Contract price 973,299.15 0.13 572,331.20 0.07
Dahua-Chino Instrument Shanghai Purchase Contract price 619,519.65 0.08 250,333.33 0.03
Shanghai Electric(Group) Co., Ltd. Purchase Contract price 586,324.79 0.08 - -
Shanghai Shengyi Instrumentation Purchase | Contract price 461,962.21 0.06 26,227.35 0.01
Transformer Co., Ltd.
Shanghai Electric International Economic .
& Trading Co..Ltd Purchase Contract price 303,657.33 0.04 - -
Shanghai Henghe Electromagnetic Purchase | Contract price 75,213.68 0.01 109,433.33 0.01
Equipment Co., Ltd.
Shanghai Ziyi No. 9 Instrument Co., Ltd. | Purchase | Contract price 28,102.57 0.01 - -
State-nuclear Automation
Instrumentation Systematic Purchase Contract price - - 16,311,877.09 1.93
Engineering Co., Ltd.
Shanghai Shangziyi Rotate Speed
Meter Electromagnetic Equipment Purchase Contract price - - 210,436.75 0.02
Co., Ltd.
Shanghai Electric (Group) Co., Purchase Contract price - - 172,100.53 0.02
Shanghai Shangziyi Instrument . B )
Manufacturing Co. Ltd Purchase Contract price 7,400.35 0.01
Total 11,231,825.07 1.50 23,089,490.34 2.74
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10.Related Party Transaction

(2) Basic information of jointly venture and associates - continued

(2a) Sales and purchases - continued

Sales
RMB
Transaction |Transacti| Period from 1 January |Period from 1 January 2009
type on 2010 to to
Name of the related parties pricing 31 December 2010 31 December 2009
Ratio
Amount (%) Amount Ratio (%)
SEmgIneD S OHmE{ ) C2, sales Contract 36,298,843.49 80,481,617.91 7.53
Ltd. price 3.93
Shanghal Metallurgy Mining sales Con.tract 13.021.611.11 18,870,847.86 177
Machinery Plant price 1.51
Shanghai Electric Transport Sales and Contract
Co..Ltd rendering of : 7,389,624.81
. price 0.80
services
Shanghai Boiler Plant Co., Ltd. sales Con.tract 5.932,735.05 5.205.584.38 0.49
price 0.64
Shanghai Electric Power Station Contract
Equipment Co., Ltd. sales price 5,522,127.59 0.60 13,447,001.35 1.26
State-nuclear Automation Contract
Instrumentation Systematic sales rice 1,929,230.77 0.21
Engineering Co., Ltd. P '
Shanghai Electric Group Contract
Co..Power Service Center. sales price 1,546,256.41 0.17
Shanghai Environment Protection Contract
Engineering Units Co., Ltd. sales price 1,235,042.74 013 13,377,999.15 1.25
Shanghai Yawa Printing Contract
Machinery Co..Ltd. sales price 880,717.95 0.10
Egi%ﬁghfggm&z\/md Power sales Cgr:itézct 783,978.63 0.08 63,669.66 0.01
Shanghai Shenyou Electrical Contract
Equipment Co., Ltd. sales price 400,000.00 0.04 1,305,858.54 0.12
Shanghai Electric .Nantong water
Contract
treatment Co..Ltd sales price 153,846.15 0.02
Shanghai Electric (Group) Co.,. sales C(;r:itézct 130.316.24 0.01
Shanghai Electric Environment
Protection Contract
thermoelectricity(Nantong) sales price 35,641.03 )
Co..L.td
Shanghai Electric Contract
Hydraulic&Pneumatics Co..Ltd sales rice 33,100.85 -
Hydraulic Pump Factory P
Shanghai Shen wei da Machinery sales Con.tract 10,299.15 i
Co..Ltd. price
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10.Related Party Transaction

(2) Basic information of jointly venture and associates - continued

(2a) Sales and purchases - continued

Sales - continued

RMB
Transaction |Transacti| Period from 1 January |Period from 1 January 2009
Name of the related parties type on 2010 to to
pricing 31 December 2010 31 December 2009
Shanghai Henghe Sales and Contract
Electromagnetic rendering of rice - 3,620,632.03 0.34
Equipment Co., Ltd. services P
Shanghai Heavy Machinery Plant sales Con.tract ) 335.185.48 0.03
Co., Ltd. price
Do Sales and
Shanghai Ziyi No. 9 Instrument rendering of Con.tract ) 306,924.00 0.03
Co., Ltd. . price
services
Shanghai Electric (Group) Contract )
Changjian Co., Ltd. sales price 205,800.00 0.02
Shanghai Shangziyi Rotate Sales and Contract
Speed Meter Electromagnetic rendering of . - 95,053.83 0.01
) . price
Equipment Co., Ltd. services
Shanghai Kangmaosheng
Automation sales CO?it(';:Ct - 40,527.77
Co., Ltd. P
Shanghai Sifang Boiler Plant sales Cg?ité:d - 11,089.76
Shanghai Shangziyi Adjuster sales Con.tract ) 8.499.99
Co.Ltd. price
Shanghai Turbine Co., Ltd. sales Con.tract ) 7145.38
price
Dahua-C_hlno Instrument sales Con.tract ) 6.752.14
Shanghai price
Shanghai General Contract
Machinery(Group) Co., sales price } ,900.00
Shanghai Relay Co., Ltd. sales Con.tract ) 1,500.00
price
Shanghai Electric Compressor sales Con.tract ) 900.00
Pump Co., Ltd price
Shanghai Machinery Contract
Manufacturing Craft Research sales rice - 400.00
Institute Co., Ltd. P
Total 76,212,371.97 8.24 137,394,889.23 12.86
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Xl. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY'S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — CONTINUED
10.Related Party Transaction - continued
(2) Basic information of jointly venture and associates - continued

(2b) Operating lease commitments

Operating leaser

RMB
Recognition
Lesser Lessee Asset for [Beginning| Expiry | criteria for Rental income
leasehold | date date rental
income
Shanghgl Shanghai Henghe Plant  {2010.1.1 |2010.12.31 Contact 1,724,160.00
Automation : price
. |Electromagnetic
Instrumentation Equipment Co.. Ltd
Co..Ltd quip S
Shanghai Plant 2010.1.1  |2010.12.31| Contact 573,720.00
Automation Shanghai Ziyi No. 9 Instrument price
Instrumentation|Co., Ltd.
Co..Ltd
Shanghgl State-nuclear Automation Plant  {2010.1.1 |2010.12.31 Contact 1,230,580.00
Automation . : price
. __|Instrumentation Systematic
Instrumentation Engineering Co.. Ltd
Co..Ltd 9 g o, .
Shanghai Plant [2010.1.1 ]2010.12.31| Contact 815,616.00
Automation Shanghai Shenyou Electrical price
Instrumentation|Equipment Co., Ltd.
Co..Ltd
Shanghai Plant [2010.1.1 |2010.12.31| Contact 102,016.50
Automation Shanghai Kangmaosheng Air price
Instrumentation|Components Co., Ltd.
Co..Ltd
Total 4,446,092.50

Operating leasee

Asset for  |Beginnin Exoi Recognition Recognition
Lesser Lessee g g pIry criteria for | criteria for rental
leasehold date date .
rental income expenses
Shanghai
Shanghai Wen Tong |Automation ' .
Property Co..Ltd Instrumentation Plant and office {2009.7.1 2014.3.31 | Contact price 3,917,400.00
Co..L.td
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XI.

NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY'S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — CONTINUED

10.Related Party Transaction - continued

(1) Receivable and Payable

(3a)Receivable

RMB
ltem Related parties 2010/12/31 2009/12/31
Book Balance E?gvgﬁ)t:: Book Balance E?gvgﬁ)?]t

Accounts Shanghai Electric Co., 70,817,155.21 69,853.511.70

receivable Ltd.

Accounts Shanghai Metallurgy 17,199,822.60 11,593,892.00

receivable Mining Machinery Plant

Accounts Shanghai Environment

receivable Protection Engineering 9,166,500.00 8,371,927.40
Units Co., Ltd.

Accounts Shanghai Electric Power

receivable Station 3,054,189.95 3,422,287.95
Equipment Co., Ltd.

Acco_unts Shanghai Boiler Plant 1,925,512.02 734,966.04

receivable Co., Ltd.

Accounts State-nuclearAutomation

receivable Instrumentation . 1,894.100.00 3
Systematic Engineering
Co., Ltd.

Accounts Shanghai Ziyi No. 9

receivable Instrument Co., Ltd. 867,840.18 867,840.18

Accounts Shanghai Yawa Printing )

receivable Machinery Co., Ltd. 780,440.00

Accounts Shanghai Electric }

receivable Transport Co., Ltd. 608,860.02

Accounts Shanghai Electric

receivable Shichuan Dao Power
Station Environment 474,000.00 474,000.00
Protection Engineering
Co., Ltd.

Accounts Shanghai Electric Group

receivable Co. Power Service 449,040.00 -
Center.

Accounts Shanghai Electric 422,200.00 259.200.00

receivable (Group) Co.,.

Accounts Shanghai Electric

receivable (Group) Changjian Co., 240,750.00 240,750.00
Ltd.

Accounts Shanghai

receivable Electric .Nantong water 126,000.00 -
treatment Co., Ltd.

Accounts Shanghai Electric Wind

receivable Power Equipment Co., 91,725.50 -
Ltd.

Accounts Shanghai Heavy

receivable michmery Plant Co., 65,114.00 345,055.00

Accounts Shanghai Sifang Boiler 57.711.00 57.711.00

receivable Plant

Accounts Shanghai Pacific Textile

receivable Machinery & - 44,243.55
Assembly Co., Ltd.
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XI.

XI.

10.Related Party Transaction - continued

(1) Receivable and Payable - continued

(3a)Receivable - continued

NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY'S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — CONTINUED

Accounts Shanghai Dalong

receivable Machinery Co., Ltd. ) 8,253.60

Accounts Shanghai Hailong Fluid

receivable Control Technology Co., - - 3,460.00 -
Ltd

Accounts Shanghai General

receivable Machinery(Group) Co., ) ) 2,250.00 )

Accounts Pacific Electro

receivable Mechanical (Group) Co., - - 1,709.91 -
Ltd.

Accounts Shanghai Henghe

receivable Electromagnetic - - 1,284.00 -
Equipment Co., Ltd.

Accounts Shanghai Electric

receivable Compressor Pump Co., - - 324.80 -
Ltd

Accounts Shanghai Machinery

receivable Manufacturing Craft ) ) 100.00 )
Research Institute Co., :
Ltd.

Subtotal 108,240,960.48 96,282,767.13

Advance to Shanghai Electric

supplier International Economic & 335,250.00 - -
Trading Co..Ltd

Advance to Shanghai Ziyi No. 9

supplier Instrument Co., Ltd. ) 68,610.60 ]

Advance to Shanghai Shangziyi ) )

supplier Adjuster Co. Ltd. 176,622.80

Advance to Shanghai Henghe

supplier Electromagnetic - 58,243.50 -
Equipment Co., Ltd.

Subtotal 335,250.00 - 303,476.90

Other recelvable | Shanghai Microlink Group|  gg 369,399.71 88,369,399.71|  88,409,399.71 88,409,399.71

Other receivable |Shanghai Shenyou
Electrical Equipment Co., 6,946,562.23 - 1,283,428.05 -
Ltd.

Other receivable |Shanghai Shangziyi
Rotate Speed Meter 5,011,916.79 1,199,494.39 5,011,916.79 1,199,494.39
Electromagnetic
Equipment Co., Ltd.

Other receivable |Shanghai Henghe
Electromagnetic 587,622.05 - 587,622.05 -
Equipment Co., Ltd.

Other receivable |Shanghai SIEMENS
Industrial 275,855.88 - 275,855.88 -
Automation Co., Ltd.

Other receivable |Shanghai Ziyi No. 9 59,738.30 ) 59,738.30 )
Instrument Co., Ltd.

Other receivable |Shanghai Zijiu Measuring ) ) 22.758.92 )
Instrument Co.,Ltd

Other receivable |Shanghai Shengyi
Instrumentation - - 419,689.77 -

Transformer Co., Ltd.

Subtotal

101,251,094.96

89,568,894.10

96,070,409.47

89,608,894.10

Notes Receivable

Shanghai Jinggong
Hairspring Co.,
Ltd.

379,460.31

379,460.31

Subtotal

379,460.31

379,460.31

379,460.31

10.Related Party Transaction - continued
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(1) Receivable and Payable - continued

(3b) Payable

RMB
[ related parties 31/12/2010 31/12/2009

Accounts payable [Shanghai Shenyou Electrical Equipment 3,334,454.83 3,266,967.22
Co., Ltd.

Accounts payable |State-nuclear Automation Instrumentation 2,900,644.00 8,067,239.80
Systematic Engineering Co., Ltd.

Accounts payable |Dahua-Chino Instrument Shanghai 656,741.60 31,020.00

Accounts payable [Shanghai Electric Power Station 71,582.55 205,674.55
Equipment Co., Ltd.

Accounts payable |Shanghai Cable Works Co..Ltd 28,135.50 -

Accounts payable |Shanghai Electric(Group) Co., Ltd. - 858,349.81

Accounts payable |Shanghai Electric Power Station - 341,198.44
Equipment Co., Ltd.

Accounts payable |Shanghai Ziyi No. 9 Instrument Co., Ltd. - 170,156.00

Accounts payable |Shanghai Shangziyi Rotate Speed Meter - 85,920.00
Electromagnetic Equipment Co., Ltd.

Accounts payable |Shanghai Shangziyi Adjuster Co.Ltd. 5,100.00

Accounts payable |Shanghai Shengyi Instrumentation - 3.120.00
Transformer Co., Ltd. T

Accounts payable |Shanghai Shangziyi Instrument - 2581.00
Manufacturing Co. Ltd T
Subtotal 6,991,558.48 13,037,326.82
Other payable Shanghai Electric Group Co., 51,893,200.96 21,893,200.96
Other payable Shanghai Shenyou Electrical Equipment 1,684,255.00 9,755.00
Co., Ltd.

Other payable State-nuclear Automation Instrumentation 483,043.07 -
Systematic Engineering Co., Ltd.

Other payable Shanghai Shengyi Instrumentation - 151,023.52
Transformer Co., Ltd.

Other payable Shanghai Wen Tong Property Co., Ltd. - 979,350.00

Other payable Shanghai Ziyi No. 9 Instrument Co., Ltd. - 210,435.73

Other payable Shanghai Henghe Electromagnetic - 125,878.72
Equipment Co., Ltd.

Subtotal 54,060,499.03 23,369,643.93
Advance from Shanghai Environment Protection 2,250,000.00 -
customer Engineering Units Co., Ltd.

Advance from Shanghai Electric Group Co., 2,188,680.00 -
customer
Advance from Shanghai Electric Power Station Equipment 1,543,166.28 2,202,161.23
customer Co., Ltd.
Advance from Shanghai Electric Wind Power Equipment 618,877.95 -
customer Co., Ltd.
Advance from Shanghai Electric Shichuan Dao Power 598,000.00 -
customer Station Environment Protection

Engineering Co..Ltd
Advance from Shanghai Power Equipment Research 51,939.20 -
customer Institute
Advance from Shanghai Machine Tool works Ltd - 2,358.00
customer
Advance from Shanghai Welding Machine Manufactory - 700.20
customer

Subtotal 7,250,663.43 2,205,219.43
Advance from Shanghai Shenyou Electrical Equipment 10,400,000.00 -
customer Co., Ltd.

Subtotal 10,400,000.00 -
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Xl. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY'S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — CONTINUED
10.Related Party Transaction - continued

(1) Receivable and Payable - continued

(3c) Guarantees provided by related party

Perform
Guarantor Guarantee Amount Beginning Date Due Date Completed(yes/no)
Shanghai
Shanghai Electric  |Automation 1567 504 000.00|2008.2.29~2010.12.17|2011.1.8~2021.6.30 No
Group Co., Instrumentation
Co., Ltd.

XIl. Approval of financial statements

The Company's and consolidated financial statements have been approved by the Board of the
Company on 29 March, 2011.

* * END OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS * *
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1. Extrodinary gain and losses

RMB

ltems

2010

2009

Gains/losses from disposal of non-current assets

13,602,598.23

1,039,163.47

Tax refunds or reductions with ultra vires approval or without official
approval documents

Government grants recognised in profit and loss for the current year
(except government grants that is highly business related and
determined based on a fixed scale according to the national unified
standard)

40,101,756.32

3,240,000.00

Interest income recognised in profit and loss for the current year from
non-financial companies

The excess of attributable fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities
over the consideration paid for subsidiaries,joint ventures and associates
recognised on business

Profit or loss on exchange of non-monetary assets

Profit or loss on entrusted investments

Impairment losses provided for each asset due to force majeure

Profit or loss on debt restructuring

-1,040,835.50

Business restructuring expenses, e.g., expenditure for layoff of
employees, integration expenses, etc.

Profit or loss relating to the unfair portion in transactions with unfair
transaction price.

Net profit or loss of subsidiaries recognised as a result of business
combination of enterprises under common control from the beginning of
the period up to the business combination date

Profit or loss arising from provisions other than those related to principal
business activities of the Company

Investment income from changes in fair value of held-for-trading financial
assets and liabilities and disposals of financial assets, liabilities and
available-for-sale financial assets except effective hedging transactions
related to the Group's normal business

Reversal of specific bad debt provision

147,248.37

Profit and loss acquired from loan committed to other entities

Profit and loss due to change in fair value of investment properties
measured subsequently with the fair value model

Impact of one-off adjustment to profit or loss of current period based on
the requirements of laws and statutes of tax and accounting on the profit
of loss of current period

Income of trustee fee acquired from committed operation

Other non-operating net income

1,862,661.89

1,896,662.64

Other non-recurring profit or loss(Note)

-147,248.37

Tax effect of non-recurring profit or loss

-1,253,308.77

Impact of minority gains/losses(after tax)

29,748.46

Total

55,567,016.44

3,911,430.30

Note: This refers to the exchange loss from return of devaluation reserve for accounts receivable

from the
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U.S.’s Mlcrolink Group, whose devaluation test is individually conducted.

2. Fully diluted and weighted average return on net assets and earnings per share
(“EPS”) after full dilution and weighted average calculation

The return on net assets and EPS has been prepared by Shanghai Automation
Instrumentation Co., Ltd

In accordance with Information Disclosure and Presentation Rules for Companies Making
Public

Offering No. 9 — Calculation and Disclosure of Return on Net Assets and Earnings per Share
(Revised 2010) issued by China Securities Regulatory Commission.

Weighted average rate of EPS

Profit for the reporting period return on net assets (%) Basic Diluted

Calculated based on net
profit attributable to 3.6 0.015 0.015
ordinary equity holders

Calculated based on net profit
attributable to ordinary equity
holders after extraordinary -30.42 -0.124 -0.124
gains

and losses
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Chapter XI Reference Available

I. Financial statements sealed and signed by the legal representative, CFO and person in
charge of accounting organ.

Il. Originals of Audit Report with seal and signatures of CPAs’ and CPA’s Firm

[ll. The originals of all the company’ s documents and public bulletins released in the
newspapers defined by China Securities Regulation Committee within the report period.

IV. Articles of Association of Shanghai Automation Instrumentation Co., Ltd.

V. The Company retained original copies of the above documentation in office. When the
CSRC and SSE ask for presentation or shareholders require reviewing according to law,
regulation or Article of Associations, the Company will provide in time.

Chairman: Xu Ziying

(Signature)

Shanghai Automation Instrumentation Company Limited
Mar. 31, 2011
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Written Confirmation Letter of
Directors and Senior Executive of
Shanghai Automation Instrumentation Co., Ltd.
on the 2010 Annual Report

In accordance with stipulations in Article 68 of the Securities Law and related
stipulations in the Content and Format Standards No. 3 on Information Disclosure of
Companies with Public Issues (Interim Report Content and Format) (2007 revised),
after full review and audit of the Company’ s 2010 Annual Report, we hereby conclude:
The 2010 Annual Report fairly reflects the financial status and operating result in
report period, and we confirm that the content in the 2010 Annual Report contains no
false record, misleading statement or serious omission and are willing to bear
individual and joint responsibilities for the authenticity, accuracy and completeness
of the content.

Xu Ziying Hu Honggang Zhu Yutao
Ouyang Lingnan Dai Jixiong Fei Mimrui
Li Hefu Huang Jianmin Wang Ying
Zhang Junbiao Zhu Huikiang He Xiaoyong
Xu Daqing Huang Jie Wang Qi
Mao Youwei Zhao Jie Miao Danhua
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